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REVISED ANNUAL REPORT TEMPLATE 

 

The purpose of this revised Annual Report template is to address the need expressed by a 

number of municipalities for assistance in the preparation and development of improved 

content and quality of Municipal Annual Reports. This template provides an update to the 

MFMA Circular No. 11, issued in January 2005. 

 

This template gives effect to the legal framework requirement, concepts and principals 

espoused in the White Paper on Local Government and Improving Government Performance.  

It reflects the ethos of public accountability. The content gives effect to information required for 

better monitoring and evaluation of government programmes in support of policy decision 

making. The template provides an improved overview of municipal affairs by combining the 

performance report data required under Municipal Systems Act Section 46 with annual report 

data referred to in that Act and in the MFMA.  

 

The revised template makes its contribution by forging linkages with the Integrated 

Development Plan, Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan, Budget Reforms, In-

year Reports, Annual Financial Statements and Performance Management information in 

municipalities. This coverage and coherence is achieved by the use of interlocking processes 

and formats. 

 

The revised template relates to the Medium Term Strategic Framework particularly through 

the IDP strategic objectives; cross cutting nature of services offered by different spheres of 

government, municipal service outcome indicators; and the contextual material as set out in 

Chapters 3, 4 & 5.  It also provides information on good management practice in Chapter 4; 

risk management in Chapter 2; and Supply Chain Management in Chapter 5; and addresses 

the Auditor-Generalôs Report, dealing with Financial and Performance Management 

arrangements in Chapter 6. This opens up greater possibilities for financial and non-financial 

comparisons between municipalities and improved value for money. 

 

The revised template provides information on probity, including: anti-corruption strategies; 

disclosure of financial interests by officials and councillors; disclosure of grants by external 

parties, disclosure of loans and grants by municipalities. The appendices talk to greater detail 

including disaggregated information on municipal wards, among others. Notes are included 

throughout the format to assist the compiler to understand the various information 

requirements.  

 

The financial years contained in this template are explained as follows: 

 

¶ Year 2016/17: The previous financial year; 

¶ Year 2017/18: The financial year of reporting;  

¶ Year 1: The following year, mostly requires future targets; and 

¶ The other financial years will follow a similar sequence as explained above 
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We wish to express our gratitude to the members of the Annual Report Reference Group, 

consisting of national, provincial and municipal officials for their inputs and support throughout 

the development of this document.  

 

MFMA Implementation Unit, National Treasury July 2012
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CHAPTER 1 ï MAYORôS FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
COMPONENT A: MAYORôS FOREWORD 

 

MAYORôS FOREWORD 

 

a. Vision: 

ñTo be a leading category B Municipality in the country.ò 

 

                      Mission: 

To provide quality and sustainable basic services to our community, cost-effectively, in a 

manner that supports growth and development within our Municipality. 

 

b. Key Policy Developments: 

 

The following  policies were adopted in the 18/19 financial year, Reviewed S & T policy and 

New Pound Policy. 

c. Key Service Delivery Improvements: 

 

Our key challenge in the year under review has been provision of water especially in 

Tswelelang and Lebaleng due to the shortage of supply. This matter received urgent 

attention and the municipality submitted different business plans and as short term 

intervention used tankers to ferry water to affected areas. 

 

There can be no dout that service delivery is the bedrock of our existence, hence we 

ensured that we appoint a Municipal manager who wasted no time in appointing senior 

managers with whom as a team, they will speed up service delivery in a super consistent 

manner for the good of our communities.The following milestones with regard to the 

infrastructure projects were realised: 

 

¶ Contruction of the hawkers stalls in Wolmaransstad 

¶ Construction of 32 stands sewerconnection lines in Kgakala 

¶ Contruction of 5 high mast light in Rulaganyang and Kgakala 

¶ Construction of stormwater in Mogakare street lebaleng 

 

The department of local government and human settlement implemented the following 

project with some being concluded and some overlapping to 2018/19 

 

¶ Township establishment 

¶ Construction of housing units 

¶ Construction of roads 

¶ Construction of bulk services, water and sanitation 

 

d. Public Participation; 
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Councillors are holding Ward committee meetings, public meetings and other consultative 

meetings aimed improving public participation.Budget and IDP meetings were conducted in 

all Municipal areas as part of our obligation to regularly consult communities on matters of 

municipal governance and policy direction. 

 

e. Local Economic Development: 

 

The municipality continued to support economic development initiatives , SMME 

development and tourism. The municipality adopted a reviewed Local Economic 

Development strategy in order to enhance economic development in different sectors. 

Construction of hawker stalls was completed which its intention is to assist SMMEôs to 

have a strategic area where they can run their businesses. In addition to that the 

municipality completed the construction of youth centre which will serve as one stop centre 

for young people to acquire knowledge and training with regard to economic development. 

EPWP continues to be one of the strategic job creation initiative wherein people are skilled 

and exposed to workplace. 

 

f. Institutional development and financial viability 

 

In terms of the notice to intervene, the municipality was placed under Section 139 of the 

Constitution by provincial exco from 1 September 2018 and the intervention overlapped to 

2018/19 till the end of August 2019. 

 

The municipality was able to appoint Municipal Manager which was vacant since 2017, 

June. The appointment let to the initiation of the process of appointment of other 4 senior 

managers who are directly accountable to the municipal manager, a process which was 

not yet completed by year end. 

 

The municipality continues to experience cash flow payment due to the non payment of the 

municipal services. Revenue enhancement committee and the revenue enhancement 

strategy was adopted. Due to cash flow problems the municipality continues to owe bulk 

service suppliers, i.e, Eskom and Sebibeng and other creditors for a period of over 120 

days.  

 

The municipality received a desclaimer audit opinion which largely was based on the 

failure to address the prior year issues. The AG indicated in the report that some of the 

causes was lack of leadership, oversight, consequence management and substantive 

senior managers. In its action plan the municipality will ensure that the above issues are 

addressed. 

 

Topping our priority list is the Augmentation of Bulk water supply as we are currently 

experiencing water rationing due to slow payments,we are currently engaging national 

treasury to allow us to resume the abandoned Buisfontien water project. For the year 
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ahead focus will also be on the general maintenance of our roads and the paving of gravel 

roads.  

 

 

g. Agreements / Partnerships: 

 

We are in agreement with national treasury to use their consultants for the drafting of the 

Annual Financial Statements. 

h. Conclusion: 

 

The future looks bright for our Municipality, we are implementing  comprehensive cost cutting 

measures and will soon implement new revenue enhancement strategy aimed at improving 

our financial position. Further than that there will be service delivery drives/ consultations by 

the Mayor, Concillors and senior managers. The process of appointment of other senior 

managers will be expedited to ensure that there is leadership stability. Issues of governance 

will be looked into and process plan will be developed to address prior year issues as well 

as oversight reports. 

 

 

 

Signed by:__________________________   

Mayor 

                                                                                                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                             

T 1.0.1 
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1. MUNICIPAL MANAGERôS OVERVIEW  
 

 

MUNICIPAL MANAGERôS OVERVIEW 

 

Towards the end of the financial year, we recruited a team of dedicated senior managers 

who will stop at nothing to fast track service delivery and steer the Municiplity to the right 

direction. We are in the process of filling all vacant crital positions and that will happen in 

the 2019/2020 financial year 

 

Revenue collection continues to be a challenge and we are working very hard to come up 

with sound strategies that will will enble us to improve our financial position. Community 

members are also urge to honour their obligation of service payment. 

 

Our roads are in a bad state, hence priority will be surfacing of the gravel roads, fixing of 

potholes and general maintenance of our damaged roads. Our aging electricity network 

needs serious attention and we will do everything in our power to fix and replace old and 

damaged electricity infrastructure. We are looking at resuscitationg the bulk water supply 

project from Buisfontein, which will help to alleviate water cuts and restrictions.Solid waste 

collection and landfill sites will be given a top priority by creating a regional land fill site and 

purchasing fleet to help with refuse collection. 

 

Unfortunately we obtained a negative Audit outcome and together with the Audit committee 

and the Auditor generalôs office, we will address all the issues expressed in the findings of 

the Auditor General. 

 

We would like to urge our officials to observe and follow strict cost cutting measures when 

using their tools of trade and in their everyday execution of their duties. 

 

Let me also applaud all those who worked very hard to steer the municipality to the right 

direction councillors and official alike.Together we can better the state of the Municiplity for 

the good of our people.  

  

 

I thank you. 

 

 

 Municipal Manager 

 Mr V. E Zikalala 

 

 

                                                                                                                                   

   T 1.1.1  
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1.2. MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
OVERVIEW 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BACKGROUND DATA 

 

Our data is sourced in-house, from Government Departments and we also use secondary 

information from Institutions like Stats SA and private service providers. 

  

                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                   T 1.2.1 
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Population Details 

                Population '000 

Age 
Year 2016/17 Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Age: 0 ï 4 4949 4794 9743 4949 4794 9743 4949 4794 9743 

Age: 5 ï 9 4407 4297 8704 4407 4297 8704 4407 4297 8704 

Age: 10 ï 19 7114 7005 14119 7114 7005 14119 7114 7005 14119 

Age: 20 ï 29 12844 7146 19990 12844 7146 19990 12844 7146 19990 

Age: 30 ï 39 5180 5091 10271 5180 5091 10271 5180 5091 10271 

Age: 40 ï 49 4005 4175 8180 4005 4175 8180 4005 4175 8180 

Age: 50 ï 59 3155 3138 6293 3155 3138 6293 3155 3138 6293 

Age: 60 ï 69 1716 1915 3631 1716 1915 3631 1716 1915 3631 

Age: 70+ 1009 1503 2512 1009 1503 2512 1009 1503 2512 

Source: Statistics SA ( based on census 2011)                                                                                                                                                 
T 1.2.2 
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Overview of Neighbourhoods within 'Name of 
Municipality' 

Settlement Type Households Population 

Towns     

Wolmaransstad 841 2944 

Makwassie 568 1988 

Leeudringstad 441 1551 

Witpoort 91 319 

Sub-Total 1941 6802 

Townships     

Lebaleng 3142 10998 

Tswelelang 7665 26828 

Kgakala 2740 9590 

Rulaganyang 348 1218 

Sub-Total 13895 48634 

Rural settlements     

boskuil 312 1092 

oersonskraal 133 466 

kareepan 52 182 

Sub-Total 497 1740 

Informal settlements     

      

      

      

Sub-Total 0 0 

Total 16333 57176 

  T 1.2.6 
     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     
 

Natural Resources 

Major Natural Resource Relevance to Community 

Rivers and Streams irrigation and recreation purposes 

Witpoort Dam recreation and drinking hole for animals 

  T 1.2.7 
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COMMENT ON BACKGROUND DATA: 

Our Annual population growth is at 1,19% as per Stats SA.The Municipality completed 

township estsblishments in the following arears to deal with the growing demand for settlement, 

Makwassie Ext 6, Wolmaransstad Ext 17 & 18, Leeudoringstad Ext 5 & 6, and Witpoort. 

                                                                                                                                   T 1.2.8 

 

1.3. SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY INTRODUCTION 

 

Maquassi Hills Local Municipality is a category B municipality and is responsible to fulfil the 

following executive obligations: water reticulation, electricity reticulation, roads and storm 

water, refuse removal, sanitation and recreation, during this financial year there were capital 

projects rolled out which aimed at fulfilling the latter executive obligations. The projects will be 

detailed in various Capital projects in this report. 

 

T 1.3.1 

 

 

 

Proportion of Households with minimum level of Basic services  

  
Year -

3 
Year -

2 Year 1 
Year 0 

Electricity  service connections 80% 90% 92% 92% 

Water - available within 200 m from dwelling 65% 75% 80% 80% 

Sanitation - Households with at least VIP service 58% 63% 63% 62% 

Waste collection - kerbside collection once a week 35% 40% 45% 43% 
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 T1.3.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON ACCESS TO BASIC SERVICES: 

 

Our communities have access to basic services in both formal and informal settlements. We 

provided temporary arrangements for water and sanitation in all our informal settlements. The 

indigent households are encouraged to apply for relief. 

 

T 1.3.3 
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1.4. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 
 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

We adopted operation ñDuelaò to encourgage our cumstomers to pay for services and for 

convinience sake we are opening on Saturdays and during lunch times.Our bulk services 

accounts still pose a serious financial strain but we entered into an agreement with Sedibeng 

and Eskom in a bit to ease our bulging accounts, bearing in mind though that we still have to 

provide services. We manage to stay financially afloat with the assistance of grants and 

equitable share, however, we still maintain our 100% expenditure on MIG allocation.  

  

 

Financial Overview:  Year 2018/19 

      R' 000 

Details Original budget Adjustment Budget Actual 

Income:       

Grants 120 462 146 506 153 789 

Taxes, Levies and tariffs 224 309 224 224 165 341 

Other 65 233 66 090 172 225 

Sub Total 410 004 436 820 491 355 

Less: Expenditure 398 309 405 661 412 484 

Net Total* 11 695 31 159 78 871 

* Note:  surplus/(defecit)      T 1.4.2 

 

Operating Ratios 

Detail % 

Employee Cost 18 % 

Repairs & Maintenance 2.7 % 

Finance Charges & Impairment 38 % 

  T 1.4.3 

  
 

  

  

Total Capital Expenditure: Year 2016/17 to Year 2018/19 

      R'000 

Detail Year 2016/17 Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Original Budget            29,725             48,420  68 035 

Adjustment Budget            72,578             66,961  68 035 

Actual            75,021             63,916  46 813  

    T 1.4.4 
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T 1.4.5 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON CAPITAL EXPENDITURE: 

 

We maintained 100% expenditure on MIG allocation and our capital projects were successfully 

completed. 

                                                                                                                                     T 1.4.5.1 

 

1.5. ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 
 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 

In relation to organisational development, the municipal institutional transformation 

component largely comprises of key performance areas such as training and development, 

employment equity, recruitment and selection/ manpower planning, policies and occupational 

health and safety  

 

                                                                                                                                                   

T 1.5.1 
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1.6. AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 
 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT: YEAR 2018/19 (CURRENT YEAR) 

 

                                                                                                                                                            

T 1.6.1 
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1.7. STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 
 

 

N

o. 
Activity 

Timefram

e 

1 

Consideration of next financial yearôs Budget and IDP process plan. Except 

for the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year reporting 

formats to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly into the 

Annual Report process at the end of the Budget/IDP implementation period 

July 
2 

Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences 

(In-year financial reporting). 

3 Finalise the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year 

4 
Submit draft year 2018/19 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-

General 

5 Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to MM  

6 
Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of 

municipality and entities (where relevant) 

August 

8 
Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report 

9 
Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual 

financial statements and performance report to Auditor General 

1

0 

Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be 

provided as input to the IDP Analysis Phase 

1

1 

Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual Financial 

Statements and Performance data 
September 

- October 

1

2 

Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor Generalôs 

comments 

November 

1

3 

Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council 

complete with the Auditor- Generalôs Report  

1

4 

Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 

1

5 

Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 

1

6 

Council adopts Oversight report 

December 
1

7 

Oversight report is made public 

1

8 

Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils 

1

9 

Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalisation for next financial year. 

Annual Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input 
January 

                                                                                                                                                        

T 1.7.1 
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COMMENT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS: 

 

The 18/19 Annual report was generated from the work done by the Municipalty from the 1st 

July 2018 to the end of June 2019. Information was sourced from all directorates after the end 

of the financial year. The work of the Auditor General, the post audit action plan , Annual 

financial statement and the Annual performance form part of this document. After approval of 

the Auditor General then the document can be tabled before the  Maquassi-hills council and 

members of the public will be invited.  

 

T 1.7.1.1 
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CHAPTER 2 ï GOVERNANCE 

 

 

INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE 

 

 Municipal council is well in place with a duly adopted schedule of council meetings. All council 

committees are functional, however we still need to establish the Risk committee for the 

Municipality. We are currently using shared internal Audit with the Dr Kenneth Kaunda District 

Municipality. The newly establish MPAC have shown great sings of improvement but they are 

yet to table oversight report as we are lagging behind in this aspect.                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                                            

T 2.0.1 

 

COMPONENT A:  POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 

All resolutions from the Municipal council are implemented by administration and we use the 

Resolution register to track implementation. 
 

T 2.1.0 

 

2.1 POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 
 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

We have adopted schedules for portfolio committes, Executive committee and the council 

meetings and for the year under review all meetings we honoured except on few occasions 

were meetings we postponed. 

 

 

T 2.1.1 
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 POLITICAL STRUCTURE  

 

MAYOR  

 Victoria Kgabi 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 SPEAKER 

Daphney Notwane 

 

 
 

 

 CHIEF WHIP 

Nomveliso Tshingilane 

 

 
 

 

 MAYORAL COMMITTEE/ EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

D. van Zyl 

T. P Bolao 

K.G Kgabi 

K.J Selebano 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

 

T 2.1.1 
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COUNCILLORS 

The municipality is a category B municipality with 22 Councillors, 14 ANC, 3 DA and 2 EFF, 

2 F4SD, 1 FF+. Our Executive committee consists of 4 Members with Mayor as the political  

head and the Speaker as the Head of Council. We have 4 Portfolio committees, i.e., 

Corporate, Engineering, Finance and Community services 

 

T 2.1.2 

 

 

POLITICAL DECISION-TAKING 

The decision making process starts with management taking decisions that resided within its 

mandate. Portfolio committee then consider the issues, send them to the Executive 

committee and send them to council for approval. 

 

T 2.1. 

 

 

2.2 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 The Municipal Manager accounts for all the resolution as he forms part of the meeting of 

management, Portfolio, Exco and Council where he gives advices.  
 

T 2.2.1 
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Directors 

TOP ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE  

TIER 1 

 

 

 MUNICIPAL MANAGER  

Mr Velaphi Zikalala 

 

 

Acting  DIRECTOR:  FINANCE 

Mr. J. Mogoemang 

 

 Acting DIRECTOR:  ENGINEERING     

SERVICES 

Mr. N Mwase 

 

 DIRECTOR:  CORPORATE SERVICES 

Mr S.J Lehloenya 

 

Acting DIRECTOR: Community Services 

Mr N . Tladi. 

 
 

Function 

 

   

  

 

                                                 

T2.2.2 

The process of recruitment is completed and by the beginning of the new financial all 

positions will be filled.  

 

COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 

INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

RELATIONS 

 

 The municipality is part of various Intergovernmental Relations Forums, such as Premier 

Coordinating Committee, MM Forum, District IGR and CFO Forum.  
 

T 2.3.0 
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2.3 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 

 

The municipality is part of various Intergovernmental Relations Forums, such as Premier 

Coordinating Committee, MM Forum, District IGR and CFO Forum.  

T 2.3.1 

 

PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE 

The municipality is part of different provincial intergovernmental forums. These ranges from 

political and administration forum. In terms of the political we have Premier Coordination 

Committee and for administration we have MM, CFO, HR/LR, and SDF Forums. These 

forums are important because there is a constant networking and learning of best practices 

from other counterparts 

T 2.3.2 

 

 

DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 

District SDF Forum, Corporate Director Forum, District HR Forum, District CFO Forum and 

Internal Audit. The interventions are very helpful in that there is a sharing of best practices. 

 

T 2.3.3 
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COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 
 

OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

Community participation is normally done by the Speaker, the Mayor and ward Councillors 

during the process of developing IDP/ Budget and other normal community meetings. 

Communities are called to make inputs on issues relating to services and tariffs. 
 

T 2.4.0 

 

2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS 

 

The mechanism used to enhance community participation are Mayoral Consultative 

meetings and ward meetings. The municipal website is fully functional 

(www.maquassihills.co.za) as well the Facebook page. 

T 2.4.1 

 

 

WARD COMMITTEES 

Ward committees coordinates ward meetings and do ward profiling. They are also categorized 

into different social aspects, .i.e., health, education and sports. 
 

T 2.4.2 

 

 

 

 

Public Meetings 

Nature and 

purpose of 

meeting 

Date of 

events 

Number 

of 

Participati

ng 

Municipal 

Councillor

s 

Number 

of 

Participati

ng 

Municipal 

Administr

ators 

Number of 

Community 

members 

attending 

Issue 

address

ed 

(Yes/No) 

Dates and 

manner of 

feedback 

given to 

community 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

1 

02/01/19 1 01 85 Yes Public 

meetings. 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

2 

21/01/19 1 0 99 Yes Public 

meetings 

http://www.maquassihills.co.za/
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IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

3 

16/01/19 1 0 73 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

4 

21/01/19 01 0 69 Yes Public 

meetings. 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

5 

 01 0 0 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

6 

 01 0 0 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

7 

16/01/19 01 15 0 Yes Public 

meetings. 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

8 

11/01/19 01 5 37 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

9 

08/01/19 01 5 26 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

10 

14/01/19 01 7 40 Yes Public 

meetings 

IDP/Budget 

consultative 

meeting.Ward

11 

14/01/19 01 6 47 Yes Public 

meetings 

                                                                                                                                                        

T 2.4.3 
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COMMENT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD: 

 

The municipality benefits in such a way that it is able to understand the needs analysis and 

enables them to plan in accordance with the needs of the people. The community on the 

other hand is able to understand and interact with the municipal expectation and have first-

hand information that will enable them to have meaningful contributions towards their own 

development. 

 

T 2.4.3.1 

 

 

2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 
 

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators?  Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies?  Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets?  Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score?  Yes 

Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan?  Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align to the section 57 Managers  Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP?  Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public?   No 

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames?  No 

* Section 26 of Municipal Systems Act 2000 T 2.5.1 
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

The Municipality is cooperating with other spheres of Government through the 

Intergovernmental Relations Forum, at the District, Mayorsô IGR Forum, MMôs Forum, CFOôs 

Forum and the District IGR Forum. The Municipality cooperates fairly well with sister 

Departments in various matters of concern to the Municipality in developmental areas. The 

support provided by both the Province and National spheres of Government is always 

accepted. Our Municipality is assisted on a shared service basis with its internal audit function 

by Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality. Provincial Treasury assisted with the annual risk 

assessment. 

T 2.6.0 

 

2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

We have Risk Assessment Report done by Provincial Treasury but we donôt have provision in 

the structure for Risk Management Officer. We can still improve in this aspect. 
 

T 2.6.1 

 

2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 
 

 

FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

 We have Whistleblowing, Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policies in place. 

                                                                                                     

T 2.7.1                                                                                                                                                              
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2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 

 

OVERVIEW SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

 

Supply Chain Management activities are governed by various pieces of legislation which 

among others include PPPFA, MFMA, BBBEE, Municipal Supply Chain Management Policy, 

Regulations and CIDB Act. Compliance to the Acts is of outmost importance in order to 

ensure that the municipality has a procurement system that is fair, transparent, effective and 

economical. 

 

T 2.8.1 

 

2.9 BY-LAWS 

By-laws Introduced during Year 0 

Newly Developed Revised  Public 
Participation 

Conducted Prior 
to Adoption of By-

Laws (Yes/No) 

Dates of 
Public 

Participation 

By-Laws 
Gazetted* 
(Yes/No) 

Date of 
Publication 

 0 0  0   0     

            

            

            

            

            

            

*Note: See MSA section 13. T 2.9.1 

      

      

      

      

      
 

COMMENT ON BY-LAWS: 

 

Council did not adopt any new by-law in this financial year, neither reviewed any. 

                                                                                                                                    T 2.9.1.1 
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2.10 WEBSITES 

Municipal Website: Content and Currency of Material 

Documents published on the Municipality's / Entity's Website Yes / No 
Publishing 

Date 

Current annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related documents  no  - 

All current budget-related policies  no  - 

The previous annual report (Year -1)  yes   

The annual report (Year 0) published/to be published yes  
 After 

tabling 

All current performance agreements required in terms of section 57(1)(b) of the Municipal 
Systems Act (Year 0) and resulting scorecards  no  - 

All service delivery agreements (Year 0)  No  - 

All long-term borrowing contracts (Year 0)  No  - 

All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value (give value) for Year 0  No  - 

An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed value that have been 
disposed of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) during Year 1  No  - 

Contracts agreed in Year 0 to which subsection (1) of section 33 apply, subject to subsection 
(3) of that section  no  - 

Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 made in Year 0  no  - 

All quarterly reports tabled in the council in terms of section 52 (d) during Year 0  no -  

Note: MFMA s75 sets out the information that a municipality must include in its website as detailed above. 
Municipalities are, of course encouraged to use their websites more extensively than this to keep their 
community and stakeholders abreast of service delivery arrangements and municipal developments.  

T 2.10.1 

 

COMMENT MUNICIPAL WEBSITE CONTENT AND ACCESS: 

Our webiste is fully functional but not all compliance information as prescribed by the law are 

uploaded and available on www.maquassihills.co.za 

T 2.10.1.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.maquassihills.co.za/
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2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
 

PUBLIC SATISFCATION LEVELS 

No public satisfaction surveys were undertaken during the year under review. 

 

T 2.11.1 

Satisfaction Surveys Undertaken during: Year -1 and Year 0 
Subject matter of survey Survey method Survey 

date 
No. of 

people 
included in 

survey 

Survey results indicating 
satisfaction or better (%)* 

Overall satisfaction with:         

(a) Municipality         

(b) Municipal Service 
Delivery         

(c) Mayor         

Satisfaction with:         

(a) Refuse Collection         

(b) Road Maintenance         

(c) Electricity Supply         

(d) Water Supply         

(e) Information supplied by 
municipality to the public         

(f) Opportunities for 
consultation on municipal 
affairs         

* The percentage indicates the proportion of those surveyed that believed that relevant 
performance was at least satisfactory T 2.11.2 

 

 

Concerning T 2.11.2: 

 

No public satisfaction surveys were undertaken during the year under review. 

 

           T 2.11.2.1 

 

COMMENT ON SATISFACTION LEVELS: 

          

No public satisfaction surveys were undertaken during the year under review 2.11.2.2
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CHAPTER 3 ï SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE REPORT 

PART I) 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Service delivery in terms of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Schedule 4, and 

Part B determines the functions of the municipality and therefore its responsibility towards the 

community.  In terms of the IDP and the strategic objectives of the Maquassi Hills Local 

Municipality, certain issues are set out to be achieved during the financial year. 

 

T 3.0.1 

 

COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES 
 

This component includes: water; waste water (sanitation); electricity; waste management; and 

housing services; and a summary of free basic services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICES 

As per the constitutional mandate the Municipality is providing all basic services ranging from 

water, sanitation, electricity and waste management, roads and those who canôt afford all these 

services, are granted free basic services that is 6kl water and 50kwh electricity per month once 

they are registered as Indigents. 

T 3.1.0 
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3.1. WATER PROVISION 
 

INTRODUCTION TO WATER PROVISION 

 

Note: Recent legislation includes the Water Services Act 1997 and the General Enabling Act 

2005 

Municipality strives to meet the basic water demand by all consumers as much as possible. 

These are applicable to both formal and informal settlement. The Municipality notes that the 

current water demand is unrealistically high due to the high water losses in the system and 

population growth. The Water Loss is still estimated at approximately 40%. 

The pipeline between Buisfontein and Tswelelang reservoirs is not adequate hence the 

Municipality cannot meet the current demand especially in Tswelelang and Lebaleng. 

 

  

 

 

                                                                                                                        T 3.1.1 

 

 

Total Use of Water by Sector (cubic meters)      

  Agriculture Forestry Industrial Domestic 
Unaccountable 
water losses 

     

Year -1 50 40 35 150 10      

Year 0 50 44 46 9 11      
        T 3.1.2      

           

           

           

           

           

 

Data for household service targets is sourced from table 
A10        
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T 3.1.2.1 

 

COMMENT ON WATER USE BY SECTOR: 

 

 

Forestry, Industrial and Agricultural Sectors rely mainly on Borehole water and our water 

caters for household use. 

 

A bulk of water is used for domestic use by the community. Farming is the second highest 

consumer of the municipal water. Even though some of the farmers sank boreholes, the 

recent drought is resulting in them turning to conventional water supply. 

 

  

 

T 3.1.2.2 
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Water Service Delivery Levels      

Households      

Description 
Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0      

Actual Actual Actual Actual 
     

  No. No. No. No.      

Water: (above min level)              

Piped water inside dwelling 2 635  2 649   2 655   3 155       

Piped water inside yard (but not in dwelling)  14 377   14 337   14 323   13 969       

Using public tap (within 200m from dwelling )      5 80   5 80       

Other water supply (within 200m)              

Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total              

Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage              

Water: (below min level)              

Using public tap (more than 200m from dwelling) 
               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï        

Other water supply (more than 200m from 
dwelling 

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï        

No water supply 
               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï        

     Below Minimum Service Level sub-total              

Below Minimum Service Level Percentage              

Total number of households*              

* - To include informal settlements      T 3.1.3       
 

 

Households - Water Service Delivery Levels below the minimum      

Households 

Description Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0 

  Actual Actual Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual 

  No. No. No. No. No. No. 

Formal Settlements             

Total households  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
Households below minimum service 

level 
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  

Proportion of households  below 
minimum service level 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Informal Settlements             

Total households  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
Households ts below minimum service 

level 
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  

Proportion of households ts below 
minimum service level 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

          T 3.1.4 
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Use data below to populate graph   

Access To Water 

Access to Water 

  

Proportion of households 
with access to water points* 

Proportion of households 
with access to piped water 

Proportion of households 
receiving 6 kl free# 

Year -2 22 70 62 

Year -1 22 70 62 

Year 0 25 72 65 

      T 3.1.5 

* Means access to 25 litres of potable water per day supplied within 200m of a household and with a minimum flow of 10 litres 
per minute 

# 6,000 litres of potable water supplied per formal connection per month  

             T 3.1.5 
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T 3.1.6 
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Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Water Services  

R'000 

Details Year 

2017/18 

Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 

Budget 

Adjustment  

Budget 

Actual Variance 

to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 114 385 102 861 102 861 124 585 (21 724) 

Expenditure:       

    Employees 7 117 9 835 9 835 7 603 2 232 

    Repairs and Maintenance 3 887 5 620 5 620 4 163 1 457 

    Other 51 615 60 940 60 940 66 916 289 089 

Total Operational 

Expenditure 

62 619 76 395 76 395 78 682 292 778 

Net Operational Expenditure 51 766 26 466 26 466 45 903 271 054 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are 

calculated by dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the 

Actual. 

T 3.1.8 
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Capital Expenditure Year : 18/19 
Water Services  

R' 000  

Capital Projects 

Year 18/19  
Budget Adjustment  

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance 

from original 
budget 

Total 
Project 
Value 

 

Total All            
Construction of water 
reticulation in 
Wolmaransstad EXT 17 -
phase 1 

975 975 688 287    
Replacement of asbestos 
bulk water pipeline with 
UPVC water pipeline in 
Wolmaransstad town. 8 000 8 000 7 575 425    
Augmentation of Bulk 
Water Supply in 
Makwassie / Lebaleng 
 18 974 18 974 1 434 17 540   

                                                                                                                                                                            T 3.1.9  
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COMMENT ON WATER SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL:  

 

  

In 18/19 financial year we replaced the old asbestos water pipe line in 

Wolmaransstad town and this resulted in less complaints emanating from the town 

itself and there was a notable reduction in the demand for water in Wolmaransstad 

town. 

 

The Municipality continues to suffer the high cost of tankering water to the following 

areas, namely Wolmaransstad extensions 10, 13 and 17. The cost of diesel incurred 

on the logistics is never recovered by the Municipality. The Bulk Water Supply 

Scheme between Buisfontein and Tswelelang was still in limbo as the project was 

suspended in April 2018 (Both appointed Contractors were offsite). 

 

There was a marked increase in the theft of water meters in the township forcing the  

Municipality to effect straight connections resulting in the approximate billing based 

on the historical consumption of the householders. These are sometimes queried as 

there is no proof of consumption 

 

The Bulk Sypply Augmentation project did noy yield the desired results. So it was 

abandoned. 

 

 

T 3.1.10 
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3.2 WASTE WATER (SANITATION) PROVISION 
 

INTRODUCTION TO SANITATION PROVISION 

 

 

The Municipality is still struggling to keep up with sewer blockages due to the following factors: 

 

i. There is insufficient water supply to the townships hence sewage stays in the sewers longer 

 than normal and this results in build-ups that eventually harden and create back-ups in the 

 system. 

ii. Most of the sewer blockage material recovered comprised of non-flushable 

   wipes that were not designed to be flushed and should not have been disposed of via 

   the sewerage systems. 

iii. Lack of vehicles to tow the Sewer-jets donated to Municipality by the Provincial government 

 

The Municipality is considering procuring the necessary fleet through the Government garage 

approach. 

 

The sewer reticulation and decommissioning of septic tanks in Makwassie town is in progress 

and should be completed by end of February 2020. This will put less pressure on our fleet as 

the 6 000 litre capacity honeysucker will be converted to a flat bed and will be utilized by the 

roads section for maintenance. 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T 3.2.1 
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Sanitation Service Delivery Levels 

*Households 

Description 
Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0 

Outcome Outcome Outcome Actual 

  No. No. No. No. 

Sanitation/sewerage: (above minimum level)         

Flush toilet (connected to sewerage) 
            

942  
            

600  
            

720              930  

Flush toilet (with septic tank) 
            

712  
            

952  
            

502              535  

Chemical toilet 
            

535  
            

535  
            

511              601  

Pit toilet (ventilated) 
            

124  
            

135  
            

103              100  

Other toilet provisions (above  min.service level) 
              

13  
              

13  
              

15                11  

                          Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total 
         

2,325  
         

2,236  
         

1,851           2,178  

                          Minimum Service Level and Above 
Percentage 68.9% 59.9% 55.5% 63.1% 

Sanitation/sewerage: (below minimum level)         

Bucket toilet 
            

502  
            

952  
            

938              720  

Other toilet provisions (below min.service level) 
            

535  
            

535  
            

535              535  

No toilet provisions 
              

10  
              

11  
              

12                15  

ï

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

Flush toilet
(connected

to
sewerage)

Flush toilet
(with septic

tank)

Chemical
toilet

Pit toilet
(ventilated)

Other toilet
provisions

(above
min.service

level)

Bucket toiletOther toilet
provisions

(below
min.service

level)

No toilet
provisions

Sanitation/Sewerage (above minimum 
level): Year 0
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                           Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 
         

1,047  
         

1,498  
         

1,485           1,271  

                           Below Minimum Service Level Percentage 31.1% 40.1% 44.5% 36.9% 

                              Total households 
         

3,372  
         

3,734  
         

3,336           3,449  

*Total number of households including informal settlements T 3.2.3 
 

Households - Sanitation Service Delivery Levels below the minimum 

Households 

Description 

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0 

Actual Actual Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual 

No. No. No. No. No. No. 

Formal Settlements             

Total households  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000       100,000  
Households below minimum service 

level 
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000         25,000  

Proportion of households  below 
minimum service level 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Informal Settlements             

Total households  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000  
     

100,000       100,000  
Households ts below minimum 

service level 
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000  
       

25,000         25,000  

Proportion of households ts below 
minimum service level 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

          T 3.2.4 

 

 

 

       

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

69

69.5

70

70.5

71

71.5

72

72.5

Proportion of households with access to sanitation

Access to Sanitation

Year -2

Year -1

Year 0
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Access To Sanitation     

Access to Sanitation     

  

Proportion of households with 
access to sanitation 

    

Year -2 70     

Year -1 70     

Year 0 72     

 

T 3.2.5 
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Waste Water (Sanitation) Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service 

Objectives  

Outline 

Service 

Targets 

Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 

Indicators 

 

*Previou

s Year 

  *Previou

s Year 

*Curren

t Year 

  *Curren

t Year 

*Curren

t Year 

*Followin

g Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

Provision of 

toilets within 

standard  

Additional 

Households 

(HHs) provided 

with minimum 

sanitation 

during the year 

(Number of HHs 

remaining 

without 

minimum 

sanitation at 

year end) 

4 200 

additional 

HHs  

2500 

additiona

l HHs 

5000 

additional 

HHs  

5 500 

additional 

HHs    

1 500 

additiona

l HHs    

5 500  5 500 3000 

                    

                    

                     
T 3.2.6 
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Employees:  Sanitation Services 

Job Level 

Year -1 Year 0 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 1 0 0% 

4 - 6 3 3 3 0 0% 

7 - 9 6 8 6 2 25% 

10 - 12 7 15 7 8 53% 

13 - 15 9 15 9 6 40% 

16 - 18 11 21 11 10 48% 

19 - 20 18 30 18 12 40% 

Total 55 93 55 38 41% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ósenior managementô) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                                                                                    
T 3.2.7 

 

 

 

Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Sanitation Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Installation of sewerline in 
Kgakala ext 4 (32 stands)  
 824 824 638 186 824 

const of sewer reticu, 
pumpingstation and decomm 
of septic tanks in Makwassie 
town - phase 2 
 

18 696 18 696 9 775 8 921 18 696 

1 Plate Compactor & 2 
drainage pumps 
 

44 44 0 44 44 

Refurbishment of 
Leeudoringstad Sewage 
Treatment Works 
 

12 000 12 000 9 688 2 312 12 000 

 

T 3.2.9 
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COMMENT ON SANITATION SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL:  

 

Due to lack of Operation and Maintenance Plans and Masterplans, the maintenance is 

carried out on a purely reactive basis. We acted on complaints received by the Municipality 

from the community. The Municipality was struggling to keep up with the unblocking of 

sewers due to the fact that only one sewer cleaning jetting equipment was earmarked for the 

whole Municipality which is in excess of 20 000 stands. 

 

The Construction of Sewer network, pumping station and decommissioning of septic tanks 

by June 2018 was standing at about 80%. The only challenge that we experienced is the 

quality of the backfill on the internal sewerlines installed by the Subcontractor. The main 

contractor was instructed not to pay the retention to the subbies unless these identified 

shortcomings were rectified. 

 

The Municipality has 2 (20 bar) sewerjets, the only challenge is the lack of suitably 

capacitated bakkies to tow them. All the bakkies we have are very light for theses sewerjets. 

 

 

 

T 3.2.10 

 

 

3.3 ELECTRICITY 
 

INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY 

 

The Maquassi Hills Local municipality is a licence holder of the following areas: 

Wolmaransstad, Leeudoringstad, Makwassie and the rural areas of Boskuil and Oersonskraal. 

In all these areas the Municipality installed prepaid electricity meters using a service provider 

by the name of CIGI Cell. 

 

The fact that the township where most of the residents live is an Eskom Licence area is a 

great disadvantage for the Municipality in terms of the potential revenue collection. On the other 

hand, it may be a blessing in disguise in that if it were to fall under the Municipality, it would be 

a tall order to operate and maintain the infrastructure due to lack of capacity of both the plant/ 

equipment and human capital. 

 

Due to aged underground infrastructure especially in Wolmaransstad town, there are 

spontaneous cable faults that are experienced from time to time and it normally catches the 

Municipality by surprise. The condition Assessment of all electrical infrastructure and proposed 

intervention plans that costed can save the Municipality a lot of pain. 

 

T 3.3.1 

 



  

  51 
 

 

Electricity Service Delivery Levels 
Households 

Description 

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0 

Actual Actual Actual Actual 

No. No. No. No. 

Energy: (above minimum level)         

Electricity (at least min.service level) 2571 2571 2571 2571 

Electricity - prepaid (min.service level) 0 0 0 0 

Minimum Service Level and Above sub-
total 2571 2571 2571 2571 

Minimum Service Level and Above 
Percentage 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Energy: (below minimum level)         

Electricity (< min.service level) 0 0 0 0 

Electricity - prepaid (< min. service level) 0 0 0 0 

Other energy sources 0 0 0 0 

Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 0 0 0 0 

Below Minimum Service Level 
Percentage 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Total number of households 2571 2571 2571 2571 

      T 3.3.3 

 

 

 

Households - Electricity Service Delivery Levels below the minimum 

          Households 

Description 

Year -3 
Year 

2015/16 
Year 

2016/17 
Year 2018/19 

Actual Actual Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual 

  No. No. No. No. No. No. 

Formal Settlements             

Total households   0   0   0   20 555  0    20 555 
Households below minimum service 

level  0   0   0   2 732  0      2 732 

Proportion of households  below 
minimum service level    13%      13% 

Informal Settlements             

Total households  7 000 7 000  1 700 1 700  1 700 1 700 
Households totals below minimum 

service level  7 000  7 000   7 000  1 700 1 700 1 700 

Proportion of households totals below 
minimum service level 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

          T 3.3.4 
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Electricity Service Policy Taken From IDP 

Service 

Objective 

 

       Service 

indicators 

(i) 

Outline 

Service 

Targets 

 

(iii) 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 

1 

Year3 

Targe

t 

Actu

al 

Target Actu

al 

Target 

x 
Previo

us 
year 
(iii) 

 

(iv) 
Previo

us year 
(v) 

Curre
nt 

year 
(vi) (vii) 

Curre
nt 

year 
(viii) 

Curre
nt 

year 
(viii) 

x 
Followin
g year 

(x) 

Service Objective 

Replaceme

nt of 1.5km 

of 

electricity 

cable in 

Wolmarans

stad town 

1.5 km 

of electric 

cable 

upgraded 

       1 090 

househo

lds 

Electrificati

on of 

Boskuil/ 

Oersonskra

al infills 

Electrify 

50 inflls in 

Boskuil 

and 

Oesronskr

aal 

       50 hh 

connect

ed to 

the grid 

T 3.3.5 

 

  



  

  53 
 

Employees:  Electricity Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 2 2 2 0 0% 

4 - 6 2 2 2 0 0% 

7 - 9 0 1 0 1 100% 

10 - 12 1 1 1 1 100% 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0% 

16 - 18 8 8 8 0 0% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total 13 14 13 2 14% 

T 3.3.6 

 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Electricity Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year 17/18 Year 18/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 40 514  59 685 59 685 54 534 5 151 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 4 378  4 646 4 646 3 937 709 

    Repairs and Maintenance 3 221 4 000 4 000 924 3 076 

    Other 34 304 52 318 52 318 218 52 100 

Total Operational Expenditure 41 902  60 964 60 964 5 079 55 885 

Net Operational Expenditure 1 388 ( 1 279 ) ( 1 279 ) 49 455 (50 734)  

T 3.3.7 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Electricity Services 

  wΩ ллл 

Year 2018/19 

Capital Projects Budget Adjustment 

Budget 

Actual 

Expenditure 

Variance from 

original budget 

Total Project 

Value 

Installation of one High Mast 
Light in Rulaganyang 

 

303 303 221 82 303 

Strydpoort HV Line 

 
2 230 2 230 0 2 230 2 230 

Installation of two High Mast 
Lights inkgakala ext 3  

 

500 500 412 88 500 

Installation of two High Mast 
Lights inkgakala ext 4 

 

750 750 661 89 750 

                                                                                                                                                                                            T 

3.3.8 

 

 



 

55 
 

 

 

COMMENT ON ELECTRICITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

The division continue to suffer due to aged Service Delivery fleet. This division has the oldest crane truck (at 35 years old).Needless 

to say the performance is badly affected due to vehicles going in and out of then workshop. 

 

The Division managed to replace a total  bulbs on the street lights by end of June 2019. Cable faults were identified and fixed. 

Despite all these achievements the Municipality continues to suffer outages due to old delapidated cables especially in the towns. 

So there will be a need to undertake assessments of electricity infrastructure assets and cost the remedial actions for future 

intereventions. 

T 3.3.9 
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3.4 WASTE MANAGEMENT (THIS SECTION TO INCLUDE: REFUSE COLLECTIONS, WASTE DISPOSAL, STREET CLEANING AND 

RECYCLING) 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 

We have a weekly programme of waste collection for businesses, residential, government departments and illegal dumpings. 

 

T 3.4.1 
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Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels 
      Households 

Description 
Year -3 Year -2 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 
2018/19 

Actual Actual Actual Actual 

  No. No. No. No. 

Solid Waste Removal: (Minimum 
level)         

Removed at least once a week 
                   

17 148 
                   

17 148 17 148 17 148 

Minimum Service Level and 
Above sub-total 70%  75% 75% 75% 

Minimum Service Level and 
Above percentage 70% 70% 70% 70% 

Solid Waste Removal: (Below 
minimum level)       

Removed less frequently than 
once a week 

                 
4 220 

                 
0 4 220 4 220 

Using communal refuse dump 
                 

1 100 
                 

3 600 3 600 3 600 

Using own refuse dump 
                 

4 220 
                 

6 720  6 720 6 720 

Other rubbish disposal 
                 

0  
                 

0 0 0 

No rubbish disposal  0              
                     

0 0 0 

Below Minimum Service Level 
sub-total 

              
5 5 320   10 320          10 320          10 320          

Below Minimum Service Level 
percentage 29.1% 49.5% 49,5%          49,5%          

Total number of households 
              

18 248 
              

20 848 20 848 20 848 
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Households - Solid Waste Service Delivery Levels below the minimum 

 
          Households 

Description 

Year -3 
Year 

2015/16 
Year 

2016/17 
Year 2018/19 

Actual Actual Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual 

  No. No. No. No. No. No. 

Formal Settlements             

Total households  
              

15  
              

15  
              

16     
Households below minimum 

service level 
                

2  
                

3  
                

3  8 966 415 8 966 415 6 695 096 
Proportion of households  below 

minimum service level 14% 17% 18%    

Informal Settlements       8 966 415 8 966 415 6 695 096 

Total households  
                

2  
                

5  
                

3     
Households totals below minimum 

service level 
                

3  
                

5  
                

3  8 966 415 8 966 415 6 695 09 
Proportion of households totals 

below minimum service level 125% 100% 100%    

          T 3.4.3 
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Waste Management Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives  Outline Service Targets Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 18/19 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

Fencing of 1  landfill site Fencing of 1  landfill site 
0 0 0 0  0 1 2 

  
 

          

          

 
 

        

                    

                     

T 3.4.4 
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Employees:  Solid Waste Management Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 o 0 0 0% 

4 - 6 1 2 1 1 50% 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0% 

10 - 12 8 8 6 2 80% 

13 - 15 1 5 5 0 100% 

16 - 18 22 29 22 7 80% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total 32 44 34 10 75% 

T3.4.5 

 

Employees: Waste Disposal and Other Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2016/17 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0% 

4 - 6 0 0 0 0 0% 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0% 

10 - 12 0 0 0 0 0% 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0% 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total 0 0 0 0 0% 

                                                                                                                                                                                           
T3.4.6 Not Applicable 
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Financial Performance Year 0: Solid Waste Management Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year 2017/2018 Year 2018/2019 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 23 299 17 502 17 502 22 003 (4 501) 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 6 023 8 298 8 298 6 428 1 870 

    Repairs and Maintenance 60 300 300 127 173 

    Other 281 368 368 140 228 

Total Operational Expenditure 6 364 8 966 8 966 6695 2 271 

Net Operational Expenditure 16 935 8 536 8 539 15 308 ( 2 230 ) 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are 023 calculated by 
dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual. T 3.4.7 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 0: Waste Disposal and Other Services 

R'000 

Details 

Year -17/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue  0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:           

    Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

    Repairs and Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 

    Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Operational Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 

Net Operational Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0  

T 3.4.8 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Waste Management Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All           

            

Project A:   0  0  0 0  0 

Project B  0  0  0 0  0 

Project C  0  0  0 0  0 

Project D  0  0  0 0  0 

No Project. 

T 3.4.9 

 

COMMENT ON WASTE MANGEMENT SERVICE PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

No capital project. 

T 3.4.10 
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3.5 HOUSING 
 

INTRODUCTION TO HOUSING. 

This function is performed by the Department of Local Government and Human Settlement.  

 

T 3.5.1 

 

 

 

 

 

Percentage of households with access to basic housing 

Year 
end 

Total households  
(including in formal and 
informal settlements) 

Households in formal 
settlements 

Percentage of HHs in formal 
settlements 

Year -3 15000                                        12000                                  80% 

Year -2 15500 13500 87% 

Year 1 18000 15000 83% 

Year 0 20000 19000 95% 

      T3.5.2 
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Housing Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives  Outline Service 
Targets 

Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

Installation of 
services for new 
township 
development in 
Lebaleng ext 6 

729 Residential sites 

729 621 0 0 0 0 0 108 

Installation of 
services for new 
township 
development in 
Rulaganyang ext 2 298 Residential sites 

298 298 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Provide new 
settlement in 
Kgakala(ext 10) 1600 Residential sites 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1600 

Installation of 
services in 
Wolmarasstad ext 
17,18  4000 Residential sites  4000 4000  3442  3442  3442  0 0             558 

The Department of Local Government and Human Settlement is currently doing this function with the municipality assisting in terms of township 
establishment, identification of beneficiaries, allocation of sites and development of business plans for funding. 

T3.5.3 
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Employees:  Housing Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 1 0 
100% 

4 - 6 1 1 1 0 100% 

7 - 9 3 3 3 0 100% 

10 - 12 0 2 0 2 0% 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0% 

16 - 18 1 1 1 0 0% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total 6 8 6 2 75% 

                                                                                                                                                                                      T 
3.5.4 

 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 0: Housing Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year -17/18 Year 18/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 1 814 2 429 2 429 2 352 77 

    Repairs and Maintenance         0 0 0 0 0 

    Other     303 2 370 2 370 564 1 806 

Total Operational 
Expenditure   2 117 4 799 4 799 2 916 1 883 

Net Operational Expenditure     2 117 4 799 4 799 2 916 1 883 

Service performed by Province. 

T 3.5.5 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE HOUSING SERVICE OVERALL: 

This function is performed by the Department of Local Government and Human Settlement. 

 

T 3.5.7 

 

3.6 FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 
 

INTRODUCTION TO FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 

 

The municipality has an Indigent Register and Policy. We provide Free Basic Services to all 

households whose monthly gross income is less than R3 500.00 and in addition those 

households which have RDP Houses. Community members are urged to register through ward 

committees and the use of Ward Councillors who also have to assist identify qualifing 

households and help process Indigent registration.  

T 3.6.1 

 

 

 

                                                         HOUSING SERVICES. 

This function is performed by the Department of Local Government and Human Settlement. 

 

T 3.6.2 
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Number of households 

 
Total 

Households earning less than R1,100 per month 

  
Free Basic 

Water 
Free Basic 
Sanitation 

Free Basic 
Electricity 

Free Basic 
Refuse 

Total  
Access  

%   Access  %   Access  %   Access  %  

Year -2 16,784 3,500 2,100 60% 2,100 60% 2,100 60% 2,100 60% 

Year -1 16,784 2,200 2,200 100% 2,200 100% 1,995 91% 2,200 100% 

Year 0 16,784 3,500 518 15% 518 15% 518 15% 518 15% 

                 T 3.6.3 
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Free Basic Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 

Provision of 
alternative support 
to low income 
households that do 
not receive all Free 
Basic Services 

Low income households 
(LIHs) who do not 
receive all the free basic 
services but do receive 
alternative support (Total 
number of LIHs not in 
receipt of free basic 
services) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

 T 3.6.5 
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COMMENT ON FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT: 

The municipality has an Indigent Register and Policy. We provide Free Basic Services to all 

households whose monthly gross income is less than R3 500.00. The municipality is still 

looking for ways and means of exending Free Basic Services to rural areas, in the form of 

Alternative Energy. 

T 3.6.6 

 

COMPONENT B: ROAD TRANSPORT  
This component includes: roads; transport; and waste water (storm water drainage). 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ROAD TRANSPORT 

The Municipality implements road infrastructure upgrades in the historically disadvantaged 

utilizing the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG). Due to low revenue collection most of the 

roads in the former white towns are dilapidated, fraught with manholes. 

 

The main challenge is that the stormwater is drained on surface and due to insufficient 

drainage slopes the stormwater percolates these roads weakening the underlying layers 

resulting in potholes. 

 

The Municipality soughts assistance from the Department of Public Works from time to time 

to assust with the maintenance of roads. 

 

The Department of Transport implemented a Rural Roads Asset Management System 

(RRAMS) which seeks to capture condition assessments of gravel and surfaced roads and 

propose remedial actions that are costed. This is a step in the right direction  

In developing a Roads Master Plan. 

 

T 3.6.7 

 

3.7 ROADS 

INTRODUCTION TO ROADS. 

The Asset Management Plan was done in 2010 and it shows the following backlog in terms 

of Roads and Storm water: 

 

Wolmaransstad ï 31.km 

Tswelelang ï 17.2km 

Makwassie (including Lebaleng) ï 33.7km 

Leeudoringstad (including Kgakala) ï 9.0km 

Witpoort (including Rulaganyang) ï 10.3km 

 

However, the rate at which the Municipality is taking in upgrading these gravel roads to either 

tar or paved blocks it will not achieve the eradication of these gravel roads in the next 30 years. 

 

 

T 3.7.1 
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Gravel Road Infrastructure 
        Kilometres 

  

Total gravel 
roads 

New gravel roads 
constructed 

Gravel roads 
upgraded to tar 

Gravel roads 
graded/maintained 

Year 
2016/17 114 0 3.2 2km 

2017/18 114 0 0 2 km 

2018/19 114km 0 0 1.5km 

        T 3.7.2 

 

 

Tarred Road Infrastructure 

Kilometres 

  

Total tarred 
roads 

New 
tar 

roads 

Existing tar 
roads re-tarred 

Existing tar roads 
re-sheeted 

Tar roads maintained 

Year 
2016/17 114 0 0 15 15 

2017/18 114 0 0 25 140 

2018/19 114 0 0 0 2 

                                                                                                                                                                       

T3.7.3 

 

Cost of Construction/Maintenance 
R' 000 

Year 

Gravel Tar 

New Gravel - Tar Maintained New Re-worked Maintained 

2016/17 0 0 1km 0 0 1km 

2017/18 0 0 1.4 km 0 0 1.4 km 

2018/19 0 0 2 km 0 0 2 km 

            T 3.7.4 
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T 3.7.4.1
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Road Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  
Maintain surfaced roads 2 km 0 0 1.8km 1.8 km 1.8km 0 2km 3km 

          

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

 T 3.7.6 
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Employees: Road Services 

Job Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 1 1 0 0 

4 - 6 0 3 3 0 0 

7 - 9 2 8 6 0 0 

10 - 12 8 15 7 0 0 

13 - 15 6 15 9 0 0 

16 - 18 10 21 11 0 0 

19 - 20 12 30 18 0 0 

Total 38 93 55 0 0 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 
June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant 
and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ósenior managementô) then dividing that total by 250 
to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                             T3.7.7 

 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Road Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue  0 145 145 97 48 

Expenditure:       

    Employees 3 470 4 280 4 208 3 786 494 

    Repairs and Maintenance 144 300 300 197 103 

    Other 1 567 3 161 3 161 4 814 (1 653) 

Total Operational Expenditure 5 181 7 741 7 741 8 797 ( 1 605 ) 

Net Operational Expenditure 5 181 ( 7 596 ) ( 7 596 ) ( 8 700 ) ( 1 557 ) 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are calculated 
by dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual. T 3.7.8 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Road Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All        

        

      
Upgrading of Stormwater in 
Mogokare street  
 855 855 829 26  

         

         
Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including 
past and future expenditure as appropriate. T 3.7.9 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF ROADS OVERALL: 

 

  The Municipality does not have Financial surplus hence cannot fund projects from internal 

coffers. They heavily rely on conditional grants. This has a negative impact on roads in the 

urban areas as they cannot be refurbished or upgraded. Some of them have collapsed to 

such an extent that pothole patching would be a waste of money. 

 

National Treasury has given Municipalities to go ahead and implement operations and 

maintenance projects as long as they are captured in the Rural Roads Asset Management 

Systems (RRAMS). This is a positive step taking into consideration that the Municipality 

budgets for Road maintenance on annual basis, however due to low revenue collection these 

plans are never implemented. 

 

T 3.7.10 
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3.8 TRANSPORT (INCLUDING VEHICLE LICENSING & PUBLIC BUS OPERATION)  
 

INTRODUCTION TO TRANSPORT 

Traffic Department is in for vehicle roadworthy tests, licensing and traffic management only 

no Municipal bus services.                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                      T 3.8.1 
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Municipal Bus Service Data 

  Details 

Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 

Actual No. Estimate No. Actual No. Estimate No. 

1 Passenger journeys         

2 Seats available for all journeys         

3 Average Unused Bus Capacity for all journeys %       

4 Size of bus fleet at year end         

5 
Average number of Buses off the road at any one 
time %       

6 Proportion of the fleet off road road at any one time %       

7 No. of Bus journeys scheduled         

8 No. of journeys cancelled         

9 Proportion of journeys cancelled %       

Not applicable to Maquassi-Hills Municipalty                                                                                                                                                                                             T 3.8.2 
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3.9 WASTE WATER (STORMWATER DRAINAGE) 
 

INTRODUCTION TO STORMWATER DRAINAGE 

 

    

   The stormwater upgrades are normally done silmutaneously as the Roads upgrades. 

However, in 2017/18 financial year the Municipality broke away from this tradition by 

upgrading about 1.3 km of stormwater along Mogokare street due to flooding of the houses 

adjacent to the road. We further installed the stormwater pipline to take away the stormwater 

to the veld behind the railway line on the southern side of the the township. 

 

It is to be noted that Makwassie/ Lebaleng area has a very flat terrain and so it is a big 

challenge to drain stormwater effectively. There will always be incidents of flodding from time 

to time. 

 

Unfortunately we do not a have stormwater management plan. The RRAMS excluded the 

stormwater portion which is an anomaly taking into consideration these items normally go 

together. 

 

The main challenge we have in terms of stormwater draainage is that the main oulets are 

blocked due to community throwing refuse into the se stormwater channels. 

                                  

 

T 3.9.1 

 

Storm water Infrastructure 
Kilometres 

 Year 

Total Storm water 
measures 

New storm water 
measures 

Storm water 
measures upgraded 

Storm water measures 
maintained 

2016/17 0 2km 0 2km 

2017/18 1.38 km 0.68 m 0.7m 1.38km 

2018/19 0 0 0 0 

        T 3.9.2 

 

 

Cost of Construction/Maintenance 
R' 000 

 Year Storm water Measures 

  New Upgraded Maintained 

2016/17 0 0 0 

2017/18 R 3.8m/ metre R 2.0 million/ metre R 0.4m/ metre 

2018/19 0 0 0 

      T 3.9.3 
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T 3.9.4 
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Stormwater Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 

 
*Previous 

Year 

  
*Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 

To upgrade 
stormwater and install 
new pipeline in 
Mogokare street 

1.38km    1.38km 1.38km    

           

           

                    

                    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    T 3.9.5 
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Employees:  Storm water Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies 
(as a % of 

total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 1 0 0% 

4 - 6 `1 1 1 0 0% 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0 

10 - 12 0 1 1 1 100% 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 9 9 9 0 0% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0  
Total 11 12 11 1 8% 

                                
                                                                                                                                                                                                       

T 3.9.6 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Storm water Services   
R'000  

Details 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19  
Actual Original 

Budget 
Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

 
Total 

Operational 
Revenue 0 0 0 0 0  

Expenditure:            
    

Employees 0 0 0 0 0  
    Repairs 

and 
Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0  

    Other 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 

Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0  
Net 

Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0  
As reflected in roads section since the financial expenditure is combined as 

roads and storm water T 3.9.7  
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Storm water Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All       

       

 

    

 

    
 

 

    
 

 

      

No storm water project for the year under review. 

T 3.9.8 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF STORMWATER DRAINAGE OVERALL: 

 

The performance of the storm water drainage in different parts of the municipality. 

 

Tswelelang Township 

 

The design of the surfaced roads is such that storm water drains in the centre of the road 

and there is no underground drainage. Consequently either water stands in the road 

increasing the incidence of accidents or flooding of houses is the order of the day. 

 

Wolmaransstad extensions 

 

Refuse is dumped in the storm water channels resulting in flooding especially in extension 

13 outlying areas. 

 

There are no 5-year targets now because of lack of storm water Masterplan. 

 

Lebaleng township 

 

Lebaleng is generally flat and therefore very difficult to drain the stormwater efficiently. 

However, the Municipality upgraded the stormwater open channel along Mogokare by 

increasing the cross-sectional area. Ever since commissioning of this project we have 

experienced an intense storm and hence it hasnôt really been tested. 

T3.9.9 
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COMPONENT C: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

This component includes: planning; and local economic development. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

  The municipality has Local Economic Department which deals with planning regarding 

opportunities and challenges in the fields of economic development. Amongst other 

opportunities there is small scale mining, farming and tourism. 

T 3.10 

 

3.10 PLANNING 
 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING 

We donôt have a fully-fledged unit for planning but most of the planning work is done through 

Cooperate services, LED and IDP sections. 

T 3.10.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Applications for Land Use Development 

Detail Formalisation of 
Townships Rezoning Built Environment 

Year 
2015/16 

Year 
2016/17 

Year 
2015/16 

Year 
2016/17 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 
2018/19 

Planning application 
received 

0 0 3 3 

131 114 

Determination made in year 
of receipt 

0 0 3 3 

131 130 

Determination made in 
following year 

0 0 0 1 

0 0 

Applications withdrawn 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 

Applications outstanding at 
year end 

0 0 1 1 

0 0 

                                                                                                                                                

  T 3.10.2 
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Planning Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service 
Objectives  

Outline Service Targets Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 *Previous 
Year 

  *Previous 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current Year *Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) 
 

(ix) (x) 

Service Objective 0 

 

0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

     
    

- 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

 - 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

 - 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

 - 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

-                   

None at this stage T 3.10.3 
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Employees:  Planning Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0% 

4 - 6 0 0 0 0 0% 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0% 

10 - 
12 0 0 0 0 0% 

13 - 
15 0 0 0 0 0% 

16 - 
18 0 0 0 0 0% 

19 - 
20 0 0 0 0 0% 

Total 0 0 0 0 0% 

Planning in relation to Land Use Management is done by service providers.                                         T 3.10.4 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Planning Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational 
Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure: 0 0 0 0 0 

    Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

    Repairs and 
Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 

    Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 

Net Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 

No unit in place 

T 3.10.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Planning Services 

R' 000 

Capital 
Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All  0 0 0    

            

Project A 0 0 0  0 

Project B 0 0 0  0 

Project C 0 0 0  0 

Project D 0 0 0  0 

Total project: no capital expenditure 

T 3.10.6 

      
 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF PHYSICAL PLANNING OVERALL: 

 

No capital project. 

T 3.10.7 
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3.11 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING TOURISM AND MARKET 
PLACES) 
 

INTRODUCTION TO LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Local Economic Development is an on-going process, rather than a single project. 

Furthermore, it then means a variety of approaches would be adopted to achieve the intended 

goals. It involves identifying and using local resources, ideas and skills to stimulate economic 

growth and development.  The aim of LED is to create enterprise development and employment 

opportunities for local residents, alleviate poverty and redistribute resources and opportunities 

to the benefit of all local residents.   In order for Local Economic Development (LED) to be 

effective, a community (local ordinary people, entrepreneurs and local government) with the 

support of knowledgeable individuals and experts needs to identify and consider its own 

economic strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats and agree on a shared strategy. 

Furthermore, LED refers to development strategies that are territorially based, locally owned 

and managed and aimed primarily at increasing employment and economic growth.  

  

For Maquassi municipality to fulfil its role in economic development, it has to purposefully 

deliver on the following:  

  

1. Provide a clear policy guideline on local economic development through effective political 

will and engagement and also ensure efficient implementation of the LED policy.  

2. Creating an Enabling environment ï provision of core enterprise development services, 

engaging the private sector and reduction of red tape.  

3. Promote LED ï adopt an integrated planning and approach in implementation of projects 

and programs.  

4. Capacity Development ï identify capacity and skills deficiencies and act accordingly  

5. Political Championship- A leader who will lobby and advocate for the adoption and 

implementation of the strategy with Council and with the broader external stakeholders. 

 

T 3.11.1 

 

 

Economic Activity by Sector 
R '000 

Sector 
Year 

2016/17 
Year 

2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Agric, forestry and fishing 7 7 7 

Mining and quarrying 3 2 2 

Manufacturing 4 4 4 

Wholesale and retail trade 10 11 11 

Finance, property, etc. 9 8 8 

Govt, community and social services 20 22 22 

Infrastructure services 9 8 8 

Total 62 62 62 

    T 3.11.2 
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Economic Employment by Sector 
      Jobs 

Sector 
Year 2 Year -1 Year 2018/19 

No. No. No. 

Agric, forestry and fishing 1,500 1300 1250 

Mining and quarrying 800 600 400 

Manufacturing 700 700 650 

Wholesale and retail trade 3,800 4500 4800 

Finance, property, etc. 1,000 2000 2200 

Govt, community and social services 2,000 4000 4000 

Infrastructure services 2,000 3500 3000 

Total 11800 14 800 16 300 

      T 3.11.3 

 

COMMENT ON LOCAL JOB OPPORTUNITIES: 

 

An overview of the existing activities and strengths, as well as constraints to development, is 

provided for each economic sector, namely Agriculture, Mining, Manufacturing, Utilities & 

Construction, Transport & Communications, Finance & Business Services, Social/Community 

Services, as well as Tourism. Development potential for each sector will be identified, 

according to existing and latent comparative advantages and the latest market and technology 

trends. 

 

Potential growth industries that hold opportunities for the Maquassi Hills Local Municipal 

economy are discussed in more detail through value chain analyses for these high potential 

industries. After indicating the typical components within each value chain, a gap analysis will 

point out missing or 

Inadequate elements that should be addressed in the Local Municipality. 

 

Identified development opportunities will then be packaged in terms of clustering potential and 

agglomeration advantages by taking into account economic linkages with other sector. 

 

Some of the criteria that were taken into account to evaluate an economic sector in terms of 

development potential include the following: 

 

 

 

 

T 3.11.4 
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Jobs Created during Year 0 by LED Initiatives (Excluding EPWP projects) 

Total Jobs created / 
Top 3 initiatives 

Jobs created  Jobs 
lost/displaced 

by other 
initiatives 

Net total jobs 
created in year 

Method of validating jobs 
created/lost 

No. No. No.   

Total  (all initiatives)         

Year -2 323 0 323 Project reports 

Year -1 14 0 14 Project reports 

Year 0 97 0 97 Project reports 

          

 A  construction of youth 
centre in Tswelelang and 
Landscaping project ( 
MIG PROJECTS) (Year 
0) 15 0 15 Project reports 

Initiative B (OTHER 
GOVERNMENT) 
INITIATIVES (Year 0) 18 0 18 Government reports 

Initiative C PRIVATE 
SECTOR INITIATIVE 
(Year 0) 64 0 64 Project reports 

        T 3.11.5 
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Job creation through EPWP* projects 

Details 

EPWP Projects  Jobs created 
through EPWP 

projects  

No. No. 

Year 2016/17 1 184 

Year  2017/18 2 288 

Year  2018/2019 1 158 

* - Extended Public Works 
Programme   T 3.11.6 
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Local Economic Development Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives  Outlin
e 

Service 
Targets 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  

*Previous Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Followin
g Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

SMME's Training 50 50 6 50 55 3 40 50 0 

Workshops 
Conducted 

2 4 12 4 5 11 2 2 2 

Participation on 
Exhibitions 2 2 0 2 1 0 2 2 0 

                  

                    

                     

T 3.11.7 
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Employees: Local Economic Development Services 

Job 
Level 

Year -1 Year 0 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 1 0 0% 

4 - 6 1 1 1 0 0% 

7 - 9           

10 - 12           

13 - 15           

16 - 18           

19 - 20           

Total           

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 June. *Posts must be established and 
funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and 
public holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ósenior managementô) then dividing that total 
by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                                        T 3.11.8 
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Employees: Local Economic Development Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 1 1 0 

4 - 6 1 1 1 1 0 

7 - 9 0  0 0 0 0 

10 - 12 0 0 0 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 2 2 2 2 0 

.                                                                                                                                                                             T 3.11.8 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19 Local Economic Development Services  
 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational 
Revenue  179 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 0 373 373 373 0 

    Repairs and 
Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 

    Other 41 280 280 194 86 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 41 653 653 567 86 

Net Operational 
Expenditure 138 653 653 567 86 

 

T 3.11.9 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Economic Development Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All       

      ,     

Project A :  
Construction of Hawker 
Stalls in Wolmaransstad 

 

2 597 
 

2 597 

2 376 
 221  

Project B Landscping of 
Youth centre in Tswelelang. 711 711 656 55 0  

T 3.11.10 

. 

 

COMMENT ON LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

  

    We managed to create temporary job opportunities through Municipal Projects and helped 

our people to start their own businesses, but we believe we can do more if Council starts to 

budget for LED Capital Projects and involve Private Sector on our Planning and Development 

                                                                

                                                                                                                                  T 3.11.11 
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COMPONENT D: COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICES  
 

This component includes: libraries and archives; museums arts and galleries; community 

halls; cemeteries and crematoria; child care; aged care; social programmes, theatres. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

Maquassi Hills Local Municipality is responsible for library services, community halls and 

cemeteries. Our main function is to manage and maintain all the libraries, community halls and 

cemeteries to ensure that our communities have access to decent community facilities and 

also to provide such services where they are needed. We receive funding in a form of grants 

on an annual basis for Library services. 

 

T 3.1. 2 

 

 

3.12 LIBRARIES; ARCHIEVES; MUSEUMS; GALLERIES; COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES; OTHER (THEATRES, ZOOS, ETC) 
 
 

INTRODUCTION TO LIBRARIES; ARCHIEVES; MUSEUMS; GALLERIES; COMMUNITY 

FACILITIES 

 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 T3.12.1 

 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR LIBRARIES; ARCHIVES; MUSEUMS; GALLERIES; 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES; OTHER (THEATRES, ZOOS, ETC) 

 

 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 

T 3.12.2 
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Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service 
Objectives  

Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 *Previous 
Year 

  *Previous 
Year *Current Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current Year *Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

 To 
maintain 
community 
libraries 

6 community 
libraries to be 
cleaned. 

6  6 6  6 6 6 6 7 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                     

T 3.12.3 
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Employees:  Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3      

4 - 6      

7 - 9      

10 - 12      

13 - 15      

16 - 18      

19 - 20      

Total      

                                                                                                                                                                                    
T 3.12.4 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational 
Revenue 1 608 803 803 574 229 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 4 852 21 21 761 740 

    Repairs and 
Maintenance 98 130 130 136 (6) 

    Other 10 753 444 444 135 309 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 15 703 595 595 1 032 (437) 

Net Operational 
Expenditure (14 095 ) 208 208 (458) (208) 

Not Applicable. 

T 3.12.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All   0 0  0  0    

            

Project A :  
LEEUDORINGSTAD 
LIBRARY BUILDING 
IMPROVEMENT TO 
ADD A COMPUTER 
LAB 

  38 38 40   (2) 

Project B :  
LEEUDORINGSTAD 
LIBRARY FURITURE 

  100 100 92   8  

T 3.12.6 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF LIBRARIES; ARCHIVES; MUSEUMS; 

GALLERIES; COMMUNITY FACILITIES; OTHER (THEATRES, ZOOS, ETC) OVERALL: 

 

 We only have Libraries and the rest donôt apply. There was no capital project for the year 

under review                                                                                                                                   

T 3.12.7 

 

3.13 CEMETORIES AND CREMATORIUMS 
 

INTRODUCTION TO CEMETERIES & CREMATORIUMS 

 

This function is performed by the municipality by providing land and space for burials, further 

to maintain the said cemeteries. 

 

 

 

 

T 3.13.1 
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SERVICE STATISTICS FOR CEMETORIES & CREMATORIUMS. 

 

The following are statistics of the number of graves that were sold in different units, 

Wolmaransstad/Tswelelang= 346 

Leeudoringstad/Kgakala=65 

Witpoort/Rulaganyang=10 

Makwassie/Lebaleng=47 

 

T 3.13.2 
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Cemeteries and Crematoriums Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives  Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 

 *Previous 
Year 

  *Previ
ous 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Follow
ing Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

General 

maintenance of 

cemeteries ð fencing 

and gates.  

Maintain 7 
cemeteries in 
Maquassi-Hills. 

 7  7 7   7 6   7  7  7 

Fencing of the 
Cemetery Ext 15  

 Fencing of 
the Cemeteries 

 0 0 0 1  0   0 1  1  

 New cemetery in 
Kgakala    0  0  0  0  0  1  1  2 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                     

T 3.13.3 
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Employees:  Cemeteries and Crematoriums  

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0 

4 - 6 0 0 0 0 0 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0 

10 - 12 1 0 0 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 1 4 1 3 75% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 2 4 1 3  

                                                                                                                                                                                           
T 3.13.4 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Cemeteries and Crematoriums  

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational 
Revenue  159 600 600 174 426 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 542 1 174 1 174 668 506 

    Repairs and 
Maintenance 10 2 2 2 0 

    Other 562 114 114 36 78 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 665 1 290 1 290 706 584 

Net Operational 
Expenditure (506) (690) (690) (532) (158) 

 

T 3.13.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Cemeteries and Crematoriums  

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total 
Project 
Value 

Total All  0 0 0 0%   

            

Project A 0 0 0  0 

Project B 0 0 0  0 

Project C 0 0 0 0% 0 

Project D 0 0 0 0% 0 

No Capital Project for 2018/2019 

T 3.13.6 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF CEMETORIES & CREMATORIUMS OVERALL: 

We need to properly fence all our cemeteries as the animals are destroying graves and 

tombstones. We will establish new cemeteries as the old ones are about to reach the end of 

their lifespan. 

 

T 3.13.7 
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3.14 CHILD CARE; AGED CARE; SOCIAL PROGRAMMES  
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CHILD CARE; AGED CARE; SOCIAL PROGRAMMES 

Not applicable 

T 3.14.1 

 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR CHILD CARE 

 

Not applicable 

T 3.14.2 
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Child Care; Aged Care; Social Programmes Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives  

Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 
*Previous 

Year 

  
*Previous 

Year 
*Current 

Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

NOT APPLICABLE TO THE MUNICIPALITY 

T 3.14.3 
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COMPONENT E: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 

This component includes: pollution control; biodiversity and landscape; and costal protection.  

 

INTRODUCTION TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 

NOT APPLICABLE 

T 3.14 

 

3.15 POLLUTION CONTROL 
 

INTRODUCTION TO POLLUTION CONTROL 

 

This functuion is performed by the District Municipality and not Maquassi-Hills Local 

Municipality 

 

T 3.15.1 

 

 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR POLLUTION CONTROL 

 

NOT AVAILABLE. 

T 3.15.2 
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Pollution Control Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 

Objectives  
Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year 0   Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 *Previous 
Year 

  *Previous 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx  
 0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

   0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

                    

   0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

                    

   0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

                    

   0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

                    

   0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 Not Applicable. 

T 3.15.3 
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Employees:  Pollution Control 

Job 
Level 

Year -1 Year 0 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3          

4 - 6          

7 - 9          

10 - 12          

13 - 15          

16 - 18          

19 - 20          

Total          

              Not applicable                                                                                                                                 
T 3.15.4 
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Financial Performance Year 0: Pollution Control 

R'000 

Details 

Year -1 Year 0 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue          

Expenditure:          

    Employees          

    Repairs and Maintenance          

    Other          

Total Operational 
Expenditure          

Net Operational Expenditure          
Not applicable 

T 3.15.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 0: Pollution Control 

R' 000 

Capital 
Projects 

Year 0 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance from original budget Total 
Project 
Value 

Total All           

           

Project 
A          

Project 
B          

Project 
C          

Project 
D          

No capital project for pollution control. 

T 3.15.6 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF POLLUTION CONTROL OVERALL: 

 

 NO CAPITAL PROJECTS. T 3.15.7 

 

 

3.16 BIO-DIVERSITY; LANDSCAPE (INCL. OPEN SPACES); AND OTHER (EG. COASTAL 
PROTECTION) 
 

 

INTRODUCTION BIO-DIVERSITY AND LANDSCAPE 

 

NOT APPLICABLE.. 

T 3.16.1 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR BIO-DIVERSITY AND LANDSCAPE 

 

NO APPLICABLE 

T 3.16.2 
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Bio-Diversity; Landscape and Other Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives  

Outline Service 
Targets 

Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 
*Previous 

Year 

  
*Previous 

Year 
*Current 

Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

 

 Not Applicable. 

T 3.16.3 
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Employees: Bio-Diversity; Landscape and Other 

Job 
Level 

Year -1 Year 0 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3          

4 - 6          

7 - 9          

10 - 12          

13 - 15          

16 - 18          

19 - 20          

Total          

                                            Not Applicable                                                                                                                                
T 3.16.4 

 

Financial Performance Year 0: Bio-Diversity; Landscape and Other 

R'000 

Details 

Year -
1 Year 0 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operational Revenue           

Expenditure:          

    Employees          

    Repairs and Maintenance          

    Other          

Total Operational Expenditure          

Net Operational Expenditure          

Not Applicable. 
T 3.16.5 



  

  112 
 

 

Capital Expenditure Year 0: Bio-Diversity; Landscape and Other 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 0 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All            

            

Project A           

Project B           

Project C           

Project D           

Not applicable 
T 3.16.6 
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3.21 FIRE 
 

INTRODUCTION TO FIRE SERVICES 

Fire services is a challenge in relation to manpower. The Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality is assisting with recruitment of 

personnel for this division. 

 

T 3.21.1 
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Employees: Fire Services 

Job Level 
Year 

2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Fire Fighters Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

Administrators No. No. No. No. % 

Chief Fire 
Officer & Deputy      

Other Fire 
Officers      

0 - 3      

4 - 6      

7 - 9      

10 - 12      

13 - 15      

16 - 18      

19 - 20      

Total      

.   Note: The District municipality is responsible for this function.                                                                                                                                                                                                       
T 3.21.4 
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Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Traffic and fire Services 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total 
Operational 
Revenue 17 908 15 243 15 243 34 059 (18 816) 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 4 852 7 323 7 323 5 113 2 210 

    Repairs and 
Maintenance 98 120  120  26 94 

    Other 10 753 14 385 14 385 2 716 11 669 

Total 
Operational 
Expenditure 15 703 21 828 21 828 7 855 13 973 

Net 
Operational 
Expenditure 2 205 ( 6 585 ) ( 6 585 ) 26 204 ( 4 843 )  

T 3.21.5 

 

Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Traffic and Fire Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from 

original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All  225 225 54 171  
Project A :  

Two way communication 
radios repeater 
 155 155 0 155  
Project B :  

public chairs- Vehicle 
Testing Station camera - 
5 filing cabinets 
 
 
 70 70 54 16   

T3.21.6 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF FIRE SERVICES OVERALL: 

Not applicable 

T 3.21.7 

 

 

3.22 OTHER (DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL LICENCING AND CONTROL, 
CONTROL OF PUBLIC NUISANCES AND OTHER) 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL LICENCING AND CONTROL, 

CONTROL OF PUBLIC NUISANCES, ETC 

This function is performed by the Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality. 

  T 3.22.1 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL LICENCING AND 

CONTROL, CONTROL OF PUBLIC NUISANCES, ETC 

 

 Not available T 3.22.2 
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Disater Management, Animal Licencing and Control, Control of Public Nuisances, Etc Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 
Objectives  

Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 
*Previous 

Year 

  
*Previous 

Year 
*Current 

Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

Disaster management is the function of the District Municipality 
T 3.22.3 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL 

LICENCING AND CONTROL OF PUBLIC NUISANCES, ETC OVERALL: 

 This function is performed by the Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality 

 

 

T 3.22.7 

 

COMPONENT H: SPORT AND RECREATION 
This component includes: community parks; sports fields; sports halls; stadiums; swimming 

pools; and camp sites.  

 

INTRODUCTION TO SPORT AND RECREATION 

 Not Applicable 

T 3.23 

 
3.23 SPORT AND RECREATION 
 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR SPORT AND RECREATION 

 

Not Applicable 

T 3.23.1 

 



 

119 
 

 

 

COMPONENT I: CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES AND OTHER SERVICES 
 

This component includes: corporate policy offices, financial services, human resource 

services, ICT services, property services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES, etc. 

None 

T 3.24 
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3.24 EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 
 

This component includes: Executive office (mayor; councillors; and municipal manager). 

 

INTRODUCTION TO EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

 

 

The municipality is a category B municipality which is a collective type. It consists of Mayor, 

Speaker, Council and Exco Portfolio Committees. The Mayor is the political head who presides 

over Exco and the Speaker is the Chairperson of Council and presides over Council meetings 

 

T 3.24.1 

 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR THE EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

 

T 3.24.2 
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The Executive and Council Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service 
Objectives  

Outline Service 
Targets 

Year 2016/17 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 *Previous Year   *Previous 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

- 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

 -                   

 - 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

 -                   

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

Not Applicable. Not included in the IDP at the moment. 

T 3.24.3 
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Financial Performance Year 2018/2019: The Executive and Council 

R'000 

Details 

Year -
1 Year 0 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:      

    Employees 1 809 2 065 2 065 2 563 (498) 

    Repairs and Maintenance 0  0 0 0 0 

    Other 369 79 79 45 (30) 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 2 178 2 144 2 144 2 608 (464) 

Net Operational Expenditure 2 178 2 144 2 144 2 608 (464)  

T 3.24.5 

 

  

Employees: The Executive and Council 

Job 
Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

 22 22 22 0 0% 

Total 22 22 22 0 0% 

                                                                                                                                                                T 3.24.4 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: The Executive and Council 
R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustmen
t  

Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from original 

budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All  0 0 0 0   

            

Project A 0 0 0 0 0 

Project B 0 0 0 0 0 

Project C 0 0 0 0 0 

Project D 0 0 0 0 0 

No Capital projects this year. 

T 3.24.6 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

Most of the executive and council meetings held according to the adopted schedule and      

Resolutions were fully implemented.                                                                          T 3.24.7 

 

 

3.25 FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 

 

INTRODUCTION FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Our Financial Services comprise of Budget and Treasury, Supply Chain, Revenue division, 

Asset Management and Expenditure division and all these sections are fully functional. 

T 3.25.1 
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Debt Recovery 
R' 000 

Details of 
the types of 

account 
raised and 
recovered 

Year 2016/2017 Year 2017/2018 Year 2018/2019 

Actual 
for 

accounts 
billed in 

year 

Proportion 
of accounts 
value billed 
that were 

collected in 
the year % 

Billed in 
Year 

Actual 
for 

accounts 
billed in 

year 

Proportion 
of accounts 
value billed 
that were 

collected % 

Estimated 
outturn for 
accounts 
billed in 

year 

Estimated 
Proportion 

of 
accounts 
billed that 

were 
collected 

% 

Property 
Rates 

   
30,971.00  100.51 

  
34,500.00  

 
35,085.00  101.69 

    
36,708.00  85.00 

Electricity - B      
4,287.00  78.37 

    
3,628.00  

   
3,734.00  102.92 

      
5,500.00  95.00 

Electricity - C    
43,929.00  126.42 

  
48,202.00  

 
49,603.00 102.91 

    
49,647.00  95.00 

Water - B      
2,036.00  25.35 

    
4,221.00 

   
4,540.00  107.55 

      
6,000.00  75.00 

Water - C    
43,728.00  141.87 

  
48,555.00  

 
64,864.00  133.59 51,262.00  75.00 

Sanitation    
29,086.00  106.67 

  
31,142.00  

 
31,413.00  100.87 

    
33,135.00  75.00 

Refuse    
13,798.00  107.14 

  
14,600.00  

 
14,719.00  100.82 

      
15,534.00  75.00 

Other      
41,980.00  433.46 

    
50,095.00  

 
54,490.00  108.77 

      
7,201.00  75.00 

B- Basic; C= Consumption. See chapter 6 for the Auditor General's rating of the quality of the 
financial Accounts and the systems behind them.                                                                                                                                   T 3.25.2 

 

 

Concerning T 3.25.2 

 

The average payment rate has been around 45% during this year and we are currently 

reviewing and strengthening our strategies to address this challenge. We are part of the 

municipalities currently receiving assistance from COGTA on Revenue throught MSIG. 
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Financial Service Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective  

To have a clean 
unqualified audit. 

Unqualified 
Audit report. 

Unqualified 
Report 

Disclaimer.  
Qualificatiin 

Disclaimer Qualified. Disclaimer. disclaimer Unqualified. 

Increase Revenue 
collection. 

Increase 
collection to 90% 

65% 45% 70% 70% 45% 45% 40% 40% 

Implement SCM policy 100% 
implementation of 
SCM policy. 

100% 80% 100% 80% 80% 80% 100% 70% 

                    

                     

T 3.25.3 
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Employees : Financial Services 

Job Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 4 2 4 2 100% 

4 - 6 6 1 6 1 100% 

7 - 9 13 1 13 1 100% 

10 - 12 8 8 8 2 25% 

13 - 15 0 3 0 0 0% 

16 - 18 14 2 14 2 100% 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 45 17 45 8 47% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 
June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant 
and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ósenior managementô) then dividing that total by 250 
to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                          T 3.25.4 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Financial Services 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 42 195 97 069 97 069 53 575 43 494 

Expenditure:       

    Employees 12 567 19 038 19 038 14 573 4 465 

    Repairs and Maintenance 1 148 4 090 4 090 2 089 2 001 

    Other 29 493 45 357 45 357 39 937 5 420 

Total Operational Expenditure 43 208 58 485 58 485 56 599 1 886 

Net Operational Expenditure (1 013) 38 584 38 584 (3 024) 41 608 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are calculated by 
dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual. 

T 3.25.5 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF FINANCIAL SERVICES OVERALL: 

 

The department has not being doing well in general and amongst the others it had challenges 

in relation to Budgeting (Not Cash  Backed), Revenue Collection(Below 50% monthly), 

Supply Chain Management (High UIF Expenditure) by way of Effective SOPs, Internal 

Controls, Timeous Filling of Critical Posts and Intensifying Capacity Building. 

 

                                                                                                                                    T 3.25.6 

 

 

3.26 HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 

 

Human Resources Division is part of the Corporate Services. Its functions entail recruitment, 

training and development, occupational health and safety, manpower planning, personnel 

admiistration, employment equity and labour relations.  

T 3.26.1 

 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 

 

T 3.26.2 
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Human Resource Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 

Service Objectives  Outline Service 
Targets 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators  *Previous Year   *Previous Year *Current Year   *Current Year *Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective xxx 

To  Review the 
Employment Equity Plan  

Reviewed and 
credible EEP by June  

Reviewed and credible 
EEP . 

Not achieved Not achieved Not achieved Not achieved Reviewed and 
credible EEP. 

Not achieved  Review 
EEP 

To Develop Skills 
Development Plan 

Adopted and 
submitted plan. 

Adopted and 
submitted plan by June 

WSP submitted 
to LGSETA 

WSP submitted  
to LGSETA 

WSP submitted  
to LGSETA 

WSP 
submitted  to 
LGSETA 

Adopted and 
submitted plan 

WSP 
submitted to 
LGSETA 

 Adopt and 
submit 

Provide Training 
opportunities 

65 employees and 22 
councillors trained. 

39 employee and 22 
councillors trained. 

39 60 80 80 39 employee and 21 
councillors trained. 

40  55 

To improve the level of 
discipline  

Reduced labour 
disputes. 

Reduced labour 
disputes. 

5 grievances          
 

 - 

50 Employees 
trained by on 
Collective Agreements 
on Disciplinary 
matters 

50 trained employees on 
collective agreement of 
disciplinary codes and 
procedures 

Not achieved Not achieved Not achieved 50 
Employees 
trained by on 
Collective 
Agreements 
on Disciplinary 
Codes. 

50 trained employees 
on collective agreement 
of disciplinary codes and 
procedures 

Not achieved  To train 45 
employees. 

To promote sound 
labour relations 

sound labour 
relations 

6 LLF meetings  3 LLF meetings 2 LLF meetings 6 LLF Meetings 2 LLF 
Meetings 

6 LLF meetings. 2 LLF 
meetings 

 6 
meetings 

To fill all sec 56 
manager positions 

6 posts filled. 4 positions of senior 
managers  be filled. 

Not achieved. Not achieved position of senior 
manager 
community 
services be filled 

position of 
senior manager 
community 
services not 
filled 

position of senior 
manager community 
services be filled 

3 positions of 
senior 
managers were 
filled 

 To fill 
vacant posts 

 
T 3.26.3 
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Employees: Human Resource Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 1 1 0 1 100% 

4 - 6 2 2 2 0 0 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0 

10 - 12 1 1 1 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 4 4 3 0 100% 

                                                                                                                                                                                         
T3.26.4 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Human Resource Services 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:       

    Employees 6 894 9 077 9 077 4 646 4 431 

    Repairs and Maintenance 1 630 2 050 2 050 1 424 626 

    Other 6 052 7 918 7 918 4 924 2 994 

Total Operational Expenditure 14 576 19 045 19 045 10 994 8 051 

Net Operational Expenditure 14 576 19 045 19 045 10 994 8 051 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are calculated by 
dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual. T 3.26.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Financial Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from original 

budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All  0 64000 64000 100%   

            

Cashier's office chair 10000 10000 10000 0% 280 

Payment hall chairs 30000 30000 30000 0% 150 

Money counters and fake 
detectors 24000 24000 24000 0% 320 

Project D 0 0 0  90 

Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including 
past and future expenditure as appropriate. T 3.26.6 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES OVERALL: 

Human resource Department is fully functional as it is capable of fulfilling its mandate and 

responsibilities for total personnel capacity development, retention and attraction of skilled 

human capital. 

 

T 3.26.7 

 

 

 

3.27 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) SERVICES 
 

This component includes: Information and Communication Technology (ICT) services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) 

SERVICES 

 

 No full-fledged ICT Unit. T 3.27.1 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR ICT SERVICES 

 

Not applicable. 

T 3.27.2 
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ICT Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service 

Objectives  
Outline 
Service 
Targets 

Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service 
Indicators 

 *Previous 
Year 

  
*Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 0 

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -                   

 -                   

 -                   

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -                   

 -                   

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -                   

                    

 Not Applicable 

T 3.27.3 
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Employees: ICT Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as 
a % of total 

posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0  0  0  0  0  

4 - 6 0  0  0  0  0  

7 - 9 0  0  0  0  0  

10 - 12 0  0  0  0  0  

13 - 15 0  0  0  0  0  

16 - 18 0  0  0  0  0  

19 - 20 0  0  0  0  0  

Total 0  0  0  0  0  

              Not Applicable                                                                                                                                                       
T3.27.4 

 

 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: ICT Services  

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Expenditure:       

    Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

    Repairs and Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 

    Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0                                               0 

Net Operational 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 

Net expenditure to be consistent with summary T 5.1.2 in Chapter 5. Variances are 
calculated by dividing the difference between the Actual and Original Budget by the Actual. 

T 3.27.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: ICT Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2017/18 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance 
from original 

budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All  260 326 378 31%   

            

Project A 100 130 128 22% 280 

Project B 80 91 90 11% 150 

Project C 45 50 80 44% 320 

Project D 35 55 80 56% 90 

Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including past and 
future expenditure as appropriate. T 3.27.6 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF ICT SERVICES OVERALL: 

ICT unit to be established in the next financial year. 

T3.27.7 

 

 

3.28 PROPERTY; LEGAL; RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCUREMENT 
SERVICES 
 

This component includes: property; legal; risk management and procurement services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO PROPERTY; LEGAL; RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCUREMENT 

SERVICES 

 

ONLY SUPPLY CHAIN MANGEMENT UNIT IS IN PLACE. T3.28.1 

 

SERVICE STATISTICS FOR PROPERTY; LEGAL; RISK MANAGEMENT AND 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES. 

 

 n/a T 3.28.2 
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Property; Legal; Risk Management; and Procurement Services Policy Objectives Taken From IDP 
Service Objectives  Outline Service 

Targets 
Year -1 Year 0 Year 1 Year 3 

  Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Service Indicators 
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

Service Objective 0 

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -                   

 -                   

 -                   

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

 -                   

 -                   

 -                   

 -  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

                    

                    

 Not Applicable 

T 3.28.3 
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Employees: Property; Legal; Risk Management; and Procurement Services 

Job 
Level 

Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0 

4 - 6 0 0 0 0 0 

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0 

10 - 12 0 0 0 0 0 

13 - 15 0 0 0 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 

                                                                                                                                                                                                          T 3.28.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  136 
 

Financial Performance Year 2018/19: Property; Legal; Risk Management and Procurement Services 

R'000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual Variance to Budget 

Total Operational Revenue  0  0  0 0   0 

Expenditure:           

    Employees  0  0  0  0  0 

    Repairs and Maintenance  0  0  0  0  0 

    Other  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operational Expenditure  0  0  0  0  0 

Net Operational Expenditure  0  0  0  0  0  

T 3.28.5 
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Capital Expenditure Year 2018/19: Property; Legal; Risk Management and Procurement Services 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

Year 2018/19 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance from original 
budget 

Total Project Value 

Total All  260 326 378 31%   

            

Project A 100 130 128 22% 280 

Project B 80 91 90 11% 150 

Project C 45 50 80 44% 320 

Project D 35 55 80 56% 90 

Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including past and future expenditure as 
appropriate. T 3.28.6 

      
 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF PROPERTY SERVICES OVERALL: 

 

NOT APPLICABLE 

  

T 3.28.7 
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COMPONENT K: ORGANISATIONAL PERFOMANCE SCORECARD 

                                                                                    Basic Services and Infrastructure Development. 

 

Ref Strategic 

Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline 
Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achievem

ent 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

BSD 01 Water 

Supply 

Length of 

water pipes 

installed in 

Wolmarans

stad Ext 17. 

12km 9.625 km of 

water 

pipelines 

installed by 

the end of 

June 2019 in 

Wolmaranssta

d Ext 17. 

9.625 km Achieved 0 

During 

projects 

prioritization, 

an extra R1 

m was added 

on the initial 

budget. 

R 15 012 

053, 90 

R 15 010 

701.00 

n/a Completion 

Certificates 

BSD 02 Water  Number of 

Boreholes 

drilled in 

Makwassie. 

New KPI 23 boreholes 

drilled by end 

of June 2019 

in Makwassie. 

19 

boreholes 

drilled. 

Not 

Achieved 

4 

boreholes. 

The project 

was 

abandoned 

as there was 

no 

satisfactory 

yield of 

water. 

R 3 962 170 R 1 803 438.56 Municipality 

to explore 

alternative 

funding 

vehicle to 

resuscitate 

the bulk 

water supply 

scheme 

between 

Buisfontein 

and 

Tswelelang 

Completion 

Certificates 

BSD 03 Electricity Number of 

high mast 

lights 

installed in 

Kgakala and 

21 high 

mast 

lights. 

5 high mast 

light s installed 

in Kgakala and 

Rulaganyang 

by June 2019. 

5 Achieved 0 n/a R 1 500 000 R 1 483 224.00 n/a Completion 

certificate. 
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Rulaganyan

g. 

BSD 04 Sanitatio

n 

Number of 

Households 

served with 

new sewer 

connections 

in 

Makwassie 

town.  

16 000 

stands. 

140 

households 

with new 

access to 

sewer 

connection 

points in 

Makwassie 

town by June 

2019. 

0 Not 

achieved 

140 

household

s 

The delayed 

approval of 

additional 

funding 

affected the 

completion 

of the Raw 

Sewage 

Pump 

Station. 

R 9 275 171 R 13 232 

208.60 

In future a 

comprehensi

ve feasibility 

study for 

projects of 

this 

magnitude 

should be 

carried out 

Completion 

certificate.  

BSD 05 Sanitatio

n 

Refurbish 

Oxidation 

Ponds 

Leeudoring

stad 

New KPI Refurbished 

Oxidation 

ponds in 

Leeudoringsta

d by June 

2019 

1 Achieved 0 n/a R 12 000 

000 

R 12 000 000 n/a Completion 

certificate 

BSD 06 Sanitatio

n 

Number: of 

stands with 

sewer 

connections 

in Kgakala. 

16 000 

stands. 

35 stands 

connected to 

main sewer 

line in Kgakala 

by June 2019. 

35 Achieved n/a n/a R 823 815 R 713 763.73 n/a Completion 

certificate. 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 

Achievemen

t 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Correctiv

e 

Measures 

Portfolio 

of 

Evidenc

e 

BSD 

07 

Roads and 

Storm water 

Fix damaged 

roads due to 

potholes in all 

Municipal 

roads. 

2km fixed 2 km of 

municipal roads 

with potholes 

fixed by June 

2019. 

3.42km 
Achieved 1.42km Municipality 

sought 

assistance 

from Public 

Works 

R 2 500 000 Opex n/a Monthly  

Reports 

BSD 

08 

Water Fix water pipe 

leakages in all 

Municipal 

areas. 

2000 

leakages 

1000 water 

leakages fixed 

in all municipal 

areas by June 

2019. 

1098 
Achieved 98 n/a Opex Opex n/a Monthly 

Reports  

BSD 

09 

Sanitation Fix sewer 

blockages in 

all Municipal 

areas. 

1000 

blockages. 

1000 sewer 

blockage fixed 

in all municipal 

areas by June 

2019. 

1624 
Achieved 624 Experiencing 

more 

blockages due 

to lack of 

refuse 

removal. 

Community 

dumping 

refuse into 

manholes 

Opex Opex n/a Monthly 

Reports 

BSD 

10 

Electricity Number of 

street light 

bulbs replaced 

in all 

Municipal 

areas. 

1 369 

bulbs 

replaced. 

500 bulbs on 

the street lights 

replaced in all 

Municipal areas 

by June 2019 

167 
Not 

achieved 

333 Both cherry 

pickers were 

out of 

commission 

Opex Opex Municipali

ty is 

looking at 

purchasin

g new 

Monthly 

reports. 
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cherry 

picker. 

BSD 

11 

Electricity Number of 

cable faults 

fixed in 

Municipal 

areas. 

 

 

20 cables 

fixed. 

20 cable faults 

fixed in all 

Municipal 

Towns 

(Wolmaranssta

d, 

Leeudoringstad 

Witpoort & 

Makwassie by 

June 2019 

73 
Achieved 53 n/a Opex Opex n/a Monthly 

Reports. 

BSD 

12 

Basic 

Services 

Number of 

building Plans 

approved in 

all Municipal 

areas. 

116 

building 

plans. 

120 building 

plans approved 

by June 2019. 

126 
Achieved 6 n/a Opex Opex n/a Register/ 

Report 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 

Achieveme

nt 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD Correcti

ve 

Measure

s 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

BSD 13 Basic 

Services 

Length of 

existing asbestos 

pipeline replaced 

by UPVC water 

pipe in 

Wolmaransstad 

2 965 

metres 

4 810 metres of 

asbestos pipeline 

replaced with UPVC 

in Wolmaransstad 

town by June 2019. 

4810metr

es 

Achieved n/a n/a R 8 000 

000 

R 8 000 

000 

n/a        Completion 

certificate 

BSD 14 Traffic 

Law 

enforcem

ent 

Procure two way 

radio. 

New KPI 

for 

2018/19 

1 two way radio 

procured by June 

2019. 

0 
Not 

Achieved 

1 Could not 

secure the 

right service 

provider. 

R 155 

000 

R 0 n/a Delivery 

notes 

BSD15 Traffic 

Law 

enforcem

ent 

 Income collected 

from outstanding 

traffic fines. 

R 2 500 

00. 

R 3 600 000 income 

collected from 

outstanding traffic 

fines by June 2019. 

R 3 976 

385 

Achieved N/A n/a N/A N/A N/A Expenditure 

Report(TMT

)  

BSD 16 Traffic 

Law 

enforcem

ent 

Income collected 

from Vehicle 

registrations and 

licensing 

renewals. 

R 3 000 

000. 

R 11 000 000 income 

collected from 

Vehicle registrations 

and licensing 

renewals by June 

2019 

R11 497 

689 

Achieved N/A n/a N/A N/A N/A ENATIS 

reconciliatio

ns as well 

as bank 

statements. 

BSD 17  Traffic Income collected 

from drivers and 

learner licenses. 

R 1 200 

000. 

R1 500 000 income 

collected from 

drivers and learner 

licenses by June 2019 

R771 167 
Not achieved R 728 833 DLTC does 

not function 

fully due to 

route test 

road being in 

bad 

conditions 

due to 

potholes 

N/A N/A Testing 

Routes 

should 

be fixed 

as the 

roads are 

damaged 

by 

potholes. 

ENATIS 

reconciliatio

ns as well 

as bank 

statements 
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BSD 18 Traffic 

road 

Safety 

Conduct road 

safety 

presentations at 

schools and 

crèches in all 

Municipal areas. 

5 

presentati

ons. 

16 Road safety 

presentations at 

crèches and 

schools by June 

2019. 

2 
Not 

Achieved 

     3                    Due to 

shortage of 

staff and 

Transport 

only 2 

schools were 

assisted with 

Scholar 

Patrol 

Training with 

the 

assistance 

from 

Department 

of Transport, 

Road and 

Safety 

None N/A Departm

ent of 

Transport

, Road 

and 

Safety 

will from 

now on 

be 

responsi

ble for 

road 

safety 

presentat

ions 

Attendance 

register 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline 
Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achieveme

nt 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  

Reason 

for 

Variance 

Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

BSD 

19 

Traffic 

road 

Safety 

Repainting of road 

markings in CBD 

roads. 

Wolmaran

sstad CBD 

repainted. 

Repainted 

road 

markings in 

CBD roads 

by June 

2019. 

Wolmarans

stad CBD 

repainted. 

Not 

achieved 

Only 

Wolmaransst

ad CBD area 

could be 

attended to.  

Fels and 

Broadbent 

str 

intersection 

STOP. Fels 

street Centre 

Line. Part of 

Piet Retief 

str Centre 

Line. RED 

NO Stopping 

Line at Spar 

in Kruger str. 

Approximate

ly  

180 meters 

were 

repainted.  

 

Due to 

shortage 

of staff 

and 

Logistic 

Challenge

s, 

R 30 000 opex Municipality 

must 

appoint 

more staff 

to be able 

to execute 

its duties. 

Reports 

BSD 

20 

Basic 

Services 

The percentage 

of households 

with access to 

basic level of 

water. 

 

General 

NKPI. 

80% 

baseline 

To keep 

access of 

Households 

to basic level 

of water at 

88% by June 

2019. 

88% 
Achieved N/A N/A opex opex N/A Reports 
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BSD 

21 

Basic 

Services 

The percentage 

of households 

with access to 

basic level of 

Sanitation. 

 

General 

NKPI. 

80% 

baseline. 

To keep 

access of 

Households 

to basic level 

of sanitation 

at 87% by 

June 2019. 

87% 
Achieved N/A N/A opex opex N/A Reports 

BSD 

22 

Basic 

Services 

The percentage 

of households 

with access to 

basic level of 

Electricity. 

 

General 

NKPI. 

70% 

baseline 

To keep 

access of 

Households 

to basic level 

of electricity 

at 87% by 

June 2019. 

87% 
Achieved N/A N/A opex opex N/A Reports 

BSD 

23 

Basic 

Services 

The percentage 

of households 

with access to 

basic level of 

solid waste 

removal. 

 

General 

NKPI. 

 

To keep 

access of 

Households 

to basic level 

of solid 

waste 

removal at 

70% by June 

2019. 

70% 
Achieved N/A N/A opex opex N/A Reports 
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 Financial Viability 

Ref Strategi

c Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 

Achievem

ent 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 

Variance  

Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

FV 01 

Debt 

reductio

n 

 

Implementation 

of Revenue 

Enhancement 

or Debt 

Reduction 

Strategy. 

Revenue 

Enhanceme

nt Strategy 

Debt Reduction 

Strategy by June 

2019. 

16.5% 
Not 

achieved 

8.5 

Poor 

implementatio

n of credit 

control and 

debt 

collection 

policy, 

revenue 

strategy and 

Inaccurate 

Billing 

R1 700 000 Indirect 

Grant to 

Cogta 

(MSIG) 

Review 

Revenue 

Action Plan, 

Implement 

the Strategy 

and Submit 

the Rand 

for Rand 

Strategy 

compiled 

by UBAC to 

Council for 

adoption. 

Training of 

Staff to 

perform 

debt 

collection 

Debt 

reduction 

strategy & 

Council 

Resolution. 

FV 02 

Valuatio

n Roll 

Updated 

master 

valuation roll 

with 

supplementary 

entries. 

Valuation 

Reconciliati

on 

Master valuation 

roll updated with 

all 4 quarterly 

supplementary 

valuation rolls by 

June 2019. 

Only 

Suppleme

ntary were 

updated 

Not 

achieved 

N/A 

Valuation roll 

does not 

balance since 

the Mscoa 

transition 

R1 500 000 opex BCX will 

conclude 

balancing 

the 

valuation 

roll by end 

of 15 

August 

2019 on the 

2016-2018 

Supplementar

y Valuation 

roll  



 

  147 
 

solar 

system 

FV 03 

Asset 

Register 

Updated Asset 

Register. 

100% Updated Asset 

Register by June 

2019 

100% 

Complete 

and 

updated 

Asset 

register 

Achieved N/A 

N/A N/A opex N/A Asset Register 

FV 04 

Indigent 

Register

. 

Registration of 

indigent 

beneficiaries for 

basic services in 

all Municipal 

areas. 

Indigent 

Register 

(6 000) 

registered 

indigent 

beneficiaries in 

all Municipal 

areas by June 

2019. 

17,860 Achieved N/A N/A R4 908 479 R28 729 N/A Indigent 

Register. 

FV 05 Billing 

system 

Conduct Data 

Cleansing on 

consumer 

accounts Using 

Internal 

Capacity. 

Accurate 

Municipal 

Accounts 

25 000 consumer 

Accounts 

updated by June 

2019. 

Not 

revised 

Not 

achieved 

Data 

cleansing 

not yet 

done 

Staff shortage N/A opex The 

municipality 

will train 

staff and 

appoint 

where 

necessary 

Effective 

billing system 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 
Annual 

Achievement 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Corre

ctive 

Measu

res 

Portfolio 

of 

Evidence 

*FV 

06 

Project 

Managem

ent 

Percentage 

of the 

Municipalityõ

s capital 

budget spent 

on capital 

projects. 

12 100% Spending 

on capital 

projects by June 

2019. 

100% 

Spending on 

Capital 

Projects 

Achieved N/A N/A R68 034 

519 

R46 679 

837 

N/A Expenditur

e Report 

FV 07 Impairmen

t of 

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment 

Updated 

Asset 

Register 

1 Completed and 

Updated 1 Asset 

register by June 

2019 

Credible asset 

register 

Achieved N/A N/A N/A 

opex 

N/A Asset 

Register. 

FV 08 Creditors 

payment 

period 

Increase 

Revenue to 

65% 

compared to 

prior years 

revenue.  

25100 Invoices paid 

within 30 days 

from the date of 

the invoices for 

18/19. 

Not revised 8.5 3.5 Although 

we pay our 

creditors, 

this is not in 

line with 

MFMA. 

Cash Flow 

Challenges 

resulting 

from poor 

payment of 

services by 

consumers. 

R 0.00 

 

opex 

Imple

mentat

ion of 

Reven

ue 

Strate

gy, 

Reven

ue 

Project 

and 

Suppo

rt Plan. 

Strict 

Budge

t 

Contro

AFS and 

proof of 

payments. 
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l and 

imple

mentat

ion of 

Cost 

Contai

nment 

Measu

res 

FV 09 To ensure 

100% 

spending 

on 

conditiona

l Grants. 

100% 

Spending of 

Conditional 

Grants. 

12 100% Spending 

June 2019 

100% 

expenditure. 

 

  

 

 

100% Spending 

on MIG June 

2019 

100% 

Achieved 0 n/a 

MIG: 

R27 703 

000 

R25 052 

000 n/a Expenditur

e Report 

100% Spending 

on PIG June 

2019 

88.40% 

Not 

Achieved 

11.60% n/a 

PIG: 

R11 723 

610 

R13 403 

072 n/a Expenditur

e Report 

100% Spending 

on Library Grant 

by June 2019 

100% 

Achieved 0 n/a 

LIBRARY: 

R943 000 

R556 548 

n/a Expenditur

e Report 

100% Spending 

on FMG June 

2019 

100% 

Achieved 0 n/a 

FMG: 

R2 215 000 

R2 215 000 

n/a Expenditur

e Report 
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100% Spending 

on WSIG June 

2019 

92.45% 

Not 

Achieved 

7.55% Service 

provider 

started to 

work in 

December 

WSIG: 

R19 500 

001 

R19 396 

401 n/a Expenditur

e Report 

FV 10 Level of 

cash 

backed 

reserves. 

All Reserves 

must be 

100% Cash 

Backed. 

12 100% Cash 

Backed Reserves 

June 2019 

50% 

Not 

achieved. 

50% The 

municipality 

have no 

reserves 

n/a n/a 

The 

munici

pality 

will 

enhan

ce 

revenu

e to be 

able to 

have 

cash 

back 

reserv

es 

Reports. 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline 
Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achieveme

nt 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 

Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

FV 11 Net 

operatin

g Surplus 

 

       

 

 

 

FV12 

Electricity 

15% by June 

2019 

12 15% 

Surplus 

June 

2019 

2% Not 

Achieved. 13% 
The differences 

are due to 

municipality 

getting late 

payment from 

service provider 

that collect 

electricity 

payments 

n/a opex The municipality 

will have a 

meeting with the 

service provider to 

release the funds 

in time. 

Expenditure 

Report 

FV13 

Deficit 

Water 

5% by June 

2019 

12 5% 

Deficit 

June 

2019 

1.25% Target not 

achieved 3.75% 

Non-payment 

of services by 

consumers 

mostly from the 

townships 

n/a opex To embark on a 

services payment 

campaign and to 

enforce credit 

control policies 

Expenditure 

Report 

FV14 

Refuse 

10% by June 

2019 

12 10% 

Surplus 

June2019 

25% Target 

exceeded n/a 

Non-payment 

of services by 

consumers 

mostly from the 

townships 

n/a opex To embark on a 

services payment 

campaign and to 

enforce credit 

control policies 

Expenditure 

Report 

FV15 

Sanitatio

n and 

waste 

water. 

10% by June 

2019 

12 10% 

Surplus 

June 

2019 

2.5% Target not 

achieved. 

Due to non-

payment of 

consumers 

7.5% 

Non-payment 

of services by 

consumers 

mostly from the 

townships 

n/a opex To embark on a 

services payment 

campaign and to 

enforce credit 

control policies 

Expenditure 

Report 
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FV16 Electricity 

Maintena

nce. 

Keep Energy 

Losses below 

10% 

Benchmark of 

NERSA. 

12 10% 

electricity 

Losses 

June 

2019 

2.5% Target not 

achieved. 

Managed to 

reduce the 

loss 

7.5% 

Non-payment 

of services by 

consumers 

mostly from the 

townships 

n/a opex To embark on a 

services payment 

campaign and to 

enforce credit 

control policies 

Section 71 

Report 

FV17 Water 

Maintena

nce. 

Reduce Water 

Losses to be 

less than 20% 

Benchmark of 

Other 

Municipalities.   

12 20% 

Reduced 

Water 

losses by 

June 

2019. 

2.5% Target not 

achieved. 

The losses 

are 42,93% 

17.5% 

Poor 

maintenance 

because of cash 

flow challenges, 

illegal 

connections 

and unmetered 

consumption 

n 

n/a opex Increase revenue 

collection, 

monitor illegal 

connections and 

ensure that all 

properties have 

installed meters. 

Section 71 

Report 

FV18 Number 

of Active 

Consume

r 

Accounts 

Accurate 

Billing of All 

Active 

Consumer 

Accounts. 

12 25 000 

Accurate 

billing 

accounts 

of Active 

consume

rs by 

June 

2019. 

6 250 Target 

achieved 18 750 

n/a n/a opex n/a Billing 

Report 

FV19 Revenue 

Growth 

Increase 

current yearõs 

revenue 

compared to 

prior year 

revenue.  

 

12% 65% 

Collectio

n Rate by 

June 

2019. 

50% Not 

Achieved. 

The average 

collection 

rate is 

37.06% 

15% 

Poor 

implementation 

of credit control 

and debt 

collection and 

the prevailing 

culture of non -

payment 

R2 790 

000 

OPEX Policies will be 

strictly 

implemented; 

community 

education be 

done, and service 

payments 

campaigns be 

held 

Payment vs 

Levies 

Report 
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FV20 Creditors 

payment 

period 

Payment of 

Creditors 

within 30 Days 

of the Invoice. 

12 Invoices 

paid 

within 30 

days 

from the 

date of 

the 

invoices. 

4 Target not 

achieved.  Payments not 

made within 30 

days. 

Municipality 

does not 

generate 

enough cash. 

Creditors 

increasing from 

R187 Million in 

2017/2018 to 

456 Million in 

2018/2019 

n/a opex Municipality will 

enhance the 

revenue to be 

able to pay 

suppliers within 

30 days 

MFMA Sec 

71 Reports 

and AFS  

FV21 Irregular, 

fruitless 

and 

wasteful 

and 

unauthor

ised 

Expendit

ure 

Reduce 

irregular, 

fruitless, 

wasteful and 

unauthorised 

Expenditure. 

By ensuring 

that we 

comply with 

SCM Policy 

and 

Procedures. 

4 50% 

Reductio

n by June 

2019 

12.5% Not yet 

achieved. 

Fruitless 

expenditure 

increased 

from R534 

665 in 

2017/18 to 

R155 0291 

in 19/20 

Irregular 

increased 

from R65 

870 786 in 

17/18 to 45 

382 985 in 

19/20 

37.5% 

Prescripts of 

the MFMA 

regarding 

irregular 

expenditure 

have not been 

followed  

n/a opex Credible forensic 

auditor will be 

appointed to take 

detailed forensic 

investigation, 

Regulation 32 & 

36 appointments 

must only be in 

the utmost 

emergency cases 

ð See G4 in 

attahcments 

AFS and 

Council 

Resolution 

on 

condoning  

FV22 Servicing 

of DBSA 

loans. 

Payment of 

Loans in line 

with the terms 

of loan 

agreement. 

2 4 

Quarterly 

Payments 

in 

2018/19 

1 0 

3 payment not 

made. 

The 

municipality 

had cash flow 

problems. Only 

1 payment was 

affected 

n/a opex We are working 

on enhancing 

revenue so that 

we can service this 

loan and further 

restructure it, to 

make affordable 

Payment 

vouchers 



 

  154 
 

FV23 Mscoa Mscoa 

Compliant by 

ensuring that 

our TB and GL 

are in line with 

Mscoa 

1 TB and 

GL are in 

line with 

mSCOA 

by June 

2019. 

1 Target 

achieved n/a 

n/a R210 

0000 

OPEX n/a Compliance 

to Mscoa 

FV24 Audit 

Outcome 

Unqualified 

Audit Opinion  

1 Unqualifi

ed Audit 

Outcome 

or Clean 

Audit by 

June 

2019 

0 Not yet 

achieved 

due to June 

target. 

n/a 

Municipality did 

not have 

capacity to do 

financial 

statements 

R2 900 

000 

R1 605 774 Municipality will 

be getting 

consultants as 

early as March to 

assist with the 

PAAP and the 

preparation of 

AFS. 

Auditor -

General's 

Report 

FV 25 Improved 

meter 

reading. 

Procure water 

and electricity 

metre reading 

devices. 

New KPI 20-meter 

reading 

devices 

procured 

by June 

2019. 

0 Not 

achieved. 20 meters 

reading 

devices. 

n/a R 250 

000.00 

R12 900 n/a Receipts 

and 

Invoices. 
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 Local Economic Development 

Ref Strategic Focus 

Area  

KPI 
Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 

Achievement 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 

Variance  

Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio 

of 

Evidence 

LED 

01 

LED Forums. Number of LED 

forums 

meetings held. 

1 

meeting 

4 LED Forum 

meetings held 

by June 2019 

None Not 

achieved 

0 
The 

Department 

FEED still 

have to 

establish 

the new 

committees. 

None 

N/A Dep of 

FEED to 

speed up 

the process 

of re-

establishing 

the 

committees 

Minutes 

and 

attendance 

register 

LED 

02 

EPWP  Number of jobs 

created through 

EPWP 

Programme. 

158 jobs. 160 jobs  

created 

through EPWP 

Programme by  

June 2019 

162 jobs 

created. 

Achieved N/A n/a R1 098 

955.11 

 N/A 

attendance 

register 

LED 

03 

Municipal Job 

creation initiatives 

Number of Jobs 

created through 

Municipal 

initiatives. 

260 jobs 200 Jobs 

created 

through 

Municipal 

initiatives by 

June 2019. 

None Achieved  N/A Depends on 

the projects 

that are 

rolled-out  

None N/A n/a 

Attendance 

register. 

LED 

04 

Establishment of 

Youth 

Development, 

Entrepreneurial 

and Small 

Business 

Construction of 

centre for Youth 

Development, 

Entrepreneurial 

and Small 

Business 

New KPI 1 centre for 

Youth 

development, 

Entrepreneurial 

and Small 

Business 

Development 

The center 

was built at 

Tswelelang 

and 

completed. 

Achieved 0 None 

R2.4M 

 

R2.4M 

 

N/A 

completion 

certificate 
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Development 

Centre 

Development in 

Tswelelang. 

in Tswelelang 

by June 2019. 

LED05 

Improvements to 

the 

Entrepreneurial 

centre 

Landscaping of 

the Youth 

Entrepreneurial 

Centre. 

New KPI Landscape at 

the 

Entrepreneurial 

centre by June 

2019. 

Landscaping 

was 

completed 

Achieved 0 None R 820 

008 

R 811 

271,66 

N/A 

Completion 

certificate. 

LED06 

Access to 

improved Business 

opportunities.  

Number of 

Hawker stalls 

constructed in 

Wolmaransstad 

town. 

New KPI Construction of 

18 Hawker 

stalls by June 

2019 in 

Wolmaranssatd 

town. 

Hawker stalls 

was 

completed 

Achieved 0 none R2 596 

534 

R2 

596 

533,99  

N/A 

Completion 

Certificate 
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Municipal Transformation. 

Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 
Baseline 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achievement 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 

Variance  

Reason 

for 

Variance 

Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

MTOD01 

Recruitment Appointment 

of: BTO 

Manager, CFO 

& Senior 

managersõ 

community & 

engineering 

services.  

Divisional Head 

7 6 senior 

manager 

appointed by 

June 2019. 

1 Not 

Achieved 

5 Council 

decided 

to 

appoint 

the 

Municipal 

Manager 

before 

Directors 

Opex 

opex 

Positions 

advertised 

Appointment 

Letter/Employment 

contracts 

MTOD02 

Employment 

Equity 

The number of 

people from 

employment 

equity target 

groups 

employed in 

the highest 

management 

levels. 

4 1 official to 

be appointed 

from 

employment 

equity target 

groups by 

June 2019. 

1 Achieved N/A N/A Opex 

opex 

N/A Appointment 

Letter/Employment 

contracts 

MTOD03 

Employment 

Equity 

The percentage 

of the 

municipalityõs 

budget actually 

spent on 

implementing 

workplace skills 

plan. 

1% 1 % of the 

municipalityõs 

budget to be 

spent on 

implementing 

workplace 

skills by June 

2019. 

1% Achieved N/A N/A Opex 

opex 

n/a Expenditure 

reports 
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MTOD04 

Employment  

Equity Plan 

Implementation 

of the 

Employment 

Equity Plan. 

EEP 

submitted 

to DoL  

Employment 

Equity Plan of 

the 

municipality 

by June 2019 

EEP 

submitted to 

DoL 

Achieved N/A N/A Opex 

opex 

N/A Acknowledgement 

of receipt by DoL 

 

 

 

MTOD05 

Training and  

Development 

Number of 

employees & 

councillors 

trained.   

65 65 Trained 

Councillors & 

Officials by 

June 2019 

37 

trained. 

Not 

achieved 

28 Some of 

the 

councilors 

did not 

attend the 

trainings 

R1 000 

000 

opex 

They 

should be 

encouraged 

and 

motivated 

to attend 

the 

trainings 

Attendance 

registers and 

approved 

communication 

for nomination.  

MTOD06 

Website Functional 

Municipal 

Website. 

1 Functional 

website by 

June 2019. 

100% Achieved N/A N/A Opex 

opex 

N/A Up and 

running 

website. 

MTOD07 

 LGSETA  Percentage of 

skills 

development 

levy 

contributed to 

LGSETA. 

100% 100% Skills 

development 

levy 

contributed to 

LGSETA by 

end June 

2019 

100% Achieved N/A N/A Opex 

opex 

N/A EMP 201 Forms 
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MTOD08 

Labour 

Relations 

Number of 

Local Labour 

Forum 

meetings 

held. 

2 4 LLF 

meetings held 

by June 2019. 

4 Achieved N/A N/A None 

opex 

N/A Minutes 

 

 

Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 
Annual 

Achievement 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 

Variance  

Reason 

for 

Variance 

Budget ETD 

 

Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

MTOD09 

Performance 

Agreement 

Number of 

Senior 

managers 

with signed 

Performance 

Agreements. 

4 5 signed 

Performance 

Agreements by 

September 

2019 

5 Signed 

performance 

agreement 

Achieved N/A N/A Operational 
opex 

N/A 

Signed  

Performance 

agreements. 

MTOD 

10 

Performance 

Review 

Number of 

individual 

Performance 

review 

conducted. 

0 Individual 

Performance 

review 

conducted by 

June 2019. 

o Not 

Achieved 

 No 

substantive 

senior 

managers 

appointed  

Operational 
opex 

Council to 

speed up 

the 

appointment 

of senior 

managers 

Performance 

Reports. 

MTOD 

11 

Employment 

Contract 

Number of 

Senior 

managers 

with signed 

employment  

contracts. 

4 5 signed 

employment  

contracts by 

June 2019 

o Not 

Achieved 

 No 

substantive 

senior 

managers 

appointed  

Operational 
opex 

Council to 

speed up 

the 

appointment 

of senior 

managers 

Signed  

employment 

contracts. 
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MTOD 

12 

Renovation 

of offices. 

Painting and 

tiling of the 

foyer. 

New KPI Painted and 

tiled foyer in 

Wolmaransstad 

offices by June 

2019. 

Not done  Not 

Achieved 

Painted 

and tiled 

foyer. 

Cash flow 

prpblems. 

R100 

000.00 

0 

Make 

provision in 

the budget 

for total 

renovation 

of Offices. 

Invoice and 

report by 

Building 

inspector. 

MTOD 

13 

Renovation 

of offices. 

Lights and 

ceiling at 

the registry. 

New KPI Installed ceiling 

and lights at 

the registry by 

June 2019. 

Lights and 

ceiling at the 

registry. 

Not 

achieved 

Lights 

and 

ceiling at 

the 

registry. 

Cash flow 

problems. 

R100 000.00 

0 

Make 

provision in 

the budget 

for total 

renovation 

of Offices 

including 

registry. 

Invoice and 

report by 

Building 

inspector. 

MTOD 

14 

Parking 

Space. 

Construction 

of 

undercover 

carports. 

Exciting 

carports 

10 carports 

constructed by 

June 2019 in 

Wolmaransstad 

offices. 

10 carports 

constructed. 

Achieved. 0 n/a R160 000. 
R 

160 

000. 

n/a Invoice and 

report by 

Building 

inspector. 
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 Good governance and Public Participation. 

Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 
Baseline 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achiev

ement 

Target 

Achieved/ 

not 

 Variance  
Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD Correctiv

e 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

GGPP01 AFS Submit 

the 

Annual 

Financial 

Statement 

to Auditor 

General. 

2017/1

8 AFS 

Submit AFS 

to AG by 31 

August 

2019. 

1 Achieved 0 N/a Operational opex n/a Acknowledge

ment letter 

of submission 

of AFS 

GGPP02 Annual 

Performa

nce 

Report. 

Submit 

the 

Annual 

Performa

nce 

Report to 

Auditor 

General. 

2017/1

8 

AFS APR 

Submit APR 

to AG by 

August 

2019. 

1 Achieved 0 n/a Operational opex n/a Acknowledge

ment letter 

of submission 

of the APR 

GGPP03 Submissi

on of 

Annual 

Report. 

Submit 

the 

Oversight 

Reports to 

Council. 

2017/1

8 AFS 

Annual 

Report 

Submit the 

Annual 

Report to 

Council by 

31 

January 

2019. 

1 Achieved 0 n/a Operational opex n/a Council 

Resolution  

GGPP04 Oversigh

t Report 

Oversight 

Reports 

submitted 

2010/1

1, 

2011/1

2-

Oversight 

Reports 

submitted 

to Council 

0 Not 

Achieved 

9 Oversight 

Reports 

not tabled 

Operational opex Mpac to 

fast track 

the 

tabling of 

Oversight 

Report. 
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to 

Council. 

2014/1

5 not 

done 

by 31 

March 

2019 

by Mpac to 

council 

all 

outstand

ing 

Oversigh

t reports. 

GGPP05 Council 

Meetings 

Number of 

council 

meetings 

convened. 

 

Meetings 

held in 

2017/201

8 FY 

4 council 

meetings 

convened for 

the year 

2018/19 

4 Achieved 0 n/a Operational opex n/a Council 

Resolution 

register 

GGPP 

06 

Section 

79 

Committ

ees 

Number 

of Section 

79 

Meetings 

held. 

3 

Meeting

s held in 

2017/2

018 FY 

4 Section 

79 

Meetings 

held by 

June 2019. 

3 

Special 

Meetin

gs and 

1 

Schedu

led 

meetin

g 

Achieved N/A N/A Operational opex N/A Minutes & 

Resolution 

Register 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus Area  

KPI 

Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 

Achievem

ent 

Target 

Achie

ved/ 

not 

 

Varianc

e  

Reason 

for 

Variance 

Budget 

ETD 

Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

GGPP07 Section 80 

Committe

es 

Number of 

Section 80 

Meetings 

held. 

4 

meetings 

16 Section 80 

Meetings held by 

June 2019 

0 Not 

Achiev

ed 

0 No 

matters 

referred 

to 

Portfolio

s 

Operational opex Portfolios to 

be called by 

Chairpersons 

Minutes & 

Resolution 

Register 

GGPP08 Ward 

Committe

es. 

Number of 

ward 

committee 

meetings 

held. 

132 

meetings 

132 ward 

Committee 

meetings held by 

June 2019. 

132 Achiev

ed 

0 n/a Operational opex n/a Ward 

Committee 

Reports. 

GGPP09 By-laws By-laws 

need to be 

drafted, 

gazetted 

and 

implemente

d. 

Little by-

laws 

adopted 

or MHLM 

4 gazetted by-

laws by June 

2019. 

1 Not 

achiev

ed 

3 Council 

fail to 

adopt 

Operational opex Council to 

adopt by-law. 

Gazette by-law 

after adoption 

By-laws 

reports on 

public 

participation 

and adverts. 

GGPP10 Implement

ation of 

Council 

Resolution 

All Council 

Resolutions 

to be 

implemente

d timeously 

throughout 

the financial 

year. 

100% 

implement

ation of 

council 

resolution. 

100% 

implementation 

of council 

resolution 

throughout 

18/19. 

100% Achiev

ed 

N/A N/A Operational opex N/A Resolution 

register. 

GGPP11 Implement

ation of 

Supply 

Percentage 

implementa

tion of SCM 

Policy. 

100% 

implement

ation of 

Supply 

100% 

implementation 

of SCM Policy 

100% Achiev

ed 

N/A N/A Operational opex N/A Reports. 
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Chain 

Policy 

Chain 

Policy 

throughout 

18/19 

GGPP12 IDP 

meetings 

Number of 

IDP & 

budget 

meetings 

held in 11 

wards. 

11 

meetings 

11 IDP & budget 

meetings in 11 

wards by June 

2019. 

11 

meetings 

Achiev

ed 

n/a n/a Operational opex n/a Attendance 

Register & 

Minutes 
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Ref Strategic 

Focus 

Area  

KPI 

Baseline 
Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Achievement 

Target 

Achieved/ not 
 Variance  

Reason for 

Variance 
Budget 

ETD 
Corrective 

Measures 

Portfolio of 

Evidence 

GGPP 13 Ward 

meetings 

Number of 

ward Public 

meetings 

held. 

66 ward 

meetings 

44 ward 

Public 

meetings 

held by 

June 2019. 

17 Not Achieved 27 Councillor

s did not 

call the 

meetings 

Operation

al 
opex They have 

to be 

encouraged 

to hold 

meetings 

Minutes & 

Reports 

GGPP14 Ward 

committe

e 

training. 

Number of 

ward 

committee  

members 

trained. 

110 

trained. 

110 ward 

committee  

members 

trained by 

June 2019. 

0 Not achieved N/A Training 

was done 

the 

previous 

year 

Operation

al 

opex N/A Ward 

committee 

training 

Report. 

GGPP15 Adoption 

of IDP 

Adopted 

Reviewed 

IDP 

THIRD 

GENERATI

ON IDP 

1 Adopted 

Reviewed 

IDP by 

June 2019. 

IDP reviewed achieved n/a n/a Operation

al 

opex n/a Council 

resolution 

& IDP. 

GGPP16 Adoption 

of 

BUDGET 

Budget 

Schedule of 

Activities 

adopted by  

Council. 

Budget & 

Council 

Resolution

. 

1 Budget 

Schedule 

of 

Activities 

adopted 

by 

Council by 

31 May 

2019 

1 Achieved N/A N/A Operation

al 

opex N/A Budget & 

Council 

Resolution. 

GGPP17 Adoption 

of SDBIP 

Service 

Delivery 

and 

Budget 

Implementa

tion  

Plan 

Approved 

by the 

SDBIP 

AND 

council 

resolution 

SDBIP 

Approved 

by the 

Mayor by 

within 28 

days after 

the 

adoption 

SDBIP 

approved by 

Mayor. 

Achieved n/a n/a n/a opex n/a Approval by 

Mayor. 
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Mayor by 

within 28 

days after 

the 

adoption of 

the budget.  

of the 

budget. 

GGPP18 PMS 

Policy & 

framewor

k 

PMS Policy 

Framework 

revised and 

adopted by 

council. 

PMS 

POLICY & 

Council 

Resolution 

1 PMS 

Policy 

Framewor

k adopted 

by council 

by June 

2019. 

PMS policy 

approved. 

achieved n/a n/a n/a opex n/a PMS 

POLICY & 

Council 

Resolution 

GGPP 19 Audit 

committe

e 

Number of 

Audit 

Committee 

meetings 

held. 

Report, 

minutes 

and 

attendanc

e registers. 

4 Audit 

Committe

e 

meetings 

held by 

June 2019. 

4 meetings 

held 

Achieved n/a n/a Operatio

nal 

opex n/a Reports, 

minutes 

and 

attendance 

registers. 
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ASSESSMENT OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 2018/2019 

Name of 

service 

provider. 

Start 

date 

End 

date 

Status as at the 

end June 2019. 

Quarter 

1 

Quarter 

2 

Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Challenges/ 

Intervention. 

Scale (1-5) 1-poor 

2-fair 3- average 4- 

good 5- Excellent 

Anaka Group 

(Pty) Ltd 

    Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 3 Fairly Good. 3.75 

Maxim 

Planning 

Solutions 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

 5  5  5  5  n/a 5 

CMS Water 

Engineering 

    Contract still 

valid 

 4  4  4  4  n/a 4 

 

Kwane 

Capital 

13-Aug-

15 

28-Feb-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

 0  0  0 0  Not to be 

renewed. 

Yellow fleet 

not delivered. 

0 

 

IPES-Utility 

Management 

Services (Pty) 

Ltd 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

 3  3  3  3 The company is 

not doing 

water 

restrictions and 

electricity 

disconnections 

are very low. 

 

3 

 

Amandla 

Building and 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

Contract ended  0 0   0 0  n/a 0 
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Construction 

(Pty) Ltd 

 

Amandla 

Building and 

Construction 

(Pty) Ltd 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

2 2 2 2 Vehicles send 

to them have 

recurring 

faults. 

2 

Lizel Venter 

Attorneys 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

5 0 0 0  

Continue with 

Service as and 

when cases are 

referred to her. 

 

1.25 

Kgomo 

Attorneys 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 1 1 1 Act in 

contravention 

of appointment 

by 

representing 

the 

Administrator 

against Council. 

 

1.75 

Leepile 

Attorneys 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

0 0 0 0 Continue with 

Service as and 

when cases are 

referred to 

them. None in 

0 
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the year under 

review. 

 

Motshabi 

and Modiboa 

Attorneys 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

0 0 0 0 Continue with 

Service as and 

when cases are 

referred to 

them. None in 

the year under 

review. 

0 

Phambane 

Mokone 

Incorporated 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

3 3 3 3 Continue with 

Service until 

2022. 

3 

Eagilwe 

Property 

valuators  

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 None 4 

Korone 

Engineers 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 None 4 

NEP 

Consulting 

Engineers 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 None 4 

Sogika 

Consulting 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 None 4 

King & 

Associates 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 Project 

completed on 

time. 

4 
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Watson 

Consulting 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

0 0 0 0 On the panel 

but no work 

assigned to 

them. 

0 

Tsela Tsweu 

Consulting 

Engineers 

1-Jul-16 30-Jun-

19 

Contract ends 

in a month 

4 4 4 4 None 4 

Indlela Data 

(Pty) Ltd for 

phones 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 Service still 

good 

4 

Indlela Data 

(Pty) Ltd for 

IT 

1-Apr-17                         

31-Mar-

20 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 Service still 

good. 

4 

JP Security 

and AJH 

Security 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

2 2 2 2 They did not 

monitor the 

alarm system 

at the traffic 

centre. 

2 

Dephetogo 

Trading 

 01-07-18  30-06-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 Service still 

good. 

 

4 

TMT Service 

& Supplies 

(Pty) Ltd 

1-Jul-16 30-Jun-

19 

Contract ends 

in a month 

 4  4  4  4  Need to 

appoint more 

serving agents. 

Too expensive 

to appoint 

4 
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Sheriff to serve 

warrants. 

BBMT 

General 

Trading 

1-Jul-18 30-Jun-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

 0  0  0  0 No medical 

work done. 

0 

Blaq M 

Holdings  

    Contract still 

valid 

 0  0  0  0 Terminated  0 

Edge 

Forensic  

3-Feb-16 31-Jan-

21 

Contract still 

valid 

 0  0  0  0 No cases 

referred to 

them. 

0 

Direct 

Precision  

Management 

Services  

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

19 

Contract ends 

in a month 

 0  0  0  0 Terminated  0 

Moribo wa 

Afrika  

Trading 

1-Jul-17                          

30-Jun-

19 

Contract ends 

in a month. 

 3  3  3  3 Contract ends 

in a month. 

Fairly average. 

3 

Motshoamos on 

month to 

month 

on 

month 

to 

month 

 on month to 

month 

3 3 3 3 Service 

average. 

 

3 

Kooyreshi 

Development 

on 

month to 

month 

on 

month 

to 

month 

 on month to 

month 

 3  3  3  3 Sometimes the 

garage runs out 

of fuel. 

3 
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Suidwes 

Landbou 

1-Jul-17 30-Jun-

20 

 Still valid.  2 2   2  2 Investment not 

yielding 

sufficient 

dividends. 

2 

Mojacopro 1-Sep-17   Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 n/a 3 

Ditiro Tsaka 

Trading 6cc 

1-Sep-17  June 

2019 

Contract still 

valid 

3 3 3 3 Struggle to pay 

labourers from 

time to time. 

3 

Momotheka 

Trade 1133  

27-Jul-18  June 

2019 

Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4  Project 

completed. 

4 

CMS Water 

Engineering 

1-Feb-19 31-Jan-

22 

Contract still 

valid 

 4  4 4   4  Work done. 4 

Protea 

Consulting  

20-Feb-

19 

  Contract ended 0 0 0 0  Contract 

ended 

0 

Moepagauta 

Tading JV 

20-Feb-

19 

  Contract still 

valid 

4 4 4 4 Good. 4 

L.M. 

Construction 

1-Mar-19 28-Feb-

22 

Contract still 

valid 

 3  3  3  2  They do not 

respond in 

time to fix 

snags 

2.75 

NPNF 

Construction 

and Projects 

 contract 

still valid 

contract 

still 

valid 

Contract still 

valid 

3 3 3 3 Average. 3 
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Business 

Connexion 

 contract 

still valid 

contract 

still 

valid 

contract still 

valid 

3 3 3 3 We could not 

align A1 

schedule and 

the data 

strings. 

 

3 

Cigicell month to 

month 

month 

to 

month 

 month to 

month 

5 5 5 5 n/a 5 

CAB Holdings  01-04-18 month 

to 

month 

month to 

month 

5 5 5 5 n/a 5 
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Organisational Performance Scorecard. 

No. Strategi
c Focus 
Area 
(IDP) 

Key 
Perform
ance 
Indicator 

Baselin
e 
(Previo
us 
years 
actual) 

De
ma
nd 

Bac
klog 

Annual 
Target 
(Year) 

Status 
(Achieved/N
ot 
Achieved) 

Measures 
taken to 
improve 
performance 

Performanc
e 
Monitoring 
Quality 
Assurance 
comment 

Managem
ent 
Response 

Internal 
Audit 
Comment 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

              

              

              

Information provided in the tables above. 
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CHAPTER 4 ï ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE  
(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART II) 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Organisational development and institutional transformation constitutes of the t following 

core functions: manpower planning, selection and recruitment, training and development, 

personnel management, occupational health and safety, labour relations, employment equity 

and employee wellness.                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                         T 

4.0.1 
 

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL 
 

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE  

 

The main structure of Maquassi Hills Local Municipality consists of the Municipal Manager, and four 

departments, namely Corporate Services 
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4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES  
 

Employees 

Description 

Year 2016/17 Year 2017/18 

Employees 
Approved 

Posts 
Employees Vacancies Vacancies 

  No. No. No. No. % 

Water 
             

26,485  
             
26,485  

             
23,572               23,572   %  

Waste Water (Sanitation) 
               

8,541  
               
8,541  

               
8,285                 8,285   %  

Electricity 
             

12,355  
             
12,355  

             
10,254               10,254   %  

Waste Management 
             

14,232  
             
14,232  

             
13,235               13,235   %  

Housing 
               

6,542  
               
6,542  

               
5,496                 5,496   %  

Waste Water (Stormwater Drainage) 
               

5,643  
               
5,643  

               
5,530                 5,530   %  

Roads 
               

5,643  
               
5,643  

               
5,530                 5,530   %  

Transport 
               

5,322  
               
5,322  

               
4,470                 4,470   %  

Planning 
               

1,254  
               
1,254  

               
1,003                 1,003   %  

Local Economic Development 
               

2,516  
               
2,516  

               
2,063                 2,063   %  

Planning (Strategic & Regulatary) 
             
12,546  

             
12,546  

             
10,413               10,413   %  

Local Economic Development 
               
2,355  

               
2,355  

               
2,190                 2,190   %  

Community & Social Services 
               
4,565  

               
4,565  

               
3,698                 3,698   %  

Enviromental Proctection 
               
5,649  

               
5,649  

               
4,971                 4,971   %  

Health 
               
5,649  

               
5,649  

               
4,971                 4,971   %  

Security and Safety 
               
5,649  

               
5,649  

               
4,971                 4,971   %  

Sport and Recreation 
               
5,649  

               
5,649  

               
4,971                 4,971   %  

Corporate Policy Offices and Other 
               
5,649  

               
5,649  

               
4,971                 4,971   %  

Totals            
136,240  

           
136,240  

           
120,592  

           120,592                       
ð   

Headings follow  the order of services as set out in chapter 3. Service totals should equate to those included in 
the Chapter 3 employee schedules. Employee and Approved Posts numbers are as at 30 June, as per the 
approved organogram. T 4.1.1 
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Vacancy rate 

 

Designation: Total 
Approved 
Posts 

Vacancies ( Total 
time that vacancy 
exist using full time 
equivalents 

Vacancies ( as a 
proportion of total posts 
in each category 

Municipal Manager 1 0 0 

CFO 1 1 1 

Other section 57 excluding 
finance posts 

3 3 3 

Other section 57 ( finance 
posts) 

0 0 0 

Police officers 0 0 0 

Fire fighters 0 0 0 

Senior management levels 01--
03  
(excluding finance posts) 

15 6  

Senior management levels 01-
03  
(finance posts) 

6 2 0 

Highly skilled levels 4-6 
(excluding finance posts) 

60 23 23 

Highly skilled levels 4-6 (finance 
posts) 

8 1 0 

TOTAL 94 36 
 

36 

Note:  

                                                                                                                                                T 4.1.2 
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Turn-over Rate 

Details 

Total Appointments as 
of beginning of 
Financial Year 

Terminations during the 
Financial Year 

Turn-over Rate* 

No. No. 

Year 2015/16 50 18 36% 

Year 2016/17 50 12 24% 

Year 2017/18 50 10 20% 

* Divide the number of employees who have left the organisation within a year, 
by total number of employees who occupied posts at the beginning of the year 

T 4.1.3 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON VACANCIES AND TURNOVER: 

All senior management positions to be filled in the next financial year.  

T 4.1.4 

 

COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 
 

INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 

 

We developed relevant and administratively sound policies such as Employment Policy, Skills 

Development etc. Our daily workforce management is guided by all these policies mentioned 

in table below.  

T 4.2.0 
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4.2 POLICIES 

HR Policies and Plans 

Name of policy/ plan Completed  Reviewed  Date adopted by council or 
comment on failure to adopt 

Affirmative action 0   

Attraction and retention 0   

Code of conduct for employees 100% Not 
reviewed 

Regulated by the SALGC Collective 
agreement on disciplinary procedures 
and codes- 2017 

Delegation, authorisation and 
responsibilities 

100% adopted  

Disciplinary procedures 100% In place Regulated by the SALGC Collective 
agreement on disciplinary procedures 
and codes ï 2017 

Essential services 100% 0% 11-02 -2002 

Employee wellness assistance  0%  Regulated by the SALGC Collective 
agreement on disciplinary procedures 
and codes- 2012 

Employment Equity 100% not 
reviewed 

10-08-2011, the Director General of 
Department of Labour recommended 
that it be reviewed 

Exit management  0% 0%   

Grievance procedure 100%  Regulated by the SALGC Collective 
agreement on disciplinary procedures 
and codes- 2012 

HIV/AIDS 100% 0% 30 April 2002 

Humana Resources Training and 
Development 

100% 0% 21 ï 01 -2013 

Information Technology 0%   

Job Evaluation    

Leave 100% 0% 5 ï 12- 2014 

Occupational Health and Safety 100% 0% 2018 

Official Housing 0% 100% Included rental of municipal housing 
stock 

Official journeys 0% 0% Uses S& T Policy to address thst 

Official transport to attend funerals 0%  n/a 

Official working Hours and overtime 50%  The draft needs to be workshopped to 
Council before it is adopted 

Organisational rights 100%  Regulated by the SALGC Collective 
agreement on organisational rights 
2005 

Payroll deductions 0%   

Performance Management Systems 100% 100% 2018 

Employment policy 100% 50% Adopted ï 30 09-2008 and the draft 
review needs to be workshopped to 
Council before it is adopted 

Remuneration scales and allowances 100%  Regulated by SALGBC and its 
determined annually 

Resettlement  0%   

Sexual harassment  100% 0% 30 April 2002 

Skills development 100%  21-01-3013 

Workplace Smoking 100%  30 ï 04 - 2004 

Special skills 0%   

Work organisation 0%   

Dress code 100% 0% 26-0%02 - 2008 
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Other ( allowances), internet and cell 
phone, travel allowance, acting allowance 

100%   

COMMENT: Many policies have been developed in order to avoid inconsistencies in dealing with day to day 
operational matters. Workshops  are often held with Councillors before they adopt the policy which gives them 
added knowledge on municipal information and operations and assisting them in enhancing their oversight role 

 

 

COMMENT ON WORKFORCE POLICY DEVELOPMENT: 

 

Policies are in place but we need to review other obsolete Human resource policies. 

 T 4.2.1.1 

 

 

4.3 INJURIES, SICKNESS AND SUSPENSIONS 
 

Number of days and Cost of Sick Leave (excluding injuries on duty) 

Salary band 

Total sick 
leave 

Proportion 
of sick leave 

without 
medical 

certification 

Employees 
using sick 

leave 

Total 
employees 

in post* 

*Average 
sick leave 

per 
Employees 

Estimated cost 

Days % No. No. Days R' 000 

Semi-Skilled 106 5% 24 109 0.96  n/a 

Highly skilled 
production (levels 4-
6) 

189 5% 21 46 4.1  n/a 

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
7-10) 

149 5% 19 58 2.57  n/a 

Senior 
management 
(Levels 1-3) 

61 5% 4 17 4.1  n/a 

MM and S57 0 0% 0 1 0 n/a 

Total 505 4% 59 234 3.83 0 

* - Number of employees in post at the beginning of the year 

T 4.3.2 *Average is calculated by taking sick leave in colunm 2 divided by total employees in colunm 5 
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                                                                                                                                                       T 4.3. 

 

 

COMMENT ON INJURY AND SICK LEAVE: 

Even though there was no any injury case recorded, employees who regularly take sick leave 

are not monitored by the municipal doctor but their records are kept and maintained 

T 4.3.4 

 

 

Number and Period of Suspensions 

 Position Nature of Alleged 
Misconduct 

Date of 
Suspension 

Details of Disciplinary 
Action taken or Status of 

Case and Reasons why not 
Finalised 

Date Finalised 

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

1.81

5.56 5.61

8.37

0.00
0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2)

Skilled (Levels
3-5)

Highly skilled
production
(levels 6-8)

Highly skilled
supervision
(levels 9-12)

Senior
management
(Levels 13-15)

MM and S57

Average Number of Days Sick Leave (excluding IOD)
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 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 none  none none  none  none  

          

 No officials  
were 

suspended        T 4.3.5 

 

 

 

 

 

Disciplinary Action Taken on Cases of Financial Misconduct 

 Position Nature of Alleged 
Misconduct and Rand 
value of any loss to the 

municipality 

Disciplinary action taken Date Finalised 

none none none none 

none none none none 

none none none none 

none none none none 

none none none none 

none none none none 

No cases 
on financial 
Misconduct    T 4.3.6 
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COMMENT ON SUSPENSIONS AND CASES OF FINANCIAL MISCONDUCT: 

 

No Suspension nor Financial Misconduct. 

T 4.3. 

 

 

4.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS 
 

Performance Rewards By Gender 

Designations Beneficiary profile 

Gender Total 
number of 
employees 
in group 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Expenditure 
on rewards    

Year 1 

Proportion of 
beneficiaries within 

group 

R' 000 % 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 

Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 

Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-15) 

Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

MM and S57 Female  none  none  none  none 

Male  none  none  none  none 

Total  0 0  0  0   
 

No performance bonus were rewarded only mandatory Annual bonus. T 4.4.1 
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COMMENT ON PERFORMANCE REWARDS: 

 Performance bonus not awarded in thid financial year. 

T 4.4.1.1 

 

COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 
 
 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 

We need to ensure that all our employees are fully capacitated for the type of Job that they are 

doing so that they can be effient and effective in their respective deployment. 

T 4.5.0 
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4.5 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 
 

 SKILLS MATRIX  

Management 
level 

Gender  Employees 
in the post 
as at June 
2019 

Learnerships Skills 
programmes 
and  other 
short 
courses 

Other forms of 
training 

TOTAL 

MM and S 57 F   0 0 0 0 0 

M   1 0 0 0 0 

Councillors , 
senior 
managers and 
managers 

F  11 3 0 0 3 

M  11 3 0 0 3 

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 

F   4 0 0 0 0 

M  30 0 0 0 0 

Professional  F  3 0 0 0 0 

M  5 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total F  19 0 0 0 0 

M  62 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL   81 6 0 0 6 

                                                                                                                                                                                       T 4.5.1 
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Financial Competency Development: Progress Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Designation  Total 
number 
of 
officials 
employe
d by 
municip
ality 

Total 
number 
of 
officials 
employe
d by 
municipa
l entities 

Consolidat
ed: Total 
And B 

Consolidat
ed: 
Competenc
y 
assessment 
completed 
for A and B 
( 
REGULATIO
N 14 (4) ( b) 
and (d) 

Consolidated: 
Total number 
of officials 
whose 
performance 
agreements 
comply with 
regulation 16 ( 
regulation 14 
(4) (f) 

Consolidate
d : Total 
number of 
officials that 
meet 
prescribed 
competency 
level ( 
Regulation 
(14)  

Financial 
Officials 

      

Accounting 
Officer 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Chief 
Finance 
Officer 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior 
managers   

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Any other 
financial 
official 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Supply 
Chain 
Management 
officials 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Head of 
supply chain 
units 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Supply 
chain 
management 
senior 
managers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 

Due to the fact that Council sent most of its officials for competency regulations courses during 
previous years, during the year under review council sent 6 Councillors for MFMA Level 6 

                                                                                                                                               T 4.5.2 
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Skills Development Expenditure 

R'000 

Management 
level 

Gende
r 

Employee
s as at the 
beginning 

of the 
financial 

year 

Original Budget and Actual Expenditure on skills development Year 1 

Learnerships Skills 
programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Other forms of 
training 

Total  

No. Origin
al 

Budget 

Actual Origi
nal 

Budge
t 

Actua
l 

Origin
al 

Budget 

Actua
l 

Origin
al 

Budget 

Actual 

MM and S57  Femal
e 

 0  0 0  0 0  0 0  0 0  

Male 0 0 0  0  0 0 0  0  0 

Legislators, 
senior officials and 

managers 

Femal
e  3    0 0  0  0  0 0 

Male  3   0  0 0  0  0  0  

Professionals Femal
e  0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Technicians and 
associate 

professionals 

Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Clerks Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Service and sales 
workers 

Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Plant and 
machine operators 
and assemblers 

Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Elementary 
occupations 

Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Sub total Femal
e 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  

Total   6       0 0  
%* *R 

  T4.5.3 
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COMMENT ON SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND RELATED EXPENDITURE AND ON THE 

FINANCIAL COMPETENCY REGULATIONS: 

 

The municipality adopts WSP as required by Skills Development Act but the implementation 

part is more often frustrated by lack of internal funding, training in silos and late approvals of 

applications by LGSETA. In most cases variance is caused by lack of internal funding to 

complement budget. 

T 4.5. 

 

 

COMPONENT D: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE  
 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

 The importance of managing workforce expenditure is to ensure that whoever is recruited is 

will bring value for money and recruitment should be based on approval of the establishment 

and the budget. 

T 4.6.0 

 

4.6 EMPLOYEE EXPENDITURE 
 

 

Source: MBRR SA22                        T 

4.6.1               

 

COMMENT ON WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE: 

For the past two financial years are workforce expenditure has been a little bit higher than the 

norm, between 30 and 40 % due to our expenditure on overtime and standby but for the current 

financial year we have significantly reduced expenditure on overtime. 

T 4.6.1.1 
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Number Of Employees Whose Salaries Were Increased  Due To Their Positions Being Upgraded 

Beneficiaries Gender Total 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Female  None 

Male  None 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Female  None 

Male  None 

Highly skilled production 
 (Levels 6-8) 

Female  None 

Male  None 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels9-12) Female  None 

Male  None 

Senior management (Levels13-16) Female  None 

Male  None 

MM and S 57 Female  None 

Male  none 

Total 0 

 COMMENT: NO employee salary where increased 
due to the upgrading of the position as the process of 
job evolution is yet to start T 4.6.2 

 

Employees Whose Salary Levels Exceed The Grade Determined By Job Evaluation 

Occupation 
Number of 
employees 

Job evaluation 
level 

Remuneration 
level 

Reason for deviation 

 none  none none  none  none  

 none  none none  none  none  

 none  none none  none  none  

 none  none none  none  none  

 none  none none  none  none  

No employee's salary level exceed grading, as job evaluation is yet to 
start. T 4.6.3 
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Employees appointed to posts not approved 

Department Level 
Date of 

appointment 
No. 

appointed 
Reason for appointment 

when no established post exist 

 none none  none  none  none  

 none none  none  none  none  

 none none  none  none  none  

 none none  none  none  none  

 none none  none  none  none  

No employee was appointed in the position which is 
not approved in the structure as it is not in line with 
MSA   T 4.6.4 

 

 

COMMENT ON UPGRADED POSTS AND THOSE THAT ARE AT VARIANCE WITH 

NORMAL PRACTICE: 

Not applicable 

T 4.6.5 

 

 

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

There is always reluctance or unwillingness to disclose as the forms are consistently 

forwarded to affected staff and councillors but some councillors completed their financial 

disclosures. 

T 4.6.6 
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CHAPTER 5 ï FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Chapter 5 contains information regarding financial performance and highlights specific 

accomplishments. The chapter comprises of three components: 

¶ Component A: Statement of Financial Performance 

¶ Component B: Spending Against Capital Budget 

¶ Component C: Other Financial Matters 

 

We had developed our tariffs in line with the guidelines from National Treasury in so far as the 

Bulk Service providers increases were concerned and the anticipated CPIX. The application of 

cross subsidisation of other services by other more economical services also played a part to 

some degree. We did however face financial constraints, which would result is us not being 

able to meet all our financial obligations, due to the fact that we are having a customer base of 

mainly indigent consumers and even from the business points of view, we do not have so many 

well established business in our locality. 

On the issue of consultancy fees we employed the services of the following service providers.   

 
 T 5.0.1 

 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 For comments refer to table T5.1.1 T 5.1.0 
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5.1 STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

Financial Summary 

R' 000 

Description 

Year 2017/18 Current: Year 2018/19 Year 2018/19 Variance 

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual Original Budget Adjust
ments 
Budget 

Financial Performance             

Property rates        31,835  45 334 45 334 41 444 3 890 3 890 

Service charges      154,609  179 885 179 115 165 341 14 544 14 544 

Investment revenue             _ _ _ _ _ _ 
Transfers recognised - 

operational        166,635 146 506 146 506 174 241 (7 283 ) (7 283) 

Other own revenue        84,697  64 323 65 864 109 796 (66 458) (64 916) 

Total Revenue (excluding capital 
transfers and contributions) 

     437,776  436 048 436 820 490 822 
(55 307) (55 307) 

Employee costs        64,670  95 328 92 424 74 084 27 410 24 506 

Remuneration of councillors          6,684  9 061 9 061 9 153 (77) (77) 

Depreciation & asset impairment        36,261 45 322 45 322 36 024 44 636 44 636 

Finance charges          7,619  5 597 6 697 10 236 2 401 3 501 

Materials and bulk purchases        101,246  108 120 108 120 103 453 (103 474) 
(103 47

4) 

Transfers and grants                ï   _ _  _ _ 

Other expenditure      262,176  124 876 133 257 231 255 (171 556) 
(163 18

5) 

Total Expenditure      478,656  398 309 405 661 464 205 6 278 13 630 

Surplus/(Deficit)      (40,880) 37 739 31 159 26 617 (61 585) (68 135) 

Transfers recognised - capital        
Contributions recognised - capital 

& contributed assets        
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Surplus/(Deficit) after capital 
transfers & contributions 

     (18,433) 37 739 31 159 99 324 
(61 585) (68 165) 

Share of surplus/ (deficit) of 
associate        

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year      (18,433) 37 739 31 159 99 324 (61 585) (68 165) 
         

Capital expenditure & funds 
sources        

Capital expenditure                ï      _  
Transfers recognised - capital        47,409  38 764 38 764 20 453 18 311 18 311 

Public contributions & donations        

Borrowing        

Internally generated funds        

Total sources of capital funds        47,409  38 764 38 764 20 453 18 311 18 311 

Financial position        

Total current assets        81,375  50 657 50 654 118 979 (68 322) (68 322) 

Total non current assets      1 045,285  1 075 001 1 075 001 44 598 1 030 403 
1 030 

403 

Total current liabilities      218,238  211 695 211 695 79 859 131 836 131 836 

Total non current liabilities        75,661  75 647 75 647 10 852 64 795 64 795 

             
         

Cash flows           

Net cash from (used) operating  85 111 85 111  85 111 85 111 

       

       
Cash/cash equivalents at the year 
end  24 888 24 888  85 111 85 111 
        
        

Free services       
Cost of Free Basic Services 

provided       
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Revenue cost of free services 
provided       

Households below minimum 
service level       

Water:       

Sanitation/sewerage:       

Energy:       

Refuse:       
        

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. This 
table is aligned to MBRR table A1 T 5.1.1 
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Financial Performance of Operational Services 

R '000 

Description 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Year 2018/19 Variance 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustments 
Budget 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustments 
Budget 

Operating Cost            

Water 61,32 
     76 394          76 394            66 916  

14% 14% 

Waste Water (Sanitation) 12,66      13 413          13 413              8 363  60% 60% 

Electricity 48,31      60 964          60 964            59 605  2% 2% 

Waste Management 5,44        8 966            8 966              6 695  34% 34% 

Housing 2,59        4 799            4 799              2 916  65% 65% 

Component A: sub-total 130,32    164 536        164 536           144 495  14% 14% 

Waste Water (Stormwater 
Drainage) 

                   ï     0       

Roads 6,03        7 741            7 741              8 797  -12% -12% 

Transport                    ï     0       

Component B: sub-total 6,03        7 741            7 741              8 797  -12% -12% 

Planning 1,11        2 504            2 504              1 681  49% 49% 

Local Economic Development 621,00           280              280                 567  -51% -51% 

Component B: sub-total 622,11        2 783            2 783              2 248  24% 24% 

Planning (Strategic & Regulatary)                    ï                    ï         

Local Economic Development                    ï                    ï         

Component C: sub-total 0,00              ï                  ï                    ï       

Community & Social Services 4,53      40 382          40 382            21 202  90% 90% 

Enviromental Proctection                    ï                    ï         

Health 124,00           163              163                 162  1% 1% 

Security and Safety 19,19      21 827          21 827              7 851  178% 178% 

Sport and Recreation                    ï                    ï         

Corporate Policy Offices and Other 208,07      19 045          19 045            10 932  74% 74% 

Component D: sub-total 355,80      81 418          81 418            40 147  103% 103% 

Total Expenditure 
 

1 114,26   256 478        256 478           195 687  
31% 31% 

In this table operational income is offset agaist operational expenditure leaving a net operational expenditure 
total for each service as shown in the individual net service expenditure tables in chapter 3. Variances are 
calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. 

 T 5.1.2  
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COMMENT ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

 

The majority of variances which have gone beyond 10% particularly those that are cash related 

due to cash flow challenges. Our average payment rate for services for the entire year was 

45%. 

T5.1.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

  197 
 

5.2 GRANTS 
 

Grant Performance 
R' 000 

Description 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Year 2018/19 Variance 

Actual Budget Adjustments 
Budget 

Actual Original 
Budget              

(%) 

Adjustments 
Budget              

(%) 

Operating Transfers and Grants             

National Government:       

  Equitable share 93 451 115 571 115 571 111 060 96% 96% 

  Municipal Systems Improvement       

  Department of Water Affairs       

  Levy replacement       

  Other transfers/grants [social 
services]       

Fire Brigade Grant       

Regional bulk infrastructure grant       

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 24 524 27 073 27 703 25 052 90% 90% 

EPWP 1 000 1 017 1 017 1 017 100% 100& 

Finance Management Grant 2 145 2 215 2 215 2 215 100% 100% 

Provincial Government:       

  Health subsidy       

  Housing       

  Ambulance subsidy       

  Sports and Recreation       

  Other transfers/grants [social 
services]       

Library Grant 610 793 793 557 70% 70% 

District Municipality:       

Dr Kenneth Kaunda District 
Municipality       

        

Other grant providers:       

  [insert description]       

        

Total Operating Transfers and Grants 121 730 146 669 146 669 139 901 95% 95% 

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. 
Full list of provincial and national grants available from published gazettes. T 5.2.1 

 

COMMENT ON OPERATING TRANSFERS AND GRANTS: 

 

The unspent portion of grants was off set against some of the grants hence there was a 

variance at the end of the finanacial year. An amount of R4 511 000 was withheld during the 

year by National Treasury which was a repayment of the previous unspent portion of the 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant. 

T 5.2.2 
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Grants Received From Sources Other Than Division of Revenue Act (DoRA) 

Details of Donor Actual 
Grant 
Year 

2013/14 

Actual 
Grant 
Year 

2014/15 

Year 
2014/15 

Municipal 
Contribution 

Date Grant 
terminates 

Date  
Municipal 

contribution 
terminates 

Nature and 
benefit from the 

grant 
received, include 
description of any 
contributions in 

kind 

Parastatals : NONE 

A - "Project 1"  none none  none none  none none 

A - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 1"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

              

Foreign Governments/Development Aid Agencies : NONE 

A - "Project 1"  none  None  none none  none none 

A - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 1"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

              

Private Sector / Organisations : NONE 

A - "Project 1"  none none  none none  none none 

A - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 1"  none none  none none  none none 

B - "Project 2"  none none  none none  none none 

              

Provide a comprehensive response to this schedule T 5.2.3 

 

COMMENT ON CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND GRANT RECEIVED FROM OTHER 

SOURCES: 

  

No other conditional grants and grants were received for other sources. 

                                                                                                                                                                                             

T 5.2.4 

 

5.3 ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ASSET MANAGEMENT 

 

We have an approved Supply Chain Management Policy which guides the procurement of 

Assets. Asset Details such as description, classification, useful life, location, supplier, and cost 

price are captured on the Capitalisation of Asset Form. Asset Manager is doing monthly Asset 

reconciliation. Verification of Assets is done once a year by the Asset Management Unit. A 

unique Barcode is used to identify our Assets. 

T 5.3.1 
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TREATMENT OF THE THREE LARGEST ASSETS ACQUIRED YEAR 2018/19 

Asset 1 

Name Rebushiment of Oxidation pond in Leeudoringstad. 

Description Improve thework rate of the sewer system. 

Asset Type Infrastructure 

Key Staff Involved PMU staff.       

Staff Responsibilities        

Asset Value 

Year 2015/16 Year 2016/17 Year 2017/18 
Year 

2018/2019 

      

Capital Implications Used grant money. 

Future Purpose of Asset Ensures better sewer services in Leeudorinstad 

Describe Key Issues The sewer pond will be able work better. 

Policies in Place to Manage Asset Yes 

Asset 2 

Name Connections of water pipelines in Ext 17 Wolmaransstad. 

Description Water pipe connections for household use. 

Asset Type Infrastructure 

Key Staff Involved PMU        

Staff Responsibilities Mr James Muller       

Asset Value 

Year 2015/16 Year 2016/17 Year 2017/2018 
Year 

2018/2019 

      
Capital Implications MIG Funding 

Future Purpose of Asset Ensure provision of basic water services in Ext 17. 

Describe Key Issues  New extension which should br provided with basic services. 

Policies in Place to Manage Asset fixed assets management policy 

Asset 3 

Name Connections of sewer pipelines in Makwassie town. 

Description For the decommissioning of septic tanks. 

Asset Type Infrastructure 

Key Staff Involved PMU       

Staff Responsibilities 
Check progress on 

the project.       

Asset Value 

Year: 2015/16 
Year : 

2016/17 Year 2017/2018 
Year 

2018/2019 

       

Capital Implications MIG Funding 

Future Purpose of Asset Saving on the draining of septic tanks. 

Describe Key Issues Makwassie town used septic tanks. 

Policies in Place to Manage Asset fixed assets management policy 

        T 5.3.2 
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COMMENT ON ASSET MANAGEMENT: 

 

Completion certificates, MIG Reports and physical inspection confirm the existence of the 

projects mentioned in T5.3.2 and the said projects are captured in the Capitalisation of Assets 

Form. 

T 5.3.3 

 

 

Repair and Maintenance Expenditure: Year 2018/19 

R' 000 

  

Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Budget variance 

 22 431 21 507 11 060 10 447 

        T 5.3.4 

 

 

COMMENT ON REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE: 

 

Our infrastructure is very old and as a result requires more maintenance. We still need more 

funds as the failure of the municipality to repair and maintain, which causes water and 

sometimes electricity losses which affect our revenue as well. The ideal situation will be to 

replace it, but due to financial constraints this was not feasible.                                                               

T 5.3.4.1 
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5.4 FINANCIAL RATIOS BASED ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 
 

 
 

 

1.5 

1.9 

1.4 

0.8 

ï

 0.2

 0.4

 0.6

 0.8

 1.0

 1.2

 1.4

 1.6

 1.8

 2.0

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Current: Year 0

Cost Coverage

iii. Cost coverage

Cost CoverageïIt explains how many months expenditure can be coveredby the  cash and other 
liquid assets available to the Municipality excluding utilisation of grantsand is calculated

Data used from MBRR SA8
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64.0%

62.0%

68.0%

60.5%

56.0%

58.0%

60.0%

62.0%

64.0%

66.0%

68.0%

70.0%

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Current: Year 0

Total Outstanding Service Debtors 

ii.O/S Service Debtors to Revenue

Total Outstanding Service Debtors ïMeasures how much money is still owed by the 
community for water, electricity, waste removal and sanitation compared to how much money 
has been paid for these services. It is calculated by dividing the total outstanding debtors by 
the total annual revenue. A lower score is better.
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 T 5.4.4 

 

 

 

 

2.1 

1.3 

1.5 

1.2 

ï

  0.5

  1.0

  1.5

  2.0

  2.5

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Current: Year 0

Debt Coverage

i. Debt coverage

Debt CoverageïThe number of times debt payments can be accomodatedwithin Operating 
revenue (excluding grants) .  This in turn represents the ease with which debt payments can be 
accomodated by the municipality

Data used from MBRR SA8
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                                                     T 5.4.5 
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Creditors System Efficiency

Creditors System Efficiency

Creditor System Efficiency ïThe proportion of creditors paid within terms (i.e. 30 days). This 
ratio is calculated by  outstanding trade creditors divided bycredit purchases

Data used from MBRR SA8
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                                                                                                                                    T5.4.6 
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Capital Charges to Operating Expenditure

Capital Charges to Operating
Expenditure

Capital Charges to Operating Expenditure ratio is calculated by dividing the sum of capital 
interest and principle paid by the total operating expenditure.

Data used from MBRR SA8
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T 5.4.7 

 

 
T 5.4.8 
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Employee Costs

Employee costs

Employee cost ïMeasures what portion of the revenue was spent on paying employee 
costs. It is calculated by dividing the total employee cost by the difference between total 
revenue and capital revenue.

Data used from MBRR SA8
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Repairs & Maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance ïThis represents the propotion of operatingexpenditure spent and 
is calculated by dividing the total repairsand maintenace.

Data used from MBRR SA8
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COMMENT ON FINANCIAL RATIOS: 

 

The municipality has not been in a sound financial position, in view of the fact that our 

payment and debt collection success rate has been 45% on average monthly and most of the 

time we could not attend to many of our financial obligations as required by law. This has also 

affected our spending pattern on maintenance and repairs which if not attended to 

accordingly, would result in poor service delivery. 

 

 

T 5.4.9 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 
 

INTRODUCTION TO SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

There were three major capital projects during the 2018/2019 financial year, namely 

replacemrnt of asbestos waterpipe with UPVC in Womaransstad, Water supply project in 

Wolmaransstad Ext 17 and decommissiong of septic tanks in Makwassie town funded from 

grants. Expenditure of the grant fund is 100%. 

T 5.5.0 

 

 

5.5 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 

 
T 5.5.1 
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5.6 SOURCES OF FINANCE 
 

Capital Expenditure -  Funding Sources: Year 2017/18 to 2018/19 

R' 000 

Details 

Year 
2017/18 Year 2018/19 

Actual Original 
Budget 
(OB) 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Adjustment 
to OB 

Variance (%) 

Actual 
to OB 

Variance 
(%) 

Source of finance               

  External loans 
                    
ï   

                    
ï   

                  
ï   

               
ï     

   
Public contributions 

and donations 
                    
ï   

                    
ï   

                  
ï   

               
ï     

  
Grants and 

subsidies       

  Other       

Total         

Percentage of finance         

  External loans       

  
Public contributions 

and donations       

  
Grants and 

subsidies       

  Other       

Capital expenditure         

  
Water and 

sanitation       

  Electricity       

  Housing       

  
Roads and storm 

water       

  Other       

Total         

Percentage of 
expenditure          

  
Water and 

sanitation       

  Electricity       

  Housing       

  
Roads and storm 

water       

  Other       

              T 5.6.1 
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COMMENT ON SOURCES OF FUNDING: 

 

We received additional funding from National Treasury in February and that helped us to 

finance the construction of bulk water and sanitation for Ext 17. Our expenditure on capital 

projects still stands at 100%.  

T 5.6.1.1 

 

5.7 CAPITAL SPENDING ON 5 LARGEST PROJECTS 

Capital Expenditure of 5 largest projects* 
R' 000 

Name of Project 

Current: Year 2018/19 
Variance: Current Year 

2018/19 

Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure  

Original 
Variance  

Adjustment 
variance  

1.  
Augmentation of Bulk 
Water Supply in 
Makwassie / Lebaleng 
PHASE 1 

18 974 
 

18 974 1 615 (17 359) (17 359) 

2. Construction of 
Hawker Stalls in 
Wolmaransstad 
 

2 597 2 597 2 366 231 231 

3.  
Construction of Water 
reticulation in 
Wolmaransstad ext 17 
- Phase 1 
 

975 975 1 041 66 66 

4. 
Installation of sewerline 
in Kgakala ext 4 (32 
stands)  

  

823           823 714 109 109 

 
  

Name of Project  - A Construction of water reticulation in Wolmaranstad EXT 17 phase 1 
        

Objective of Project 
Reticulate area with water pipework and install metred connections 

Delays 
None 

Future Challenges 
Lack of Bulk Water Supply  

Anticipated citizen benefits 
1 000 stands will access to basic water and also temporary job creation 

Name of Project  - B 
Replacement of Asbestos bulk water pipe line in Wolmaransstad 

Objective of Project 
Install UPVC pipeline and decommission the asbestos pipe 

Delays 
None 
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Future Challenges 
None 

Anticipated citizen benefits 
Non interrupted supply of water and temporary job creation 

Name of Project  - C 
 

Objective of Project 
 

Delays 
None 

Future Challenges 
 

Anticipated citizen benefits 
 

Name of Project  - D 
 

Objective of Project 
 

Delays 
None 

Future Challenges 
None 

Anticipated citizen benefits 
 

Name of Project  - E 
Construction of bulk water service in wolmaransstad EXT17 

Objective of Project 
Transport water from the Tswelelang reservoir to Wolmaransstad ext.17 

Delays 
Delays due to repeated subcontractor strikes 

Future Challenges 
Lack of adequate Bulk Water Supply 

Anticipated citizen benefits 
Access to basic water and temporary job creation  

T 5.7.1 

 

 

COMMENT ON CAPITAL PROJECTS: 

The variance between the Original budget, Adjustment and Actual budget were as result of 

further funding that was anticipated and eventually received. It is imperative that projects be 

implemented on time, more so when funds are available to avoid roll-overs and at times 

withdrawals or even reduction of future funding of such projects by Treasury and other relevant 

departments. 

T 5.7.1.1 

 

5.8 BASIC SERVICE AND INFRASTRUCTURE BACKLOGS ï OVERVIEW 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICE AND INFRASTRUCTURE BACKLOGS 

Once we are done with township establishment we intend putting services so that our people 

can move away from informal settlements.                                                                                                                  

T 5.8.1 

 

 

 



 
 

  211 
 

 

 

Service Backlogs as at 30 June Year 2019 
Households (HHs) 

  *Service level above minimum standard **Service level below minimum standard 

  No. HHs % HHs No. HHs % HHs 

Water 20505 96% 1500 12.76% 

Sanitation 20505 96% 1500 12.76% 

Electricity 20505 97.4% 1500 12.76% 

Waste management 20505 78.5% 1500 12.76% 

Housing 20505 97.4% 1500 12.76% 

% HHs are the service above/below minimum standard as a proportion of total HHs. 
'Housing' refers to * formal and ** informal settlements. T 5.8.2 

 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)* Expenditure Year 2018/19 on Service backlogs 
R' 000 

Details 

Adjustments  
Budget 

Actual Variance Major conditions applied 
by donor (continue below 

if necessary) 
Budget Adjustments  

 Budget 

Infrastructure - Road transport  - -  - - -  

Roads, Pavements & Bridges         

Storm water         

Infrastructure - Electricity  -  - - -  - 

Generation         

Transmission & Reticulation         

Street Lighting         

Infrastructure ð Water         

Dams & Reservoirs         

Water purification         

Reticulation       

Infrastructure - Sanitation        

Reticulation       

Sewerage purification         

Infrastructure ð Other   -  - -   

Waste Management         

Transportation         

Gas         

Other Specify:         

          

          

          

Total       
 

T 5.8.3 
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COMMENT ON BACKLOGS: 

Over past financial year the Municipality displayed 100% implementation of funds spending 

through infrastructural projects such the surfacing of 3.22km of block paving to help mitigate 

the backlog on the surfacing of roads. 

T 5.8.4 

 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 
 

INTRODUCTION TO CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT. 

 

Cash can come from both internal and external sources, and the Statement of Cash Flow 

helps the municipality and communities separate and observe the differences and extent of the 

cash inflows and outflows. Internal, as opposed to external cash sources, provide the 

municipality with successful attributes and assurances that include:  

1)  Preventing and monitoring municipal debt 

2) Preventing unnecessary expenditures from interest and wasteful and fruitless expenditures. 

3) Ensuring timely investment and cash available for investment opportunities as when they 

arise. 

4) Ensuring timely payment of expenses and bulk purchases to allow service delivery to run. 

5) and most importantly ï ensuring a level of regular municipal income without relying on cash 

borrowing or external funding. 

Effectively managing and monitoring cash flows serves many purposes. The most significant 

reason is to provide communities, stakeholders and managers insight into municipalityôs cash 

position 

 

Our approaches ranges from data cleansing to enhance accurate billing, implementation of 

credit control policies, debt recovery, managing distribution losses and cost containment 

mechanisms. 

 T 5 
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5.9 CASH FLOW 

Cash Flow Outcomes 
R'000 

Description 

Year 
2017/18 

Current: Year 2018/19 

Audited 
Outcome 

Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES         

Receipts         

Ratepayers and other 79 165 143 998 143 998  

Government - operating 148 192 120 462 120 462  

Government - capital 36 817 64 808 64 808  

Interest 967 31 862 31 862  

Other 22 770 10 540 10 540  

Payments     

Suppliers and employees (183 883) (283 859) (283 859)  

Finance charges (3 307) (2 700) (2 700)  

Transfers and Grants  0  0  0  0 

NET CASH FROM/(USED) OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 100 721 85 111 85 111  

      

NET CASH FROM/(USED) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 142 931 56 835 56 835  

          

Source: MBRR A7      T 5.9.1 
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COMMENT ON CASH FLOW OUTCOMES: 

 

We experience serious cash flow problem because our collection rate is still low and household 

debt is not getting better and it contributes to high rate of non-payment. We are still unable to 

pay our creditors in time due to this cash flow problem. We have adopted Revenue Staregise 

but due to poor implementation it did not yield the results. 

T 5.9.1.1 

 

5.10 BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 

 

The aspect of borrowing is of great relevance to us although not ideal in the sense that in an 

event we have run out of cash and options to quickly generate it, as the last resort we would 

consider borrowing. On the other hand, in an event we have surplus cash which will not be 

utilised in a short space of time, investment will be an ideal option to us.      

       T 5. 
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Actual Borrowings: Year 2017/18 to Year 2018/19 
R' 000 

Instrument 
Year 

2016/17 
Year  
2017/18 

Year 
2018/2019 

Municipality     

Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance) 

         

43,761  

         

48,493  50,493 

Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)     

Local registered stock     

Instalment Credit     

Financial Leases     

PPP liabilities     

Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier     

Marketable Bonds     

Non-Marketable Bonds     

Bankers Acceptances     

Financial derivatives     

Other Securities     

Municipality Total 

         

43,761  

         

48,493 50,493 

       

Municipal Entities      

Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance)      

Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)      

Local registered stock      

Instalment Credit      

Financial Leases      

PPP liabilities      

Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Supplier      

Marketable Bonds      

Non-Marketable Bonds      

Bankers Acceptances      

Financial derivatives      

Other Securities      

Entities Total    

      T 5.10.2 

 



 
 

  216 
 

 
T 5.10.3 

 

 

Municipal and Entity Investments  
R' 000 

Investment* type 

Year 
2016/17 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 
2018/2019 

Actual Actual  

Municipality      

Securities - National Government      

Listed Corporate Bonds      

Deposits ï Bank 
            371              388  388 

Deposits - Public Investment Commissioners 
     

Deposits - Corporation for Public Deposits 
     

Bankersô Acceptance Certificates 
     

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit - Banks 
     

Guaranteed Endowment Policies (sinking) 
            360              360  360 

Repurchase Agreements - Banks 
      

Municipal Bonds 
      

300

350

400

Year 2016/17 Year 2017/18 Year 2018/19

R
 m

ill
io

n
Actual Borrowings

Municipé
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Other 
              26  

              

26.966   

Municipality sub-total 
            732  

            

27.714   

       

Municipal Entities      

Securities - National Government      

Listed Corporate Bonds      

Deposits ï Bank      

Deposits - Public Investment Commissioners      

Deposits - Corporation for Public Deposits      

Bankers Acceptance Certificates      

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit - Banks      

Guaranteed Endowment Policies (sinking)      

Repurchase Agreements ï Banks      

Other      

Entities sub-total                ï                  ï    

       

Consolidated total: 
            732  

            

27,714   

      T 5.10.4 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS: 

 

Borrowings will only be considered as a last resort in an event there is not sufficient cash 

available and means to generate it at that moment. The investment would only be appropriate 

in an event we have sufficient cash which we would not be using in a short space of time.  

 

T 5.10.5 
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5.11 PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS 
 

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS 

 

 

T 5.11.1 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 

5.12 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

 

The Supply Chain Managent was adopted by council to fully comply with the SCM 

Regulations expressed under National Treasury general notice 868, Gazette no.27635.The 

SCM Policy is in place and is followed to the latter. 

T 5.12.1 

 

 

5.13 GRAP COMPLIANCE 
 

GRAP COMPLIANCE 

 The financial of the Municipality are 100% GRAP Compliant. T 5.13.1
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CHAPTER 6 ï AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 
Note: The Constitution S188 (1) (b) states that the functions of the Auditor-General includes the auditing 

and reporting on the accounts, financial statements and financial management of all municipalities. MSA 

section 45 states that the results of performance measurementé must be audited annually by the 

Auditor-General. 

 - Annual Financial Statements (2018/19) are reported on in volume II of this Annual Report. Annual 

Performance Report 2018/19 was submitted during August 2019 together with the Annual Financial 

Statements and audited during the period September- November 2019. The production of reports  was 

done during the year on a quarterly basis and annually.   

T 6.0.1 

 

COMPONENT A: AUDITOR-GENERAL OPINION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year 2017/18.1 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORTS Year 2017/18 (Previous year) 
 

Auditor-General Report on Financial Performance: Year 2017/2018 

Audit Report Status*: Qualified 

Non-Compliance Issues Remedial Action Taken 

Some of the competitive bids were adjudicated by a bid 
adjudication committee that was not composed in 
accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). 

SCM policy to be followed to there latter and there be 
consequence management. 

Some of the goods and services of a transaction value 
above R200 000 were procured without inviting 
competitive bids, as required by SCM regulation 19(a). 

SCM policy to be followed to there latter and there be 
consequence management. 

Some of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incurred by the municipality was not investigated 

All cases due for investigation be processed and MPAC to take 
charge. 

Some competitive bids were adjudication by a bid 
adjudication committee that was not composed in 
accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). 
 

SCM policy to be followed to there latter and there be 
consequence management. 

Some quotations were awarded to a bidder that did not 
score the highest points in the evaluation process, as 
required by section 2(1)(f) of the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act and Preferential 
Procurement Regulations. 
 

SCM policy to be followed to there latter and there be 
consequence management. 

The performance of contractors or providers was not 
monitored monthly, as required by section 116(2)(b) of 
the MFMA. 
 

SCM policy to be followed to there latter and there be 
consequence management. 

 

  T 6.1.1 
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Auditor-General Report on Service Delivery Performance: Year 2017/2018 

Audit Report Status: Qualified 

Non-Compliance Issues Remedial Action Taken 

The targets approved in the annual performance plan were 
not consistent when compared to the targets reported in the 

annual performance report. 

Ensure consistency between planned, performed and 
reported targets. 

Unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for 
the reported measures taken to improve performance. 

Management to ensure that all the supporting documents are 
collected and collated correctly and be readily available for 
audit. 

  T 6.1.2 

 

 

COMPONENT B: AUDITOR-GENERAL OPINION YEAR 2018/19 (CURRENT YEAR) 
 

6.2 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT YEAR 2018/19 
 

Auditor-General Report on Financial Performance Year 2018/2019 
Status of audit report: Disclaimer 

Non-Compliance Issues Remedial Action Taken 

The financial statements submitted for auditing were 
not prepared in all material respects in accordance 
with the requirements of section 122(1) of the 
MFMA. 

Intervention from Provincial treasury is requested. 

The 2017-18 annual report was not tabled in the 

municipal council within seven months after the 

end of the financial year, as required by section 

127(2) of the MFMA. 

The Annual Report for 18/19 will be tabled on time. We sourced 
assistance from from the Department of Local Government  in the 
province. 

The council failed to adopt an oversight report 

containing the council's comments on the 201718 

annual report, as required by section 129(1) of the 

MFMA.  

 

MPAC will have to prioritize the Tabling of all the outstanding 
Reports 

Money owed by the municipality was not always 
paid within 30 days, as required by section 65(2)(e) 
of the MFMA 

This is due to cash flow problems, consumers do not pay their 
accounts 

An adequate management, accounting and 

information system was not in place which 

recognised expenditure when it was incurred and 

accounted for payments made, as required by 

section 65(2)(b) of the MFMA.  

 

The municipality applies the accrual basis of accounting, invoices 
are recognised the earlier of payment or when they are received, 
With our new performance system each manager is required to 
perform reconcilliations weekly 

Expenditure was incurred in excess of the 

approved budget, in contravention of section 87(8) 

of the MFMA.  

 

Management is currently ensuring that budget are not exceeded, 
by enforcing the budget manager tp sign each and every budget 
requsition 

An effective system of internal control for debtors 

and revenue was not in place, as required by 

section 64(2)(f) of the MFMA.  

Management have request COGTA to assist with the debtors 
cleansing so that we can have a true reflection of debtors 
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Unauthorised expenditure incurred by the 

municipality was not investigated to determine 

whether any person was liable for the expenditure, 

as required by section 32(2)(a) of the  

MFMA.  

 

The UIF& W Reports after being send to council were referred to 
Mpac for further investigation and recommendation. The process is 
still underway however a process plan has been developed for 
MPac to expedite the investigation and report to council accordingly 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Some of the irregular expenditure incurred by the 

municipality was not investigated to determine 

whether any person was liable for the expenditure, 

as required by section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA.  

 

The UIF& W Reports after being send to council were referred to 
Mpac for further investigation and recommendation. The process is 
still underway however a process plan has been developed for 
MPac to expedite the investigation and report to council accordingly 
 

 

Some of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

incurred by the municipality was not investigated to 

determine whether any person was liable for the 

expenditure, as required by section 32(2)(b) of the 

MFMA.  

 

The UIF& W Reports after being send to council were referred to 
Mpac for further investigation and recommendation. The process is 
still underway however a process plan has been developed for 
MPac to expedite the investigation and report to council accordingly 
 

 

  T 6.2.1 

  

 

 

 

Auditor-General Report on Service Delivery Performance: Year 2018/2019 

Status of audit report**: Disclaimer 

Non-Compliance Issues Remedial Action Taken 

The integrated development plan (IDP) did not 

reflect the council's vision for long-term 

development as required by section 26(a) of the 

Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act 

No. 32 of 2000) (MSA).  

 

Ward inputs by respective councillors be included when IDP 
review is conducted. 

Measurable performance targets were not set for 

each of the key performance indicators for the 

financial year, as required by section 41(1)(b) of 

the MSA and municipal planning and performance 

management regulation 12(1).  

 

Targets be set according to the Standard Operating Procedure 
manualand the Municipal Planning and Perforomance 
Management regulation. 

  

  T 6.2.2 
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Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial 
legislature and the council on Maquassi Hills Local Municipality  

Report on the audit of the financial statements  

Disclaimer of opinion  
1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Maquassi Hills Local Municipality 

set out on pages 328 to 378, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 

June 2019, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 

statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for 

the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies.   

2. I do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the municipality. Because of 

the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of 

this auditorôs report, I have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 

provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.  

Basis for disclaimer of opinion  
Receivables from non-exchange transactions  

3. The municipality did not have adequate processes and systems in place to correctly account 

for impairment on receivables from exchange transactions as required by Standards of 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 104, Financial instruments, as an 

impairment assessment of outstanding debts was not adequately performed. I was unable to 

quantify the resultant misstatement as it was impracticable to do so. In addition, I was unable 

to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for these receivables due to the status of the 

accounting records. I was unable to confirm these receivables by alternative means.  

Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to receivables 

from non-exchange transactions of R40 372 991 (2018: R29 472 482) as disclosed in 

note 5 and the debt impairment of R157 545 756 (2018: R157 513 036) as disclosed in 

note 27 to the financial statements, were necessary.  

Vat receivable  

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the Vat receivable due to the 

status of the accounting records and non-submission of information. I was unable to confirm 
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this Vat receivable by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 

any adjustment to the Vat receivable of R24 736 869 (2018: R27 176 090) as disclosed in 

note 6 to the financial statements was necessary.  

Receivables from exchange transactions  

5. The municipality did not have adequate processes and systems in place to correctly account 

for impairment on receivables from exchange transactions as required by GRAP 104, 

Financial instruments, as an impairment assessment of outstanding debts was not 

adequately performed. I was unable to quantify the resultant misstatement as it was 

impracticable to do so. In addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 

evidence for these receivables due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to 

confirm these receivables by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any further adjustments to receivables from exchange transactions of R100 665 609 

(2018: R32 127 942) as disclosed in note 7 and the debt impairment of R157 545 756 (2018: 

R157 513 036) as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements were necessary.  

Cash and cash equivalents  

6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cash and cash equivalents 

due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm these cash and cash 

equivalents by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 

adjustment to cash and cash equivalents of R1 916 169 (2018: R8 216 643) as disclosed in 

note 8 to the financial statements was necessary.  

Investment property  

7. The municipality did not correctly recognise all investment properties or fair valued these 

properties at reporting date, as required by the accounting policy and GRAP 16, Investment 

property. As the municipality did not maintain a complete register for investment property, I 

was unable to determine the full extent of the resulting misstatements on investment property 

of R66 492 000 (2018: R66 492 000) as disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements as it 

was impracticable to do so.  

Property, plant and equipment  

8. The municipality did not depreciate property, plant and equipment correctly as required by 

GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment. Errors in the calculations of depreciation and 

inconsistencies in useful lives were identified for the current and prior years in the accounting 

records. Consequently, property, plant and equipment in note 10 was understated by R518 

880 081 (2018: R521 707 889), depreciation in note 25 to the financial statements 

understated by R2 827 808 (2018: R20 522 612) and accumulated surplus understated by 

R542 230 501  

9. During 2018, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant 

and equipment due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to determine 

whether any adjustments were necessary to property, plant and equipment of R978 697 106 

as disclosed in note 10 and depreciation of R36 261 364 as disclosed in note 25 to the 

financial statements. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 

June 2018 was modified accordingly. I was still unable to confirm these assets by alternate 

means. Consequently, my opinion on the current periodôs financial statements is also 
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modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current 

periodôs figures.  

Payables from exchange transactions  

10. During 2018, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from 

exchange transactions due to differences between the financial statements and the 

accounting records. I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary to 

payables from exchange transactions of R223 337 911 as disclosed in note 12 to the 

financial statements. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 

June 2018 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current periodôs financial statements 

is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the 

current periodôs figures.  

Accumulated surplus  

11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the restatement of the prior 
year accumulated surplus due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to 
confirm the accumulated surplus by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment to the accumulated surplus of R856 366 878 (2018: R817 
625 112) in the statement of financial position and statement of changes in net assets was 
necessary.  

Government grants  

12. The municipality did not correctly account for government grants as required by GRAP 23, 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions as conditional grants were recognised as revenue 

without the necessary conditions of the grants being met. Consequently, revenue from 

government grants as disclosed in note 22 was overstated and unspent conditional grants 

and receipts as disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements was understated by R6 930 

485.  

Employee-related costs  

13. During 2018, the municipality did not correctly disclose remuneration paid to key 

management personnel as required by GRAP 20, Related parties. Consequently, the 

remuneration paid to key management personnel as disclosed in note 23 to the financial 

statements was understated by R5 262 528. My audit opinion on the financial statements for 

the period ended 30 June 2018 was modified accordingly.  

Bulk purchases  

14. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for bulk purchases due to the 

status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm these expenses by alternative 

means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to bulk purchases 

of R103 453 215 (2018: R101 246 298) as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements 

was necessary.  

Contracted services  

15. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for contracted services due to the 

status of the accounting records and non-submission of information to support these 

expenses. Furthermore, the municipality incorrectly recognised expenditure relating to 
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repairs and maintenance as contracted services, resulting in contracted services being 

overstated and repairs and maintenance being understated by R3 362 446. I was unable to 

confirm these expenses by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any further adjustment to contracted services of R39 985 230 (2018: R40 503 188) 

as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements was necessary.  

Repairs and maintenance  

16. During 2018, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for repairs and 

maintenance due to differences between the financial statements and accounting records. I 

was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary to repairs and maintenance 

of R1 718 699 as included in the statement of financial performance. My audit opinion on the 

financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2018 was modified accordingly. I was still 

unable to confirm these expenses by alternate means. My opinion on the current year 

financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the 

comparability of the current periodôs figures.  

General expenses  

17. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for general expenses due to the 

status of the accounting records. Furthermore, the municipality recognised expenses in the 

incorrect periods in both the current and prior years. I was unable to determine the full extent 

of the misstatement as it was impracticable to do so. I was unable to confirm these expenses 

by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to 

electricity in general expenses of R29 918 489 (2018: R18 871 935) as disclosed in note 32 

to the financial statements was necessary.  

Statement of cash flows  

18. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the calculation of the net 

cash flows from operating activities, net cash flows from investing activities and net cash 

flows from financing activities for both current and prior periods appropriately accounted for 

cash and noncash items as required by GRAP 2, Cash flow statements. The municipalityôs 

system did not allow the performance of alternative procedures to determine the extent of 

these misstatements. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 

related to net cash flows from operating activities, net cash flows from investing activities and 

net cash flows from financing activities included in the cash flow statement and the notes 

thereto.  

Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts  

19. GRAP 24, Presentation of budget information in the financial statements requires the 

presentation of the budget information, including a statement of comparison of the budget 

and actual amounts as well as reasons for variances. The final budget amounts included in 

the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts did not agree to the final 

approved budget of the municipality, nor did the municipality disclose any explanations for 

material differences between budget and actual amounts. I was unable to quantify the full 

extent of the omitted disclosure as it was impracticable to do so.  

Commitments  
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20. During 2018, the municipality did not correctly disclose contractual commitments for the 

acquisition of property, plant and equipment as required by GRAP 17, Property, plant and 

equipment. Consequently, the contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant 

and equipment as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements were understated by R5 

052 063. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2018 was 

modified accordingly.  

Going concern  

21. The municipalityôs current liabilities exceeded its current assets by R116 421 553 as at 30 

June 2019 which, along with other matters, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty 

that may cast significant doubt on the municipalityôs ability to operate as a going concern. 

The aforementioned information has not been correctly disclosed in note 35 to the financial 

statements.  

Unauthorised expenditure  

22. Section 125 of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 

2003) (MFMA) requires the disclosure of unauthorised expenditure incurred. I was unable to 

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for unauthorised expenditure due to the status of 

the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the unauthorised expenditure by alternative 

means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to unauthorised 

expenditure of R850 469 836 (2018: R789 634 038) as disclosed in note 37 to the financial 

statements was necessary.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

23. Section 125 of the MFMA requires the disclosure of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

incurred. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the fruitless 

and wasteful expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any adjustment to fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R12 176 001 (2018: R7 602 

312) as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements was necessary  

Irregular expenditure  

24. Section 125 of the MFMA requires the disclosure of irregular expenditure incurred. 

Furthermore, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for irregular 

expenditure due to the status of the accounting records. In addition, the municipality made 

payments of R13 903 107 in contravention of the supply chain management (SCM) 

requirements in the current year which were not included in irregular expenditure disclosed. 

As the municipality did not quantify the full extent of irregular expenditure and I was unable to 

confirm the irregular expenditure by alternative means, it was impracticable to determine the 

resultant misstatement of irregular expenditure. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any further adjustment to irregular expenditure of R226 721 676 (2018: R153 155 

494) as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements was necessary.  

Prior year adjustments  

25. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the prior year adjustments 

made to corresponding figures as disclosed in notes 41 to the financial statements, as 

documentation and explanations I considered necessary to support these transactions were 
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not available. I was unable to confirm these adjustments by alternative means. In addition, 

the municipality did not correctly disclose all adjustments made to correct prior period errors 

in accordance with GRAP 3, Accounting policies, estimates and errors. Furthermore, the 

comparative amount for the accumulated surplus in the statement of changes in net assets 

was not appropriately restated to account for these adjustments as required. Consequently, I 

was unable to determine whether any adjustments to prior period errors and adjustments 

disclosed in notes 41 or the statement of changes in net assets were necessary.  

Distribution losses  

26. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the municipality correctly 

calculated and disclosed the electricity and water losses for the current and prior year as 

required by section 125(2)(d)(i) of the MFMA as the municipality does not have adequate 

control measures in place to accurately determine the extent of these losses. I was unable to 

confirm these losses by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 

any adjustment relating to distribution losses as disclosed in note 42 to the financial 

statements was necessary.  

Other matter  

27. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

Unaudited disclosure notes  

28. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipality is required to disclose 

particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA. This disclosure requirement did not form 

part of the audit of the financial statements and accordingly I do not express an opinion 

thereon.  

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements  

29. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of 

the MFMA and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2018 (Act No. 1 of 2018) 

(DorA), and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

30. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing 

the Maquassi Hills Local Municipalityôs ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 

as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the 

municipality or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.   

Auditor-generalôs responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

31. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and to issue an auditorôs report. However, 

because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this 

auditorôs, I was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 

for an audit opinion on these financial statements.   
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32. I am independent of the municipality in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the 

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountantsô Code of ethics for professional 

accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountantsô  

International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International  

Independence Standards) (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to my audit of the financial statements in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.  

Report on the audit of the annual performance report  

Introduction and scope  
33. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) 

and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for 

the selected key development area presented in the annual performance report. I was 

engaged to perform procedures to raise findings but not to gather evidence to express 

assurance.  

34. I was engaged to evaluate the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management 

and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected key 

development area presented in the annual performance report of the municipality for the 

year ended 30 June 2019:  

Key development area  Pages in the annual 

performance report  

Key development area 1: Basic services and infrastructure 

development  

138 - 145 

35. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected key 

performance area are as follows:  

Key performance area 1: Basic services and infrastructure 
development  

Various indicators: Reported targets not consistent and changes not approved  

36. The targets approved in the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) 

were not consistent when compared to the targets reported in the annual performance 

report for the following indicators. These changes were also not approved.  

Indicator  Target as per SDBIP  
Target as per annual 

performance report  

BSD01: Length of water pipes 

installed in Wolmaransstad 

Ext.  

17.  

7 km of water pipelines installed 

by the end of June 2019 in 

Wolmaransstad Ext. 17  

9.625 km of water pipelines  

installed by the end of June 

2019 in  

Wolmaransstad Ext. 17  
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BSD05: Refurbish oxidation 

ponds in Leeudoringstad  

1 Refurbished oxidation ponds in  

Leeudoringstad  

Refurbish oxidation ponds in  

Leeudoringstad by June 2019  

BSD13: Length of existing 

asbestos pipeline replaced by  

UPVC water pipeline in  

Wolmaransstad 

4 810 metres of asbestos 

pipeline replaced with UPVC by 

June 2019  

4 810 metres of asbestos 

pipeline replaced with UPVC 

in Wolmaransstad town by 

June 2019 

 

 

BSD02: Number of boreholes in drilled Makwassie  

37. The target was initially approved in the annual performance plan as ó10 boreholes drilled 

by end of June 2019 in Makwassie townô. However, the target was changed without the 

necessary approval and reported in the annual performance report as ó23 boreholes 

drilled by end of June 2019 in Makwassieô. Furthermore, I was unable to obtain sufficient 

appropriate audit evidence to support the measures taken to improve performance 

against the target  

óMunicipality to explore alternative funding vehicle to resuscitate the bulk water supply 

scheme between Buisfontein and Tswelelangô as reported in the annual performance 

report. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to 

confirm the reported measures taken by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable 

to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported measures taken to 

improve performance.  

BSD04: Number of households served with new sewer connections in 

Makwassie town  

38. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the measures taken to 

improve performance of óIn future a comprehensive feasibility study for projects of this 

magnitude should be carried outô as reported in the annual performance report. This was 

due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the reported 

measures taken by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether 

any adjustments were required to the reported measures taken to improve performance.  

Various indicators: Performance indicators are not verifiable and reported 

achievements not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence  

39. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reported 

achievements of the indicators listed below. This was due to a lack of systems and 

processes that enable reliable reporting, a lack of technical indicator descriptions, formal 

standard operating procedures and documented system descriptions. I was unable to 

confirm the reported achievements by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 

determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements as 

follows:  

Indicator  
Reported 

achievement  

BSD07: Fix damaged roads due to potholes in all municipal roads  3.42 km  

BSD08: Fix water pipe leakages in all municipal areas  1 098  
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BSD09: Fix sewer blockages in all municipal areas  1 624  

BSD11: Number of cable faults fixed in municipal areas  73  

BSD20: The percentage of households with access to basic level of water  88%  

BSD21: The percentage of households with access to basic level of 

sanitation  87%  

BSD22: The percentage of households with access to basic level of 

electricity  87%  

BSD23: The percentage of households with access to basic level of solid 

waste removal  70%  

 

BSD10: Number of street light bulbs replaced in all municipal areas  

40. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reported 

achievement and the related measures taken to improve performance as reported in the 

annual performance report. This was due to a lack of systems and processes that enable 

reliable reporting, a lack of proper technical indicator descriptions, formal standard 

operating procedures and documented system descriptions as well as limitations placed 

on my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement or measures taken to 

improve performance by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any adjustments to the reported achievement of ó167ô and the related measures 

taken to improve performance of óMunicipality is looking at purchasing new cherry pickerô 

were necessary.  

Various indicators: Reported achievements not supported by sufficient 

appropriate audit evidence  

41. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement 

of the following indicators. This was due to limitations placed on my work. I was unable 

to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable 

to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements as 

follows:  

Indicator  
Reported 

achievement  

BSD12: Number of building plans approved in all municipal areas  126  

BSD15: Income collected from outstanding traffic fines  R3 976 385  

BSD16: Income collected from vehicle registrations and licensing renewals  R11 497 689  

BSD17: Income collected from drivers and learner licenses  

42. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement 

of  

óR771 167ô and to support the measures taken to improve performance against the 

target óTesting routes should be fixed as roads are damaged by potholesô as reported in 

the annual performance report. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my 
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work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievements and measures taken by 

alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 

were required to the reported achievement and measures taken to improve performance.  

 

BSD19: Repainting of road markings in CBD roads  

43. The target was initially approved in the annual performance plan as óRepainted road 

markings in CBD roads by June 2019, Wolmaransstad CBD area; Leeudoringstad CBD 

area; Witpoort area, Makwassie CBD areaô. However, the target was changed without 

the necessary approval and reported in the annual performance report as óRepainted 

road markings in CBD roads by June 2019ô. Furthermore, I was unable to obtain 

sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reported achievement or the related 

measures taken to improve performance as reported in the annual performance report. 

This was due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions, proper performance 

management systems and processes with formal standard operating procedures that 

predetermined how the achievement would be measured, monitored and reported as 

well as limitations placed on my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement 

or measures taken to improve performance by alternative means. Consequently, I was 

unable to determine whether any adjustments to the reported achievement of  

óWolmaransstad CBD repaintedô and the related measures taken to improve 

performance of óMunicipality must appoint more staff to be able to execute its dutiesô were 

necessary. Other matter  

44. I draw attention to the matter below.   

Achievement of planned targets   

45. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 138 to 145 for information on the 

achievement of planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in 

the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information in paragraphs 36 to 43 of this report.  

Report on audit of compliance with legislation  

Introduction and scope  
46. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipality with 

specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 

gather evidence to express assurance.   

47. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:  

Annual financial statements and annual report  

48. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects 

in accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material 

misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were not 
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adequately corrected and the supporting records could not be provided subsequently, 

which resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion.  

49. The 2017-18 annual report was not tabled in the municipal council within seven months 

after the end of the financial year, as required by section 127(2) of the MFMA.  

50. The 2017-18 annual report was not made public after being tabled in council, as required 

by section 127(5)(a) of the MFMA.  

51. The local community was not invited to submit representations in connection with the 

2017-18 annual report, as required by section 127(5)(a) of the MFMA.  

52. The council failed to adopt an oversight report containing the council's comments on the 

201718 annual report, as required by section 129(1) of the MFMA.  

Expenditure management  

53. Money owed by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days, as required by 

section 65(2)(e) of the MFMA.  

54. Reasonable steps were not taken to ensure that the municipality implements and 

maintains an effective system of expenditure control, including procedures for the 

approval, authorisation, withdrawal and payment of funds, as required by section 65(2)(a) 

of the MFMA.  

55. An adequate management, accounting and information system was not in place which 

recognised expenditure when it was incurred and accounted for payments made, as 

required by section 65(2)(b) of the MFMA.  

56. Expenditure was incurred in excess of the approved budget, in contravention of section 

87(8) of the MFMA.  

57. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 

62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the irregular expenditure could not be quantified 

as indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. Most of the disclosed irregular 

expenditure was caused by awarding of contracts without following a proper competitive 

bidding process.  

58. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 

required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure could not be quantified as indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. 

Most of the disclosed  

fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest and penalties paid on overdue 

accounts.  

59. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure, as required by 

section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the unauthorised expenditure could not 

be quantified as indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. Most of the disclosed 

unauthorised expenditure was caused by spending that was not budgeted for.  

Revenue management  

60. An effective system of internal control for debtors and revenue was not in place, as required by 

section 64(2)(f) of the MFMA.  
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Assets management  

61. An effective system of internal control for assets (including an asset register) was not in 

place, as required by section 63(2)(c) of the MFMA. 

Consequence management  

62. Unauthorised expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to determine 

whether any person was liable for the expenditure, as required by section 32(2)(a) of the  

MFMA.  

63. Some of the irregular expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to 

determine whether any person was liable for the expenditure, as required by section 

32(2)(b) of the MFMA.  

64. Some of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipality was not 

investigated to determine whether any person was liable for the expenditure, as required 

by section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA.  

Strategic planning and performance management  

65. The integrated development plan (IDP) did not reflect the council's vision for long-term 

development as required by section 26(a) of the Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 

2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA).  

66. Measurable performance targets were not set for each of the key performance indicators 

for the financial year, as required by section 41(1)(b) of the MSA and municipal planning 

and performance management regulation 12(1).  

Human resource management  

67. Appropriate systems and procedures to monitor, measure and evaluate the performance 

of staff were not developed and adopted, as required by section 67(1)(d) of the MSA.  

Procurement and contract management  

68. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were 
procured without obtaining the required price quotations, in contravention of by SCM 
regulation 17(a) and (c).  

69. Some of the competitive bids were adjudicated by a bid adjudication committee that was 

not composed in accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). Similar non-compliance was 

reported in the prior year. This non-compliance was identified in the procurement 

processes for the installation of 1 High Mast Light in Rulaganyang, 2 in Kgakala Ext. 3 

and 2 in Kgakala Ext. 4.  

70. Some of the contracts were awarded to bidders who had not submitted a declaration on 

whether they are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the 

state, as required by SCM regulation 13(c). This non-compliance was identified in the 

procurement processes for the refurbishment of Leeudoringstad Sewage Treatment Plant 

Works.  

71. The performance of some of the contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly 

basis, as required by section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA. Similar non-compliance was 

reported in the prior year. This non-compliance was identified in the procurement 
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processes for the installation of 9,625 km of water pipes in Wolmaransstad Ext. 17 and 

installation of 1 High Mast Light in Rulaganyang, 2 in Kgakala Ext. 3 and 2 in Kgakala 

Ext. 4 

Internal control deficiencies  

72. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 

performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 

objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below 

are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the disclaimer of 

opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance 

with legislation included in this report.  

Å Leadershipôs continuous failure to appoint sufficient and appropriately skilled staff in 

key and support staff positions within the finance, performance and compliance units 

remained unchanged since prior years, leading to instability within the municipalityôs 

administration, excessive reliance on consultants to compile financial information 

and a lack of effective guidance that is based on a culture of honesty, ethical 

business practices and good governance. This philosophy and operating style do 

not contribute towards an environment conducive to clean administration. In 

addition, leadership failed to adequately exercise in-year monitoring and oversight 

as decisive actions were not taken to address risks pertaining to the achievement of 

complete and accurate financial and performance reporting and related internal 

controls. Failure to ensure properly implemented and monitored action plans and the 

continuous lack of consequences for poor performance and transgressions resulted 

in repeat findings that could reasonably have been prevented.  

Å Management did not monitor and review financial and performance reporting, 

compliance with legislation and internal controls. Despite the use of consultants to 

compile the financial statements submitted for auditing, these statements were of 

poor quality as they contained numerous basic accounting and numerical errors that 

could reasonably have been prevented had due care been exercised. In addition, 

the financial statements and performance report were not supported by accurate 

and complete underlying records as management and staff failed to prepare and 

review properly captured and reconciled accounting and performance records 

throughout the year that agree with the reports submitted for auditing and fully 

understanding the requirements of the financial and performance reporting 

frameworks. Managementôs failure to implement corrective actions to ensure 

compliance with legislation resulted in numerous repeat compliance findings.  

Å Despite the audit committee and internal audit unit functioning during the year, these 

structures had limited impact on the effectiveness of the internal control 

environment, including financial and performance reporting and compliance with 

legislation. This is due to municipality not addressing and implementing deficiencies 

and recommendations identified by the audit committee and the internal audit unit 

not completing all its reviews for the year, including revision of the financial 

statements prior to submission for auditing. Furthermore, the audit committee did not 
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adequately impact on the quality of the financial statements and performance report 

prior to submission for auditing as recommendations by the audit committee were 

not addressed, resulting in numerous fundamental accounting and numerical 

misstatements.  

Å Despite the municipal public accounts committee (MPAC) functioning throughout the 

year, it did not fulfil its oversight responsibilities as numerous oversight reports 

pertaining to annual reports dating back to 2008-09 were not finalised. This 

philosophy and operating style resulted in limited assurances from the MPAC and 

prevented council from fully performing its oversight, accountability and governance 

responsibilities.  

Other reports  

73. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties which had, or 

could have, an impact on the matters reported in the municipalityôs financial statements, 

reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other 

related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements 

or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.  

Investigations  

74. An investigation by an independent forensic investigator into yellow and white fleets 

purchased by the municipality was commissioned by the then accounting officer. This 

investigation commenced in July 2017 and had not been finalised at the reporting date.  

75. Two separate independent forensic investigators were appointed during the previous year 

to investigate irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in prior years. 

These investigations had not been finalised at the reporting date.  

76. An investigation was initiated by Presidential Proclamation during the 2014-15 financial 

year and was conducted by the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) into allegations of SCM 

irregularities. The investigation had not been finalised at the reporting date.  

77. An investigation by the Hawks into allegations of SCM irregularities was initiated during 

the 2014-15 financial year by the then accounting officer. This investigation had not been 

finalised at the reporting date.  

78. An investigation by South African Police Service (SAPS) into allegations of SCM 

irregularities was initiated during the 2014-15 financial year by the then accounting 

officer. This investigation had not been finalised at the reporting date.  

79. An independent firm investigated alleged fraudulent cheques during the 2010-11 financial 
year on request of the municipality. This investigation had not been finalised at the 
reporting date.  
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COMMENTS ON AUDITOR-GENERALôS OPINION YEAR 2018/19: 

Unfortunately we regressed to a disclaimer Audit opinion as expressed by the Auditor General. 

T 6.2.4 

 

COMMENTS ON MFMA SECTION 71 RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

Section 71 of the MFMA requires municipalities to return a series of financial performance 

data to the National Treasury at specified intervals throughout the year. The Chief Financial 

Officer states that these data sets have been returned according to the reporting requirements. 

 

Signed (Chief Financial Officer)ééééééééééééééé. 31 August 2019                                                   

T 6.2.
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POST AUDIT ACTION PLAN 2019/20  

PERIOD :  JANUARY 2020 

  

  AUDIT FINDING PROGRESS Detailed 

Progress 

START 

DATE 

END 

DATE 

RESPONSIBLE 

OFFICIAL 

  COMMENTS AFFECT 

THE AUDIT 

OUTCOME 

1 Borrowings & long-term loans 0%       Manager Expenditure       

2 Cash and cash equivalents  13%       Manager Expenditure       

3 Cash Flow Statements 0%       Chief Financial Officer/ 
Divisional Head 
Finance 

    
  

4 Commitments 33%       Commitments       

5 Contingent liabilities 0%       Chief Financial Officer/ 
Divisional Head 
Finance 

    
  

6 Employee Costs  22%       EMPLOYEE COSTS       

7 Information Technology 25%       Accountant Cash 
Management 

    
  

8 Financial Statements Review 4%       Chief Financial Officer/ 
Divisional Head 
Finance 

    
  

9 Compliance 0%       MHLM - Accounting 
Officer 

    
  

11 Immovable assets 0%       Manager Asset       

13 Investment Property 25%       Manager Asset       

15 Operating Expenditure  0%       Manager Expenditure       

16 Payables 4%       Manager Expenditure       

17 Predetermined Objectives  35%       Manager PMS       

18 Procurement 0%       Manager Supply Chain       

19 Provisions 25%       Divisional Head HR       

20 Receivables 0%       Manager Revenue       

21 Related Party 50%       Divisional Head HR       

22 Revenue 13%       Manager Revenue       
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Number of 
exceptions 

Action Plans Completed Action Plans in 
Progress 

Action 
Plans not 
started 

Progress 
(%) 

     

133 19                              46  46 11% 
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 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

      

  
 

  

 

    

Date:  
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 MUNICIPAL MANAGER 

       

  
 

       

Date:  
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HOME  

Borrowings & long-term loans Responsible Person: CFO   Manager Expenditure 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

1 0 Ex. 130 - MISSTATEMENT - Misstatements identified in other financial liabilities ( COMAF 68 ) 

    

   
 

   
PROGRESS   ROOT CAUSE Proposed Solution Progress to date Date Resources to be used 

0 1 lack of record keeping regular statements will be obtained from DRKK and 
be made available for Audit purposes. 

no progress to date 28-Feb-20 CFO 

    

    

   

    

   
    

 
  

 

   

 
  

    
 

  
    

 
 

     

       

       

       
 

HO
ME  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESPONSIBLE PERSON:   Manager 
Expenditure 

       Due Date: 30 April 2020     

         

 Query 

1 0 
Ex. 83 - MISSTATEMENTS - Differences identified in cash and cash equivalents between bank 
reconciliations and accounting records ( COMAF 40)     
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2 0 
Ex. 15 - MISSTATMENTS - Differences identified for cash and cash equivalents for the prior year June 2018 
( COMAF 60 )     

3 0 
Ex. 67- MISSTATEMENTS - Cash and cash equivalents- Bank confirmation total balance of accounts does not agree to the amount represented on 
the face of the statement of financial position as at 30/06/2019. (COMAF 31 ) 

4 0 Ex.  46- MISSTATEMENT - Cash and cash equivalents- Fixed deposit pledged/ceded has not been disclosed in AFS. (COMAF 31) 

       

PROGR
ESS 

ROOT CAUSE PROPOSED SOLUTION PROGRESS TO DATE DUE DATE Resources to be 
used 

              

0,25 

1 

Lack of review 
of the AFS 
and the 
review of the 
monthly 
reconciliaition
s 

Management to prepare the draft 
AFS and submit it to PT and the 
AC for review and 
recommendations 

Bank reconciliation for July and August have already been 
prepared and will be provided as POES 

30-Mar-20 CFO and 
Expenditure 
Manager 

0 

2 

Lack of review 
of the AFS 
and the 
review of the 
monthly 
reconciliaition
s 

Management to prepare the draft 
AFS and submit it to PT and the 
AC for review and 
recommendations 

No progress to date 30-Mar-20 CFO and 
Divisional head 
finance 

0,25 

3 

Lack of review 
of the AFS 
and the 
review of the 
monthly 
reconciliaition
s 

Management to prepare the draft 
AFS and submit it to PT and the 
AC for review and 
recommendations 

no progress to date 30-Apr-20 CFO 

0 

4 

Lack of review 
of the AFS 

Management to prepare the draft 
AFS and submit it to PT and the 
AC for review and 
recommendations 

No progress to date 30-Apr-20 CFO 
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HOME  

Cash Flow Statements Responsible Person: CFO   Chief Financial Officer/ Divisional 
Head Finance  

       Due Date:           

          

 Query  
1 0   Ex. 118  - MISSTATEMENT - Misstatements identified in the Cash Flow Statement. (COMAF 62)   
2 0   Ex. 129  - MISSTATEMENT -Inaccuracies identified in the Statement of Cash Flows. (COMAF 62)   
                         

3  0   
Ex. 28 - MISSTATEMENTS -  - Calculations for the 2018 comparative figures not 
provided ( COMAF 10 ) 

    

 

            

PROGRESS   
ROOT 
CAUSE PROPOSED SOLUTION PROGRESS TO DATE DUE DATE Resources to be used  

0 

1 

Lack of 
review of 
the AFS 
and 
records 
keeping 

Management to prepare the draft AFS 
and submit it to PT and the AC for review 
and recommendations   

No progress to date 
31 April 
2020 CFO  

0 

2 

Lack of 
review of 
the AFS 
and 
inaccuracy 

Management to prepare the draft AFS 
and submit it to PT and the AC for review 
and recommendations   

No progress to date 
31 April 
2020 CFO  

              

0 

3 

Lack of 
review of 
the AFS 

Management to prepare the interim AFS and 
submit it to AG and AC for review and 
recommendations. 

No progress to date 

31 April 
2020 

CFO 
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HOME  

Commitments Responsible Person:    Commitments 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

1 0 
Ex. 81 - LIMITATION -  2018/19 Commitment: difference in amount of commitment as at year end (COMAF 58 
)     

2 0 
Ex. 24 - MISSTATEMENT - Differences between the operating lease register and the annual financial 
statements ( COMAF 70 )     

3 0 Ex. 82- MISSTATEMENT - 2017/18 Commitments: Discrepancies identified ( COMAF 70 ) 
    

       
PROGRE

SS   ROOT CAUSE PROPOSED SOLUTION PROGRESS TO DATE 
DUE 
DATE 

RESOURCES TO BE 
USED 

0 1 Lack of review by management 1, Preparation of the interim AFS 2, 
Review of the interim AFS 3, Timely 
preparation of the AFS to aloow for 
adequate review by CFO. 

interim AFS drafted and submitted to 
iternal auditor , PT and AC for review. 

Interim 
AFS - 30 
April 2020 
Submissio
n to 
Internal 
Audit - 30 
April 2020 

Internal Auditor - 
Audit Committee 
and CFO 
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Submissio
n to AC - 
30 April 
2020 
Preparati
on of AFS 
- 31 May 
2020 
Submissio
n to IA - 1 
August 
2019 
Submissio
n to AC - 
Awaiting 
final 
schedule 
of AC 
meetings 
from 
Shared 
Internal 
Auditor. 

  

0,5 2 Lack of review by management operating lease regiister  was prepared 
and will be sent to respective manger for 
review 

the register was prepared and will be 
submitted for review 

Jan-20 manager revenue , 
manager Assets. 

    

0,5 3 Lack of review by management Commitment register be compiled and 
reviewed regularly 

The register was prepared and will be 
submitted for review 

Jan-20 manager revenue , 
manager Assets.     
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HOM
E 

Contingent Liabilities Responsible Person:    Chief Financial Officer/ Divisional Head 
Finance 

       Due Date:      

         

1 0   Ex. 62 - MISSTATEMENT -  Contingencies: RFI 46 Limitation of scope_ISS.62 ( COMAF 26) 

2 0   Ex. 17 - MISSTATEMENT - Disclosure  of contingent liabilities not complete and  accurate (COMAF 21) 

3 0  Ex. 51 - MISSTATEMENTS - Contingent liabilities: Cases not disclosed (COMAF 37 )   

4 
0  

Exc 50 - Contingent liabilities: Differences noted in external confirmations ( 
COMAF 21)   

    
ROOT 
CAUSE PROPOSED SOLUTION PROGRESS TO DATE 

DUE 
DATE RESOURCES TO BE USED 

0 

1 lack of 
review and 
proper 
monitoring 
and records 
managemen
t. 

Develop and update a contigent 
liability register , an update will be 
requested on a quarterly basis from 
the lawyers. Also identify all cases 
individually and make files for those 
cases. 

Allign the updated register to the 
comment of the Auditor General 

Feb-20 Director Corporate and Aseet Manager 

0 

  

0 
          

0 

2 lack of 
review and 
proper 
monitoring 
and records 
managemen
t. 

Develop and update a contigent 
liability register , an update will be 
requested on a quarterly basis from 
the lawyers. Also identify all cases 
individually and make files for those 
cases. 

Allign the updated register to the 
comment of the Auditor General 

Feb-20 Director Corporate and Aseet Manager 

0 

  

0 
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3 lack of 
review and 
proper 
monitoring 
and records 
managemen
t. 

Develop and update a contigent 
liability register , an update will be 
requested on a quarterly basis from 
the lawyers. Also identify all cases 
individually and make files for those 
cases. 

Allign the updated register to the 
comment of the Auditor General 

Feb-20 Director Corporate and Aseet Manager 

  

  

  

4 

 

 

 
  

 

 
  

    

 
  

    

 
  

    

       

 

 

 

HOME  EMPLOYEE COSTS Responsible Person:  Divisional 
Head HR 

EMPLOYEE 
COSTS  

      Due Date:       
         

Query 

                            
1  

0 Ex. 002- COMPLIANCE - No performance contracts for the employees other than Senior Management (COMAF 
8) 

  

  

                            
2  

0 Ex. 78 - MISSTATEMENT - Disagreement between Remuneration of Councillors and Gazetted Amount (COMAF 
38 ) 

  

  

                            
3  

0 Ex. 109 - MISSTATEMENTS - Employees Differences noted between the statement of financial position and 
Note 24 remuniration of councillors comparative figure ( COMAF 53 ) 
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4  

0 Ex. 61 - MISSTATEMENT - Remuneration of Councillors (Disagreement) (COMAF 28)   

  

                            
5  

0 Ex. 80 - MISSTATEMENT - Number of leave days taken incorrectly calculated by the system ( COMAF 38 )   

  

                            
6  

0 Ex. 79 - LIMITATION - Employee not verified ( COMAF 38 )   

  

                            
7  

0 Ex. 156 - MISSTATEMENT - Employee Related Cost-Comparative Figures for Key Management Personnel Not 
Disclosed ( COMAF 80 ) 

  

  

                            
8  

0 Ex. 110 MISSTATEMENTS - Employees related costs incorrectly disclosure of key management personnel ( 
COMAF 53)     

                            
9  

0 Ex. 116 - COMPLIANCE -Employees in acting positions longer than 3 months without approval (COMOF 65 ) 

      

 
         

 
         

        

PROGRES
S 

  
ROOT CAUSE PROPOSED SOLUTIONS PROGRESS TO DATE DUE DATE 

RESOURCES 
TO BE USED 

0 1 Lack of substantive senior 
managers and Capacity 

Since Senior Managers have been 
appointed the implementation plan will be 
drawn to include lower level employees. In 
terms of capacity intervention will be 
requested from Local Government and 
internal Audit unit to assist. 

A process plan will be developed 28-Feb-20 Local 
Government 
and internal 
Auditor 

0,25 2 Lack of review, inaccuracy 
and proper 
communication from 
other stake holders. 

Decisions to be communicated timeously with 
regards to employees cost and Remuneration 
of Councillors are to the payroll office 
immediately after a decision is taken by council. 

Developed a resolution register to track 
implementation of resolutions 

on going Director 
Corporate and 
Divisional head 
Administartion
. 

  

  

0,25 3 lack of review on the 
Annual Financial 
Statements 

Preparation of the AFS to be done timeously to 
enable mangement amplified time for review. 

Interim AFS will be prepared by the end of 
April 2020 and be sent to the Auditor , AG 
and Audit Committee for review 

15-Apr-20 CFO  

  

  

0,25 4 lack of review on the 
Annual Financial 
Statements 

Preparation of the AFS to be done timeously to 
enable mangement amplified time for review. 

Interim AFS will be prepared by the end of 
April 2020 and be sent to the Auditor , AG 
and Audit Committee for review 

15-Apr-20 CFO  

  

  

0,25 5 Lack of review and 
inaccuracy 

A leave work plan template will be developed 
to ensure compliance for the purpose of 
review. A process for review of the leave have 
already been started and will be monitored on 
a monthly basis. 

  on going Developed 
template and 
Solar 
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0,25 6 Lack of co ordination and 
proper communication 

Timeosly notify people who needs to be 
verified and ensure by means of collecting 
employees , due to logistical challenges of 
people comiong to Wolmaransstad for 
verification AG will be requested to verify 
Employees at their respective site. 

The person who will specifcally 
cordination this process immediately 
when an exception on employees is issued 
have already been identified. 

During 
Audit 

Internal 
Auditor   

  

0,25 7 lack of review on the 
Annual Financial 
Statements 

Preparation of the AFS to be done timeously to 
enable mangement amplified time for review. 

Interim AFS will be prepared by the end of 
April 2020 and be sent to the Auditor , AG 
and Audit Committee for review 

15-Apr-20 CFO  

  

  

0,25 8 lack of review on the 
Annual Financial 
Statements 

Preparation of the AFS to be done timeously to 
enable mangement amplified time for review. A 
process with time frames will be implemented 
for reviewing components of the AFS 

Interim AFS will be prepared by the end of 
April 2020 and be sent to the Auditor , AG 
and Audit Committee for review 

16-Apr-20 CFO  

  

  

0,25 9 Lack of monitoring and 
high vacancy rate 

A new Acting application form will be 
developed that will stipulate the terms and 
the period of Acting , monitoring will be 
done in term of municipal Acting policy. 

All Acting position which exceed 3 month 
will be terminated by the end of January 
2020 and new forms will be filled by 
employees who will be norminated to Act 
on that particular position. 

31-Mar-20 Hr Manager 
and Divisional 
Head 
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HOME  

1
1 

  Information Technology Responsible Person: 
CFO 

Accountant Cash 
Management 

       
Due Date: 31 March 
2020 

  

         

  Query 

 0   
Ex. 47 - INTERNAL CONTROL - Deficiencies identified in the IT Department 
(COMAF 76 )     

           

Progres
s   

ROOT 
CAUSE Proposed Solution Progress to date 

Resources to be 
used 

0,25 1 

Lack of a 
functional 
IT 
Departmen
t at the 
municipalit
y 

The organisational structure will be updated and all ICT policies will be updated, It 
strategic plan will be updated and SLA be updated. 

The policies have 
already been developed 

CFO 
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HOME  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REVIEW Responsible Person:    Chief Financial Officer/ 
Divisional Head Finance  

       Due Date:       

          

 Query  
                          
1  0 

Ex. 19- MISSTATEMENT - Statement of comparison of budget amounts and actual does not included reasons for variance(COMAF 5) 

 

                          
2  0 

Ex.135 - MISSTATEMENTS -  Expenditure VAT 
Receivable  201718 and 201819 differences ( COMAF 
79)      

                          
3  0 

Ex.23 - MISSTATEMENT - Amount per AFS do not agree to General Ledger and Trial Balance and registers (COMAF 13)  

 
                          
4  0 

Ex. 56 - MISSTATEMENT - Incomplete disclosure of financial liabilities ( COMAF 23) 

 
                          
5  0 

Ex. 57 - LIMITATION - The accounting policy note for PPE not clear on the measurement model applied (COMAF 24) 

 
                          
6  0 

Ex. 014 - MISSTATEMENT - Misstatements (Disagreement) - Incomplete disclosure of prior period error in note 41 to Annual Financial Statements (COMAF 
36 )  

                          
7  0 

Ex. 34 - INTERNAL CONTROL  - Expenditure internal 
control deficiency ( COMAF 18)      

                          
8  0 

Ex. 16 - INTERNAL CONTROL  - Expenditure internal 
control deficiency ( COMAF 4)      

                          
9  0 

Ex. 55- MISTATEMENT - Statement of comparison of budget and actual inaccurately prepared (COMAF 22) 

 
                        

10  0 
Ex. 28 - MISSTATEMENTS -  - Calculations for the 2018 comparative figures not provided ( COMAF 10 )     

 
                        

11  0 
Ex, 159 - MISSTATEMENTS - Difference between GL 
and VAT 201 2017/18 2018/19 ( COMAF 80 )   

    

 
                        

12  0 
Ex.74 - MISSTATEMENTS - Investments - Difference in interest between the bank account and General ledger ( 
COMAF 59 ) 

    

 
                        

13  0 
Ex. 109 - MISSTATEMENT- Employee Related Cost- Differences noted between Statement of Financial Position and Note 24 Remuneration of Councilors 
comparative figure ( COMAF 53)  

                        
14  0 

Ex. 110 - MISSTATEMENTS - Employee Related Cost - Incorrect Disclosure of Key Management Personnel ( COMAF 53 ) 

 
                        

15  0 
Ex. 114 - MISTATEMENT - Incorrect Depreciation calculation ( 
COMAF 63 )   

    

 
                        

16  0 
Ex.106 - MISSTATEMENTS - Incorrect Accumulated 
Depreciation Calculation ( COMAF 63 )  

      

 
                        

17  0 
Ex.26  - MISSTATEMENTS - Disagreement misstatements on Statement of Changes in Net Assets (COMAF 9 ) 
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18  0 

Ex,128 - MISSTATEMENTS - - No sufficient appropriate audit evidence for adjustments to Accumulated Surplus ( 
COMAF  

    

 
                        

19  0 
Ex. 145 - MISTATEMENTS - Distribution losses are incorrectly calculated for 2018/19 period ( COMAF 74 )     

 
                        

20  0 
Ex. 137- MISSTATEMENTS - - Going concern note incorrectly disclosed in the financial statements ( COMAF 71 )     

 
                        

21  0 
Ex. 149 - MISSTATEMNETS - No supporting documentation provided for the 
journals ( COMAF 75 ) 

      

 
                        

22  0 
Ex 150 - LIMITATION - No journal provided for audit purposes ( COMAF 75 )       

 
                        

23  0 
Ex. 153 - MISSTATEMENTS -  Prior year period error ( COMAF 77)       

 
                        

24  0 
Ex. 97 - MISSTATEMENT-  Prior period adjustments ( COMAF 44 ) 

 
                        

25  0 
Ex. 77 - MISSTATEMENT-  Prior period adjustments ( COMAF 64 ) 

 

        
PROGRE

SS 
  ROOT CAUSE 

PROPOSED 
SOLUTIONS 

PROGRESS TO DATE DUE DATE RESOURCES TO BE USED 
 

0 1 lack of review of the AFS Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

The budget have already been 
prepared and tabled to council 
including reasons for variances 

30-Jun-19 CFO and Budget Manager  

  

   

 
0 2 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

VAT recnciliations have 
already been prepared and will 
be thoughly reviewed by the 
linr manager and the CFO 

monthly Expenditure mnager and 
CFO 

 

  

 

 
0 3 lack of review of the AFS 30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue  
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Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

 
0 4 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue  

  

 

 
0 5 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20    

  

 

CFO , manager revenue 

 

0 6 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 
 

  

 

 
1 7 lack of review of the AFS daily  



 

253 
 

  

 

Request for 
quotes will 
be sent to 
the 
Accounting 
officer for 
Authorisatio
n 
immediately 
after the 
CFO hasve 
signed 
before a 
payment is 
processed 

Request for quotes are being 
sent to the Accounting officer 
before a payment is effected 
on the system 

CFO and Accounting 
officer 

 
0 8 

lack of review of the AFS 

managemen
t to esure 
that after an 
order is 
captured on 
the system 
is signed by 
SCM 
manager 
before it is 
being send 
to 
expenditure 
for 
processing. 

Orders are being signed by the 
SCM manager 

daily CFO and Accounting 
officer 

 

  

 

 
0 9 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

The budget have already been 
prepared and tabled to council 
including reasons for variances 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue  
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0 
1
0 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

    CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
1 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
2 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
3 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 
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0 
1
4 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
5 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
6 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

  

 

 

0 
1
7 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 
Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 
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0 
1
8 

lack of review of the AFS 

Manageme
nt should 

adequately 
review the 

Annual 
Financila 

Statements 
to ensure 

accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

0 
1
9 

lack of review of the AFS 

Manageme
nt should 

adequately 
review the 

Annual 
Financila 

Statements 
to ensure 

accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

CFO , manager revenue 

 

0 
2
0 

lack of review of the AFS 

Manageme
nt should 

adequately 
review the 

Annual 
Financila 

Statements 
to ensure 

accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20   

 

1 
2
1 

lack of review of the AFS 

Before a 
journal is 

processed 
on the 
system 

mangemen
t will 

ensure that 
all 

supporting 
documenta

tion are 
readily 

journal are only prepared on a 
need basis. 

CFO , manager revenue 
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available 
and are 
kept in a 

safe place 
for 

submission 
to auditors 
during the 

Audit 

0,75 
2
2 

lack of proper record keeping 

All journal 
prepared 
will be 
scanned 
and kept 
on our 
inyernally 
shared file 
service 

information will be available 
for submission during Audit 

during 
Annual 
Audit 

Internal Audiotr 

 

0 
2
3 

lack of review of the AFS 

Manageme
nt should 

adequately 
review the 

Annual 
Financila 

Statements 
to ensure 

accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 

 

0 
2
4 

lack of review of the AFS 

Manageme
nt should 

adequately 
review the 

Annual 
Financila 

Statements 
to ensure 

accuracy of 
the AFS. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

CFO , manager revenue 

 

0 

2
5 

lack of review of the AFS 

Managemen
t should 
adequately 
review the 
Annual 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and preparation 
of the interim Annual financial 
Statements. 

30-Apr-20 CFO , manager revenue 
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Financila 
Statements 
to ensure 
accuracy of 
the AFS. 

        

        

 

  

     

 
  

     

 
  

     

 
  

     

 
 

      
        

        
 

 

HOM
E 

1
2 

  Compliance Responsible Person: Accounting 
Officer & Management 

  MHLM - 
Accounting 
Officer 

       Due Date:      

     

   
  

  Query 

                 
1  0 

Ex. 86 - COMPLIANCE - Council failed to adopt oversight reports on prior years' annual reports ( COMAF 39 )   
  

                 
2  0 

Ex. 12 - LIMITATION- Register submitted for Audit purposes not 
reviewed by senior personnel (COMAF 14)   

  
  

                 
3  0 

Ex. 11 - COMPLIANCE - Internal audit function not adequately adding value to the municipqality ( COMAF 12)   
  

                 
4  0 

Ex. 04 - COMPLIANCE - Governance and oversight committees not in place (COMAF 8)   
  

                 
5  0 

Ex.5 - COMPLIANCE - No disciplinary board in place (COMAF 3)   
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6  0 

Ex. 009 - INTERNAL CONTROL- Policies not signed as evidence of approval ( COMAF 76 )   
  

                 
7  0 

Ex. 141 - MISSTATEMENTS - Distribution losses incorrectly calculated ( COMAF 72 )   
  

                 
8  0 

Ex. 161 - INTERNAL CONTROL - Internal control - Deficiencies identified in water and sanitation services during the audit ( COMAF 
82 ) 

  
  

                 
9  0 

Ex. 18 - COMPLIANCE - External quality assurance review of internal audit not performed  (COMAF 12)   
  

               
10  0 

Ex. 164 - INTERNAL CONTROL -  Internal control - Deficiencies identified in the roads infrastructure during the audit ( COMAF 82 )   
  

               
11  0 

Ex. 162 - INTERNAL CONTROL -  Deficiencies identified in support to local government during the audit ( COMAF 82 )   
  

               
12  0 

Ex. 163- INTERNAL CONTROL - Deficiencies identified in the use of consultants during the audit ( COMAF 82 )   
  

               
13  0 

Ex. 85 - COMPLIANCE  - 2017-18 Annual Report was not tabled in council within seven months after year end ( COMAF 39 )   
  

               
14  0 

Ex. 87 - COMPLIANCE - The local community was not invited to submit representations in connection with the 2017-18 annual report (COMAF 39 ) 

   

   
 

             

Progre
ss   Root Cause 

Proposed 
Solution 

Progress to date DUE 
DATE 

Resources to 
be used 

0 1 Lack of leadership and timeous preparation with Annual report  Develop a 
programme 
to deal with 
current and 
prior years 
oversight 
report ,  
identify all  
projects 
that were 
implemente
d the 
budget 

A process plan to be developed 31-Jan Director 
Corporate 
Services 

  

 

0 2 lack of review Register will 
be regulary 
compiled 
and review 
by senior 
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managers 
and they 
must sign 
the 
document 
and date it 
as a sign of 
review 

0 3 lack of capacity An internal 
Auditor will 
be 
Appointed 
to Assist 
the Shared 
Internal 
Audit, 
revision of 
the Annual 
plan to 
cover for 
the task 
that was 
supposed 
to be 
performed 
in the first 
6 month 

An ingternal Auditor will be 
appointed 

31-
Jan-

20 

Internal 
Auditor and 
Shared 
Internal Audit 
Services form 
DRKK 

0 4 Lack of capacity  Those 
structures 
were 
established 
and a 
programme 
of action 
will be 
developed 
to ensure 
the 
effective 
performanc
e of the 
functions of 

Programme of action will be 
developed for the better function of 
the structures. 

31-Jan-
20 

IDP Manager 
/ MPAC 
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such 
structures. 

1 5 Council have established a disciplinary board A 
disciplinary 
board is in 
palce and 
will be 
effective 

A board have abeen established   Council and 
MM 

    

0 6 lack of review Al policies 
will be 
given to the 
Accounting 
officer for 
Authorisati
on. 

A process plan be developed , 
reviwed and adopted by council. 

31-
Mar-
20 

Council and 
MM 

  

 

0,75 7 lack of review All recons 
will be 
review and 
monitored 
on a 
monthly 
basis 

Recons are prepared on a daily basis 
and sent to Respective Managers for 
review. 

daily All manager 
and Directors 

   
0,5 8 The supporting documents was submitted to AG The plan 

was 
determined 
and 
submitted 
to the 
auditor 
general - A  
maintenace 
plan will be 
developed 
and 
monitored 
on a 
monthly 
basis - 
Souce 
fundidng 

Plan submitted to Auditor general. during 
2018/2
019 
Audit 

Director 
technical 
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from 
Treasury for 
the 
developme
nts of the 
Master Plan 
-  The 
municipality 
have Mr 
Nelson 
Mwase and 
James 
Muller who 
are more 
than 
qualified as 
Technicians 
and will 
provide 
their 
qualificatio
n as 
Portfolio of 
Evidence. - 
Annual 
financial 
Statements 
will be 
review by 
CFO. 

0 

9 

The internal audit does not have adequate capacity to complete the 
reviews. 

The internal 
Audit 
shared 
service will 
deal with 
this 
exception 

    Internal Audit 
Shared 
services 
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0 1
0 

Lack of proper internal control the 
municipality 
to source 
funding for 
the 
preparation 
of the 
Master Plan 
- Also to 
develop a 
road 
maintenanc
e plan 
internally 
.Mr Mwase 
and Mr 
Baicumedi 
will provide 
their 
qualificatio
ns as 
portfolio of 
evidence. - 
Condition 
assessment 
from the 
district will 
be souced 
to assist the 
municipality
. 

No progress to date 31-
Mar-
20 

Director 
technical 

  

 

0 1
1 

Lack of proper internal control The 
municipality 
to invite( 
aL{!Ωǎύ 
Municipal 
Infrastructu
re 
Performanc
e 
Manageme

No progress to date 31-Jan-
20 

Director 
technical 
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nt 
Information 
System 
(MIPMIS) to 
provide 
training.F43
31 

0 1
2 

lack of proper planning and communication between municipality and other 
statekholder assist the municipality. 

Need 
analysis will 
be 
developed 
for future 
appointmen
ts - 
comprehen
sive terms 
of reference 
will also be 
developed - 
The clause 
for transfer 
of skills will 
be included 
in The 
Service 
level 
Agreement 
(SLA) - 
there will 
also be a 
clause on 
Performanc
e and 
monitoring. 

No progress to date on 
going 

Municipal 
manager and 
SCM Manager 

  

 

1 1
3 

Different interpretation of the Law between AG and the Municipality. Annual 
report will 
be sent to 
the Auditor 
General and 
then tabled 
to council 

The Annual report was sent to the 
Auditor general for review before 
being sent to council fro tabling 

28-
Feb-20 

Pms Manager 
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on or 
before the 
31 january 
2020. 

1 

1
4 

Different interpretation of the Law between AG and the Municipality. The local 
community 
were 
invited to 
come and 
make 
inputs. 

The Annual report was sent to the 
Auditor general for review before 
being sent to council fro tabling 

28-
Feb-20 

Pms Manager 
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HOME  

Immovable assets Responsible 
Person: 

  Manager Asset 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

 0   Ex. 121 - COMPLIANCE - No Roads Maintenance Plan ( COMAF 65 )   

 0   
Ex. 144 - COMPLIANCE - Assets write off not authorized - 
2017/2018 ( COMAF 73 )       

       

       
PROGRE

SS   Root Cause Proposed Solution Progress to date 
DUE 
DATE 

Resources to be 
used 

0 1 
Lack of oversight rerport by 

management 
A road management plan should be developed by management 
and implemented effectively 

no progress to 
date 

31-May-
20 

CFO , Asset unit 

      

0 2 lack of oversight by management 
Municipality is not planning to write off any Assets in the current 
financial year. 

no progress to 
date 

30-Jun-
20 

Asset manager 
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HOME  

Investment Property Responsible Person: Mr Madisha   Manager Asset 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

1 0   
Ex.  27 - MISSTATEMENT- Fair value measurement of investment property was not done (COMAF 
14)    

2 0   
Ex. 32 - Investment property: Accounting policy not in line with 
GRAP 16 ( COMAF 29 )     

3 0   
Ex. 53 - Investment property: Difference in values between the investment register and the valuation 
roll ( COMAF 35 )    

4 0   
Ex. 58 - MISSTATEMENT -  Investment property: 
Discrepancies identified ( COMAF 35 )     

5 0   
Ex. 63 - MISSTATEMENT - Investment property: Property not belonging to the municipality ( COMAF 
37)    

6 0   
Ex. 139- MISSTATEMENTS - Investment property: Incomplete operating lease register ( COMAF 78 
)    

7 0   
Ex. 124 - COMPLIANCE - Non-compliance with disclosure requirements of GRAP 16, Investment 
properties ( COMAF 78 )    

8 0   
Ex. 65 - MISSTATEMENT - Investment property register not 
complete (COMAF 59 )     

9 0   
Ex. 69 - MISTATEMENT - Investment Property: Property not belonging to the municipality ( COMAF 
35 )     

       
PROGR

ESS   Root Cause Proposed Solution Progress to date 
Due 
date 

Resources to 
be used 

0,25 
1 lack of review of 

the AFS 

management should ensure that the AFS prepared and submitte to 
Ag are reviewed to ensure compliance with legislation. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and internal 
Auditor for review and 
recommendations. 

30-
Apr-
20 

CFO , Audit 
Committee and 
PT 

  
  

  
  

0,25 
2 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

Accounting policy to be amended and to be in line with Grap 16 and 
comply with the legislation. 

The policy will be reviewed and sent 
to council for review 

28-
Feb-
20 

CFO and 
Administartion 

        

        

0,25 
3 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

Managemennt should ensure that the AFS submitted for Audit are 
reviewed to ensure compliance with grap 16. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and internal 

30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , Audit 
committee and 
PT 
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      Auditor for review and 
recommendations. 

  

        

  
    

        

        

0,25 
4 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

management should ensure that the AFS submitted for Audit are 
reviewed to ensure compliance with grap 16 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and internal 
Auditor for review and 
recommendations. 

30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , Audit 
committee and 

PT 

        

        

0,25 
5 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

management should ensure that the AFS submitted for Audit are 
reviewed to ensure compliance with grap 16 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and internal 
Auditor for review and 
recommendations. 

30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , Audit 
committee and 

PT 

        

        

0,25 

6 

  

management should ensure that the AFS prepared and submitted to 
AG are reviewed to ensure compliance with GRAP 16. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and Internal 
Audiotr for review. 

30-
Apr-
20 

CFO , Audit 
Committee and 

PT 

0,25 
7 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

  

0,25 
8 

lack of review of 
the AFS 

  

0,25 
9 lack of review of 

the AFS 

management should ensure that the AFS prepared and submitted to 
AG are reviewed to ensure compliance with GRAP 16. 

corrective measures to be 
implemented and the interim AFS to 
be submitted to the AC and Internal 
Audiotr for review. 

30-
Apr-
20 

CFO , Audit 
Committee and 

PT 
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HOME  

OPERATING EXPENDITURE Responsible 
Person:  

  Manager 
Expenditure  

       Due Date:       

          

 Query  
                          
1  0   

Ex. 96 - MISSTATEMENTS - Invoices with prior year dates recorded in 
current year (Electricity Bulk purchases) (COMAF 48)        

                          
2  0   

Ex. 95 - MISTATEMENT - Differences between the amounts as per GL and amounts as per invoices (Water Bulk Purchases) ( 
COMAF 48 ) 

                          
3  0   

Ex. 105 - MISSTATEMENT - Differences between the GL and the invoice  ( COMAF 55 ) 

                          
4  0   

Ex. 98 - MISSTATEMENTS -  Misstatements - Expenditure - General Expenditure 2017/18  ( COMAF 56 ) 

                          
5  0   

Ex.134 - MISSTATEMENT - - Irregular Expenditure-Completeness 
Misstatement (COMAF 73)        

                          
6  0   

Ex. 113 - MISSTATEMENTS - Expenditure - Contracted services and repairs 
and maintenance - 2017-2018 ( COMAF 56 )        

                          
7  0   

Ex.102 - LIMITATION - Difference identified under general expenses ( 
disagreement & limitation ) ( COMAF 52 )        

                          
8  0   

Ex. 101 - MISSTATEMENTS - Differences between amount in GL and AFS amount _ misclassification of amount for bulk purchase 
electricity amount into general expense ( COMAF 52) 

                          
9  0   

Ex. 127  - MISSTATEMENTS -  on Bulk purchases - 2017/18 ( COMAF 67 )       
 

                        
10  0   

Ex, 131 - COMPLETENESS - Prior Year Expenditure_ Invoices with prior year dates 
included in the GL ( COMAF 78) 

      
 

                        
11  0   

Ex. 107 - MISSTATEMENTS - - Completeness_  Expenditure (Invoices with prior year 
dates recorded in the GL) ( COMAF 52 ) 

    

   
                        

12  0   
Ex. 143 - MISSTATEMENTS -- Differences between Grant Register Expenditure and Actual 
Expenditure Incurred as per vouchers ( COMAF 75 ) 

  

   
                        

13  0   
Ex. 104 - MISSTATEMENT - Differences between the GL and the invoice amounts for Repairs & maintenance(COMAF 52) 

                        
14  0   

Ex. 13 - COMPLIANCE - Expenditure Compliance- 30 days & signatures ( 
COMAF 55 )     

rted with the 
recon and 
the review  

PROGRES
S   Root Cause Proposed Solution 

Progress to 
date 

due 
date 

Resources to 
be used  
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0 1 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Ensure that control measures are put in place for the compilation, review and 
approval on processicng of journals , Prepare the AFS tmeously to allow the CFO to 
review. 

No progress 
to date 

On a 
need 
basis 

Expenditure 
manager 

 
         

0,5 2 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Comparison and reconciliation between the GL and the Invoices must be done on a 
monthly basis and be reviewed by the line manager. 

The 
manager 
have 
already 
started with 
preparation 
of the 
reconciliatio
n 

  

Expenditure 
manager 

 

      

mont
hly 

 

0,5 

3 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Comparison and reconciliation between the GL and the Invoices must be done on a 
monthly basis and be reviewed by the line manager. 

The 
manager 
have 
already 
started with 
preparation 
of the 
reconciliatio
n 

mont
hly 

Expenditure 
manager 

 

  

      

 

0,25 
4 

lack of adequate review 
of the GL The GL will be reviewed and monitored on a weekly basis. 

  
Wee
kly 

Divisional 
head Finance  

0,5 

5 
Diferent interpretations 

of legislation between the 
municipality and the AG 

The register will be revisited on a monthly basis. 

All registers 
were 
updated 
and 
reviewed 

wekk 

SCM 
Manager and 
CFO 

 

0,5 

6 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Comparison and reconciliation between the GL and the Invoices must be done on a 
monthly basis and be reviewed by the line manager. 

The 
manager 
have 
already 
started with 
preparation 
of the 
reconciliatio
n 

mont
hly 

Expenditure 
manager 
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0 

7 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Comparison and reconciliation between the GL and the Invoices must be done on a 
monthly basis and be reviewed by the line manager. 

The 
manager 
have 
already 
started with 
preparation 
of the 
reconciliatio
n 

mont
hly 

Expenditure 
manager 

 

  

      

 

0,5 

8 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Comparison and reconciliation between the GL and the Invoices must be done on a 
monthly basis and be reviewed by the line manager. 

The 
manager 
have 
already 
started with 
preparation 
of the 
reconciliatio
n 

mont
hly 

Expenditure 
manager 

 

0,5 

9 
lack of review of the 
registers and the AFS 

  

  

0 

1
0 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

      

  

 

0 

1
1 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

Ensure that control measures are put in place for the compilation, review and 
approval on processing of journals , Prepare the AFS timeously to allow the CFO to 
review. 

No progress 
to date 

On a 
need 
basis 

Expenditure 
manager 

 

  

1
2 

lack of review of the 
Annual Financial 

Statements and proper 
record keeping 

  

 

  

1
3 

Different interpretation 
of the law between the 
AG and the municipality 

Retention will be separated from the normal invoice   
mont
hly 

Expenditure 
manager 

 

0,5 

1
4 

lack of oversight and Cash 
flow challenges. 

* Proper control measures to be put in place to ensure that documents are signed 
by relevant sigantories, implementation of revenue enhancement strategy , 
financial recovery plan and policy implementations 

A financial 
paln have 
been 
adopted, 
and building 
capacity in 
credit 
control. 

on 
going 

Expenditure 
manager and 
CFO 
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HOM
E 

Payables Responsible Person:    Manager 
Expenditure 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

1 0   
Ex. 158 - MISATEMENTS - 5. No supporting documentation provided for certain line items 
under note 12 (Payables) ( COMAF 80 )     

2 0   
Ex. 146 - LIMITATION -  No invoices provided - 
Accruals/Payables ( COMAF 80 )       

3 0   
Ex. 93 - MISSTATEMENT - Incorrect classification of 
balances( COMAF  42 )       

4 0   
Ex. 133 MISSTATEMENTS - - Difference identified between consumer deposit listing and AFS ( 
COMAF 74 ) 

  

  

5 0   
Ex. 142 - MISSTATEMENTS - Incorrect annual salaries used to calculate leave provision for 
individual employees (COMAF 80)    

6 0   
Ex . 160 - MISSTATEMENTS - Employees were not provided for leave ( not included in 
theleave provision calculation ( COMAF 81 )     

       

PROGR
ESS   Root Cause Proposed Solution Progress to date 

Due 
Date 

Resources to 
be used 

0,25 1 
Lack of proper recordkeeping and 
review of the AFS 

Ensuring proper record-keeping and review of the 
AFS 

Ongoing Ongoi
ng 

Manager 
Expenditure, 
CFO, 
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Department of 
Transport and 
COGTA 

              

0,25 2 

Lack of proper record keeping and 
control mechanism to the auditors 
and back from the auditors 

Have controls in place for the submission of 
documents to auditors and from the auditors, as a 
control mechanism documents are kept safely and 
will be signed for by the requestee and issuer 

Ongoing Ongoi
ng 

Manager 
Expenditure, 
Internal Audit, 
CFO, Divisional 
Head Finance 

0 3 Lack of the review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disclosure of 
related arties and the interim AFS will be prepared 
and reviewed properly by the CFO beginning with 
the Interim AFS 

No Progress to date 30-
Jun-
20 

CFO, Internal 
Audit and MM 

0 4 Lack of the review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disclosure of 
related arties and the interim AFS will be prepared 
and reviewed properly by the CFO beginning with 
the Interim AFS 

No Progress to date 30-
Jun-
20 

CFO, Revenue 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head Finance 

0,25 5 Lack of the review of the AFS 

Mangement will usnure that correct salaries will be 
used and will also be reviewed 

Ongoing Ongoi
ng 

CFO, Revenue 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head Finance 

0,25 6 Lack of the review of the AFS 

Management will ensure that they submit a 
complete list of employees for the determination of 
provision for leave, furthermore the proper review 
will be made 

Ongoing Ongoi
ng 

HR, CFO, 
Expenditure 
manager, 
Divisional 
Head Finance 
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HOME  

Predetermined Objectives  Responsible Person:    Manager PMS 

       Due Date:      

         

 Query 

1 0   
Ex. 20 - COMPLIANCE - Inconsistency identified between planned information in the SDBIP and reported 
information in the APR ( COMAF 7) 

2 0   
Ex. 25 - COMPLIANCE - PDO (Usefulness) - Misstatements identified in the measures taken to improve 
performance disclosed in the 2018-19 APR ( COMAF 20) 

3 0   
Ex. 54 - COMPLIANCE -  PDO (Reliability) - Reported achievements do not agree to the underlying listings (COMAF 
20) 

4 0   
Ex, 59 - MISSTATEMENT - PDO (Internal control) - No Documented Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for Key 
Performance Indicators ( COMAF 32 ) 

5 0   Ex. 60 - COMPLIANCE - 2. Ex.060 - PDO (Usefulness) - Key Performance Indicator not measurable ( COMAF 32 ) 

6 0   
Ex.71 - COMPLIANCE - PDO (Reliability) - No sufficient appropriate listings/registers for reported achievements 
(COMAF 32 ) 

7 0   
Ex.70  - COMPLIANCE - PDO (Reliability) - Reported achievements do not agree to the underlying listings (COMAF 
34) 

8 0   
Ex. 108 - COPLIANCE -  BSD12- - PDO (Reliability) - No sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence for building plans ( COMAF 50 )     

9 0   
Ex. 72 -LIMITATION - PDO (Reliability) - No sufficient appropriate listings/registers for reported achievements 
(COMAF 34)  

10 0   Ex. 73 - COMPLIANCE - PDO (Usefulness) - Key performance indicators in 2018-19 APR not verifiable (COMAF 34 ) 

   
 

   

     

PROGR
ESS   Root Cause Proposed Solution Progress to date 

DUE 
DATE 

Resources to 
be used 

0,5 1 Quality assurance not done  

Quality Assurance to be 
conducted 

the PMS documents was discussed at management 
meeting 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP & 
Quartely 
reports 

      

      

0,75 2 
 Standard Operating Procedure included 
in the PMS Policy 

To Separate Standard operating 
procedude from the PMS policy 

The standard operating procedure document was 
separated from the Pms policy document 

10-Jan-
20 

PMS Policy and 
SOP Document 
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0,5 3 Qulity assusrance not done 

Quality Assurance to be 
conducted 

Pms information discussed and verified by 
management 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP & 
Quartely 
reports 

        

        

0,25 4 
Late submissions of supporting 
documents 

Ensure that supporting 
documnts are submitted in time 
and are verified by the Director 

First quarter supporting documents were 
submitted 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP & 
Quartely 
reports 

        

        

0,25 5 Qulity assurance not done 

Ensure that supporting 
documnts are submitted in time 
and are verified by the Director 

First quarter supporting documents were 
submitted 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP & 
Quartely 
reports 

        

        

0,25 6 Qulity assurance not done Ensure that supporting 
documnts are submitted in time 
and are verified by the Director 

First quarter supporting documents were 
submitted 

  SDBIP & 
Quartely 
reports 

      

each 
quarte
r 

        

0,25 7 Qulity assurance not done 

Ensure that supporting 
documnts are submitted in time 
and are verified by the Director 

First quarter supporting documents were 
submitted 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP , 
Supporting 
documents 
and Quarterly 
reports 

0,25 8 
sufficient supporting document not 

used. 

Ensure that supporting 
documnts are submitted in time 
and are verified by the Director 

First quarter supporting documents were 
submitted 

each 
quarte
r 

SDBIP , 
Supporting 
documents 
and Quarterly 
reports 

        

        

0,25 9 Approprite Supporting not used. 

Choosing the correct and 
relevant supporting 
documentation 

Use the approprite supporting documents in the 
quarterly reports 

After 
februa
ry 
2020 

SDBIP , 
Supporting 
documents 
and Quarterly 
reports         

0,25 
1
0 Quality assurnce not done 

To set verifiable key 
performance indicator 

Management to adjust the Sdbip and set verifiable 
key performance indicators 

  SDBIP and 
Adjustment 
budget 
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HO
ME  

1
1 

Procurement Responsi
ble 
Person:  

    Manager 
Supply 
Chain 

 

  
  

Due 
Date:  

      

         

 Query 

1 0 Ex. 33 - COMPLIANCE - Supplier not listed on the Central Supplier Database ( COMAF 16)         

2 0 
Ex. 132- COMPLIANCE - Investigation of unauthorised expenditure, irregular and fruitless and wasteful not 
conducted (COMAF 69)         

3 0 
Ex. 42 - COMPLIANCE - Procurement and contract management: Quotation awarded to supplier with non-
compliant tax status_ISS.42 (COMAF 27)         

4 0 Ex. 138 - MISSTATEMENTS - Capital expenses exceeding budget: Sanitation Projects ( COMAF 73 )         

5 0 
Ex, 52 - COMPLINACE - - Procurement and contract management - NPNF Construction and Projects - 
MHLM/CONTL/NPNF01/02/19_ISS.52 ( COMAF 19 )         

6 0 
Ex. 49 - COMPLIANCE - - Procurement and contract management - CMS Water engineering - 
MHLM/ENG/CMSW01/10/18_ISS.49 ( COMAF 19 )         
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7 0 
Ex . 45 - COMPLIANCE - - Procurement and contract management - Protea Consulting - 
MHLM/BSSN/IPES01/09/15_ISS.45 (COMAF 19 )         

8 0 
Ex. 37 - COMPLIANCE - - Procurement and contract management - Moepagauta Trading JV - 
MIG/NW/2358/CL/17/18_ISS.37 9 COMAF 19 )         

9 0 
Ex. 36 - COMPLIANCE - - Procurement and contract management - LM Construction and Pali ya Bokone JV 
- NW404/286087/LED/18/18_ISS 36 ( COMAF 19 )         

10 0 
Ex.84 - MISSTATEMENT - Other matters - Prior years Investigations not finalised during the 2018-19 
financial year ( COMAF 39 )         

11 0 Ex. 41 -  COMPLIANCE - Procurement and contract management - ISS.41 ( COMAF 46 )         

12 0 Ex. 39 -  COMPLIANCE - Procurement and contract management - Limitations_ISS.39 ( COMAF 46 )         

13 0 Ex . 30 - LIMITATION - SCM Information not submittedas requested in RFI 14_ ISS.3 0 ( COMAF 16 )         

14 0 
Ex. 43- COMPLIANCE - Procurement and contract management: Deviations not tabled to Council/disclosed 
in the annual financial statements_ISS.43 (COMAF 27 )         

15 0 
Ex.38 - COMPLIANCE - Procurement and contract management , Deviation from prescribed procurement 
processes_ISS.38 ( COMAF 38)         

 
         

Pro
gre
ss Proposed Solution 

Progress 
to Date 

Root 
Course 

Due 
dat
e 

Resources 
to be used 

0,7
5 

1 confirm the registration status of each supplier before award of Tender or quotation 70% system 
being 
offline 
of the 
time 

Ong
oing 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance   

 

0 

2 A process plan will be developed for MPAC to finalise the investigations and report back to council 0% The 
appoin
ted 
commi
ttee of 
council
(MPAC
) did 
not 
conclu
de the 
investi
gations 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 
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0,7
5 

3 confirm the tax status of individual suppliers before final award on CSD and monitor progress on the implementation of 
internal controls 

70% system 
being 
offline 
and 
lack of 
imple
mentat
ion of 
interna
l 
control
s 

31-
Jan-
20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

    

0 

4 Nelson to advise/ Tshepo 0%   31-
Jan-
20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

  lack of 
review 
by 
manag
ement 

  

0,2
5 

5 PT has appointed the company to assist the municipalities with the  with the development of contract register and 
capacity building in contract management 

25% Lack of 
capacit
y 
interna
lly 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance   

    

0 

6 Development of an annual procurement plan to be adopted with the budget to address planning, a compliance list will 
be developed to ensure the effective implementation of SCM regulations. 

0% Lack of 
proper 
plannin
g and 
imple
mentat
ion of 
SCM 
regulat
ions 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

 
  

0 

7 Development of an annual procurement plan to be adopted with the budget to address planning, a compliance list will 
be developed to ensure the effective implementation of SCM regulations, review of the registers to ensure 
completeness must be done 

0% Lack of 
proper 
plannin
g and 
imple

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
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mentat
ion of 
SCM 
regulat
ions 

Head 
Finance 

0 

8 Bid committees will be re-Established in line with the SCM regulations, a compliance list will be developed to ensure 
the effective implementation of SCM policy and regulations 

0% Lack of 
imple
mentat
ion of 
SCM 
regulat
ions 
due to 
vacanci
es in 
key 
positio
ns 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

    

0 

9 Bid committees will be re-Established in line with the SCM regulations, ensure proper record management, ensure 
that service level agreements were signed before the commitments of works 

0% Lack of 
imple
mentat
ion of 
SCM 
regulat
ions 
due to 
vacanci
es in 
key 
positio
ns 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

    

0 

1
0 

Development of the process plan and capacity building 0% Lack of 
capacit
y 
interna
lly to 
investi
gate 
and 
conclu
de 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 
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0 

1
1 

Management will follow the acts and regulations to the latter, implement the compliance checklist, ensure effective 
contract management 

0% Lack of 
capacit
y 
interna
lly to 
investi
gate 
and 
conclu
de 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

 
  

0 

1
2 

Clarity will be sought on this in the future 0% differe
nt 
Interpr
etation 
of SCM 
policies 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance   

    

0 

1
3 

The municipality will try to encourage the service providers to register on the CSD database 0% Lack of 
cooper
ation 
from 
local 
service 
provid
ers 
who do 
not 
want 
to 
registe
r on 
the 
CSD 
whilst 
they 
are the 
only 
one 
who 
can 
supply 
us with 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 
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that 
particu
lar 
service
(Supply 
of 
Petrol) 

0 

1
4 

Development of an annual procurement plan to be adopted with the budget to address planning, a compliance list will 
be developed to ensure the effective implementation of SCM regulations. 

0% Lack of 
proper 
plannin
g and 
imple
mentat
ion of 
SCM 
regulat
ions 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 

  

    

0 

1
5 

Motivate the potential suppliers particularly local to participate in the procurement process 0% Lack of 
positiv
e 
respon
se 
from 
potenti
al 
service 
provid
ers 
after 
being 
invited
/ or 
after 
adverti
sement 

31-
Mar
-20 

CFO, Suply 
Chain 
Manager, 
Divisional 
Head 
Finance 
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HOM
E 

1
1 

  Provision Responsibl
e Person:  

  Divisional 
Head HR 

       Due Date:     

          

  Query 

  0   
Ex.136 - MISSTATEMENTS - Incorrect information disclosed on the provision's note ( 
COMAF 74 )       

  0   
Ex. 120 - MISSTATEMENTS - - Misstatement (Disagreement) - Provisions Inconsistencies 
identified in the disclosure of movements in Provisions ( COMAF 62 )       

  0   
Ex. 119 -MISSTATEMENTS - Provisions Inconsistencies identified in the disclosure of 
movements in Provisions ( COMAF 62 )       

 0   
Ex, 151 - MISSTATEMENTS - Incorrect provision movement recognized by the client ( 
COMAF 80 )       

             

PROG
RESS   Root course Proposed Solution 

Progress to 
date 

Due 
date 

Resources 
to be used 

0,25 1 

Lack of adequate 
review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disxlosure of related parties and the interim AFS will be 
prepared and reviewed properly by the Cfo 

Ongoing 30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , 
divisional 
head and 
internal 
auditor     

  

0,25 
2 

Lack of adequate 
review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disclosure of related arties and the interim AFS will be 
prepared and reviewed properly by the CFO beginning with the Interim AFS 

Ongoing 30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , 
divisional 
head and 
internal 
auditor   

    
  

0,25 

3 
Lack of adequate 
review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disclosure of related arties and the interim AFS will be 
prepared and reviewed properly by the CFO beginning with the Interim AFS 

Ongoing 
30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , 
divisional 
head and 
internal 
auditor 
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0,25 4 

Lack of adequate 
review of the AFS 

Afs will be reviewd to ensure proper disclosure of related parties and the interim AFS will be 
prepared and reviewed properly by the CFO 

Ongoing 30-
Apr-
20 

cfo , 
divisional 
head and 
internal 
auditor 
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HOM
E 

1
1 

  Receivables Responsible Person:    Manager 
Revenue 

       Due Date:      

          

  Query 

1 0   
Ex. 90 - LIMITATION - Receivables from exchange transactions - Debt 
Impairment ( COMAF 41 )       

2 0   Ex. 75 - LIMITATION OF SCOPE-  : Other receivables ( COMAF 45 )       

3 0   
Ex. 115 - MISSTATEMENTS - - Differences between the fines listing and 
actual fin ( COMAF 77 )       

4 0   Ex. 147 - COMPLETENESS - Receivables from exchange ( COMAF 78 )       

5 0   
Ex. 99 - LIMITATION - : ID and municipal accounts not provided to 
support indigent applications submitted for audit. (COMAF 45 )       

6 0   
Ex.112 - MISSTATEMENT - - Impairment incorrectly disclosed in 
the annual financial statements ( COMAF 54 )       

             

PROG
RESS   Root caurse Proposed Solution Progress to date 

Due 
date 

Resources 
to be used 

0 1 

disagreement 
of calculation 
between the 
AG and the 
municipality 
and review of 
the AFS 

we will consider historical performance when we do the calculation of 
debt impairement going forward , our policy is outdated and must be 
reviewed and alligned to the calculation. 

Engagement still to happen between the 
Municipality and the AG on the method 
and calculationof debt imparement     

0 2 

lack of proper 
record 
keeping 

Ensure that documents are retrieved kept in a safe place for the 
purpose of Audit. 

The information to be gathered during 
the preparation of the interim AFS 

31-
Jan-

20 
Divisional 
Head traffic 

0,25 3 

lack of review 
of the Afs and 
measures not 
in place 

Ensure that there are no differences between the actual listing and the 
fine listings 

The has already been started and the POE 
s will be provided 

15-
Jan-

20 
Revenue 
Manager 
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0,25 4 
lack of proper 
monitoring 

Monthly reconciliations to be performed to ensure allignment of the 
System and the Debtors ageing The reconciliation is being performed 

mon
thly 

Revenue 
Manager 

0,5 5 

lack of review 
and proper 
monitoring 

Ensure that we have indigaent register which is adequately reviewed 
with supporting documentation 

indigent register have been established 
and will be reviewed and monitored 

mon
thly 

Revenue 
Manager 

0 

6 

lack of review 
of the Afs and 
measures not 

in place 

Debt impairement will be disclsed correctly during the preparation of the 
interim AFS and sent to relevant treasury statkeholder and AG for review 

draft interim AFS will be started in february 
2020 

28-
Feb-
20 

CFO 

      

       

 

 
 

    

 
  

    

 
  

    

 
  

    

 
 

     

       

       
 

 

 

 

HOME  

1
1 

  Related Party Responsible 
Person:  

Divisional Head 
HR 

       Due Date:    

         

  Query 

  0   
Ex. 29 - MISSTATEMENT - - AFS: Related Parties disclosure incomplete and 
inaccurate ( COMAF 11)     
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  0   
Ex. 148 - MISSTATEMENT - Related Parties-No declaration of interests 
submitted ( COMAF 75 )     

           

PROGRE
SS   Root caurse Proposed Solution 

Progress to 
date 

Resources to be 
used 

  1 Lack of review of the Afs 
Afs will be reviewed to ensure proper disclosure of related arties and the interim AFS will 
be prepared and reviewed properly by the CFO 

no progress to 
date 

CFO 

          

1 2 
lack of leadership and 

instability 

the process of signing the declarations have aready been started and and will be 
completed by the 31 january 2020 

process started 
and will be 
completed end 
of january 2020 

Municipal 
Manager 

          

      

 

  

   

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
  

 

  

 
 

    

      
 

 

HOM
E 

Revenue Responsible Person: REVENUE 
MANAGER 

  Manager 
Revenue 

       Due Date: 31 MARCH 2020     

         

 Query 

1 0   
Ex. 152 - MISSTATEMENT - License and Permits incorrect 
use of Tariff ( COMAF 77 )       

2 0   
Ex. 89 - MISSTATEMENT - Differences between Fines 
Listing and amount disclosed in AFS ( COMAF 45   )       
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3 0   
Ex. 157 - MISSTATEMENTS - Income forgone 2016/2017 
amounts disclosed as 2018/2018 ( COMAF 79 )       

4 0   
Ex. 140 - MISSTATEMENT - Ratable valuation reconciliation 
differences ( COMAF 79 )       

       

PROG
RESS   Root caurse Proposed Solution Progress to date 

Due 
date 

Resources 
to be used 

0 1 PLS SEE BEN         

0,25 2 
lack of review of the Afs and 
measures not in place 

Ensure that there are no differences between the actual listing 
and the fine listings 

The has already been started and 
the POE s will be provided 

15-
Jan-

20 
Revenue 
Manager 

0 3 
lack of review of the Afs and 

measures not in place 

Ensure that the interim Afs are prepared timeously to aloow the 
CFO ample time to review 

no progress to date 30-
Apr-
20 

CFO 

0,25 4 
Lack of review of the  

valuation roll 

The  ratable valuation to be shown separately on the reconciliation 
and the recon be reviewed on a monthly basis 

The reconciliation is being done on 
a monthly basis and will be 

provided as a POE s  

mont
hly 

Revenue 
Manager 
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GLOSSARY 

Accessibility 

indicators 

Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services 

or outputs.  

Accountability 

documents 

Documents used by executive authorities to give ñfull and regularò 

reports on the matters under their control to Parliament and provincial 

legislatures as prescribed by the Constitution. This includes plans, 

budgets, in-year and Annual Reports.  

Activities The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the 

desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe 

"what we do". 

Adequacy 

indicators 

The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand. 

Annual Report A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the 

regulations set out in Section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management 

Act. Such a report must include annual financial statements as 

submitted to and approved by the Auditor-General. 

Approved Budget The annual financial statements of a municipality as audited by the 

Auditor General and approved by council or a provincial or national 

executive.  

Baseline Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when 

setting performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of 

performance recorded in a year prior to the planning period. 

Basic municipal 

service 

A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and 

reasonable quality of life to citizens within that particular area. If not 

provided it may endanger the public health and safety or the 

environment.  

Budget year The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved ï 

means a year ending on 30 June.  

Cost indicators The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of 

outputs.  

Distribution 

indicators 

The distribution of capacity to deliver services.  
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Financial 

Statements 

Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of financial 

performance, cash-flow statement, notes to these statements and any 

other statements that may be prescribed. 

General Key 

performance 

indicators 

After consultation with MECs for local government, the Minister may 

prescribe general key performance indicators that are appropriate and 

applicable to local government generally.  

 

Impact The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty 

and creating jobs. 

Inputs All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of 

outputs. Inputs are "what we use to do the work". They include finances, 

personnel, equipment and buildings. 

Integrated 

Development Plan 

(IDP) 

Set out municipal goals and development plans.  

National Key 

performance areas 

Å Service delivery & infrastructure 

Å Economic development  

Å Municipal transformation and institutional development  

Å Financial viability and management 

Å Good governance and community participation 

Outcomes The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the 

consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate 

clearly to an institution's strategic goals and objectives set out in its 

plans. Outcomes are "what we wish to achieve". 

 

Outputs The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. 

Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver". An output is a 

concrete achievement (i.e. a product such as a passport, an action such 

as a presentation or immunization, or a service such as processing an 

application) that contributes to the achievement of a Key Result Area. 
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Performance 

Indicator 

Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to 

input, activities, outputs, outcomes and impacts.  An indicator is a type 

of information used to gauge the extent to 

which an output has been achieved (policy developed, presentation 

delivered, service rendered) 

Performance 

Information 

Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services 

and activities. Can also be used interchangeably with performance 

measure.  

 

Performance 

Standards: 

The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of 

performance that is generally accepted. Standards are informed by 

legislative requirements and service-level agreements. Performance 

standards are mutually agreed criteria to describe how well work must 

be done in terms of quantity and/or quality and timeliness, to clarify the 

outputs and related activities of a job by describing what the required 

result should be. In this EPMDS performance standards are divided into 

indicators and the time factor. 

 

Performance 

Targets: 

The level of performance that municipalities and its employees strive 

to achieve. Performance Targets relate to current baselines and 

express a specific level of performance that a municipality aims to 

achieve within a given time period.  

 

Service Delivery 

Budget 

Implementation 

Plan 

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the 

municipalityôs delivery of services; including projections of the revenue 

collected and operational and capital expenditure by vote for each 

month. Service delivery targets and performance indicators must also 

be included.  

 

Vote: One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 

divided for appropriation of money for the different departments or 

functional areas of the municipality. The Vote specifies the total amount 
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that is appropriated for the purpose of a specific department or 

functional area.  

Section 1 of the MFMA defines a ñvoteò as: 

a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 

divided for the appropriation of money for the different departments or 

functional areas of the municipality; and 

b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes 

of the department or functional area concerned 
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APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A ï COUNCILLORS; COMMITTEE ALLOCATION 
AND COUNCIL ATTENDANCE 
 

Councillors, Committees Allocated and Council Attendance 

Council 
Members 

Full 
Time / 
Part 
Time 

Committees Allocated *Ward and/ or 
Party Represented 

Percentage 
Council 
Meetings 

Attendance 

Percentage 
Apologies 
for non-

attendance 

  

FT/PT % % 

      

TLALANE 
BOLAO 

FT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ANC 100% 0% 

GAAMANGWE 
KGABI 

FT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ANC 100% 0% 

MMANINI 
NOTWANE 

FT SPEAKER ANC 100% 0% 

KGOSANA 
SELABALO 

FT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ANC 100% 0% 

BASI 
MAPHATSOE 

PT LOCAL LABOUR FORUM ANC 100% 0% 

IPOTSENG 
DINTWE 

PT FINANCE & CORPORATE PORT 
FOLIO; LOCAL LABOUR FORUM 

ANC 83% 17% 

KGOSANA 
SELEBALO 

PT FINANCE & CORPORATE PORT 
FOLIO 

ANC 100% 0% 

MEISIE NTULI PT DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING PORT 
FOLIO 

ANC 100% 0% 

NOMPITI 
MAXATSHIWA 

PT COMMUNITY, LED & 
INRSTRUCTURE PORT FOLIO 

ANC 94% 6% 

NOMVELISO 
TSHINGILANE 

PT MPAC ANC 94% 6% 

OLEBOGENG 
PHUTIYAGAE 

PT   ANC 100% 0% 

OLEBOGENG 
MASIBI 

PT COMMUNITY, LED & 
INRSTRUCTURE PORT FOLIO 

ANC 100% 0% 

PERCIVAL 
MOKGABI 

PT MPAC & LOCAL LABOUR FORUM ANC 100% 0% 

KGONJE 
MOGAPI 

PT MPAC & LOCAL LABOUR FORUM ANC 72% 28% 

GIDEON VAN 
ZYL 

FT DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING PORT 
FOLIO 

DA 94% 6% 

JOHAN 
PHEIFFER 

PT FINANCE & CORPORATE PORT 
FOLIO; LOCAL LABOUR FORUM 

DA 88% 12% 

LESEGO 
TATABANG 

PT FINANCE & CORPORATE PORT 
FOLIO; LOCAL LABOUR FORUM 

DA 94% 6% 
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MMAMOLAUDI 
MOEPI 

PT COMMUNITY, LED & 
INRSTRUCTURE PORT FOLIO 

EFF 83% 17% 

TSHIRELETSO 
MALEBATSANE 

PT DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING PORT 
FOLIO 

EFF 100% 0% 

MOETI 
MARUMO 

PT COMMUNITY, LED & 
INRSTRUCTURE PORT FOLIO 

FORUM 4 
SERVICE 

100% 0% 

SEBOLAI 
MANELE 

PT MPAC FORUM4 
SERVICE 

94% 6% 

GERT MULLER PT MPAC VRYHEIDSFRONT 
PLUS 

88% 12% 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    T A 

 

 

Concerning T A 

Attendance of Council meetings is satisfactory. 

 

T A.1 
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APPENDIX B ï COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE PURPOSES  
 

Committees (other than Mayoral / Executive Committee) and Purposes of Committees 

Municipal Committees Purpose of Committee 

  

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  TO RECEIVE REPORTS  FROM COMMITTEES AND  RECOMMEND TO 
COUNCIL 

MPAC  PERFORMS AN OVERSIGHT  FUNCTION  OF BEHALF OF COUNCIL 

WARD COMMITTEE 
ADVISE WARD CLLRS ,IDENTIFYING NEEDS ,RECIEVING COMPLAINTS 

FROM RESIDENTS 

SECTION 79 COMMITEES  INTERACTS WITH  MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT AND STAFF 

RULES COMMITTEE IMPLEMENT CODE OF CONDUCT TO COUNCILLORS 

    

    T B 
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APPENDIX C ïTHIRD TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE
   

Third Tier Structure 

Directorate Director/Manager (State title and name) 

 Corporate Services Divisional Head : Mrs J. Rudman  

 Engineering Divisional Head : Mr V. Motlashuping  

 Community Services Divisional Head : Mr V : Sebekedi.  

 Corporate Services  Divisional Head : Mr J. Leseisane  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

     

T C 
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APPENDIX D ï FUNCTIONS OF MUNICIPALITY / ENTITY  
Municipal / Entity Functions 

MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS Function Applicable to 
Municipality (Yes / No)* 

Function 
Applicable 
to Entity                 
(Yes / No) 

Constitution Schedule 4, Part B functions:     

Air pollution  Yes   

Building regulations  Yes   

Child care facilities  No  Social Dev 

Electricity and gas reticulation  Yes   

Firefighting services  Yes   

Local tourism  Yes   

Municipal airports  Yes   

Municipal planning  Yes   

Municipal health services  Yes   

Municipal public transport  Yes   

Municipal public works only in respect of the needs of municipalities in the 
discharge of their responsibilities to administer functions specifically assigned 
to them under this Constitution or any other law 

 Yes 

  

Pontoons, ferries, jetties, piers and harbours, excluding the regulation of 
international and national shipping and matters related thereto 

 Yes 

  

Stormwater management systems in built-up areas  Yes   

Trading regulations  Yes   

Water and sanitation services limited to potable water supply systems and 
domestic waste-water and sewage disposal systems 

 Yes 

  

Beaches and amusement facilities  Yes   

Billboards and the display of advertisements in public places  Yes   

Cemeteries, funeral parlours and crematoria  Yes   

Cleansing  Yes   

Control of public nuisances  Yes   

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public  No  FEED 

Facilities for the accommodation, care and burial of animals  no SPCA  

Fencing and fences  Yes   

Licensing of dogs  no   

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public  Yes   

Local amenities  Yes   

Local sport facilities  Yes   

Markets  Yes   

Municipal abattoirs  Yes   

Municipal parks and recreation  Yes   

Municipal roads  Yes   

Noise pollution  Yes   

Pounds  Yes   

Public places  Yes   

Refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal  yes   

Street trading  yes   
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Street lighting  yes   

Traffic and parking  yes   

* If municipality: indicate (yes or No); * If entity: Provide name of entity 
T D 

 

 

 

APPENDIX E ï WARD REPORTING 
 

Functionality of Ward Committees 

Ward Name 
(Number) 

Name of Ward 
Councillor and elected 

Ward committee 
members 

Committee 
established  
(Yes / No) 

Number of 
monthly 

Committee 
meetings held 
during the year 

Number of 
monthly reports 

submitted to 
Speakers Office 

on time 

Number of 
quarterly public 
ward meetings 

held during year 

WARD 01 MEISIE NTULI YES 12 12 06 

WARD 02  IPOTSENG DINTWE YES 12 12 08 

WARD 03 MMANINI NOTWANE YES 12 12 09 

WARD 04 KEBOGILE SEAKANE YES 12 12 01 

WARD 05 JOHAN PHEIFFER YES 12 12 02 

WARD 06 KGOSANA SELEBALO YES 12 12 04 

WARD 07 BASI MAPHATSOE YES 12 12 03 

WARD 08 OLEBOGENG 
PHUTIYAGAE 

YES 12 12 01 

WARD 09 PRECIOUS BOLAO YES 12 12 12 

WARD 10 OLEBOGENG MASIBI YES 12 12 06 

WARD 11 NOMPITI MAXATSHIWA YES 12 12 04 

  
 

        

  
 

      T E 
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APPENDIX F ï WARD INFORMATION  

Capital Projects: Seven Largest in Year 0 (Full List at Appendix O) 

        R' 000 

No. Project Name and detail Start Date End Date Total Value 

 1 Replacement of Abestos waterpipeline with UPVC pipe in 
wolmaransstad. 

September 
2018 

June 2019 R8m 

 2 Decommissing of septic tanks in Makwassie town September 
2018 

June 2019 R35 960 260.45 

 3 Refurbishment of Oxidation pond in Leeudorinstad. September 
2018 

June 2019 R12m 

 4     

 5     

          

          

                                                                                                                                                                                                        T F.1 

 

 

Basic Service Provision 

Detail Water Sanitation Electricity Refuse Housing 

Households with minimum service 
delivery 

 497 697  497  497    

Households without minimum service 
delivery 

 none none  none  none  

Total Households*  497 497  497  497  

Houses completed in year     

Shortfall in Housing units   

*Including informal settlements                                                                                                                                                                                      T F.2 

 

Top Four Service Delivery Priorities for Ward (Highest Priority First) 

No. Priority Name and Detail Progress During Year 0 

 1 Bulk Water supply 0% 

 2 Patching of potholes in Towns 10% 

 3  Water pipeline installed in Wolmarasstad ext. 17 by 

June 2019. 
 100 % complete 

 4  
 

T F.3 
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APPENDIX G ï RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT COMMITTEE 
YEAR 2018/19 

Municipal Audit Committee Recommendations 
Date of 

Committee 
Committee recommendations during 

Year 0 
Recommendations adopted (enter Yes) If not 

adopted (provide explanation) 

12 Oct 2018 PMS information be send to internal 
Audit for auditing purposes and advice. yes 

22 January 
2019 HR policies be updated.  yes 

12 April 2019 
Vanacancies in the Finanace Division 

be filled. Yes.  

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

  
  
 T G 
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APPENDIX H ï LONG TERM CONTRACTS AND PUBLIC PRIVATE 

PARTNERSHIPS 
 

Long Term Contracts (20 Largest Contracts Entered into during Year 2018/19) 

R' 000 

Name of Service 
Provider (Entity or 

Municipal Department) 

Description of Services 
Rendered by the Service 

Provider 

Start  Date 
of Contract 

Expiry date 
of Contract 

Project 
manager 

Contract 
Value 

Amandla Building and 
Construction (Pty) Ltd 

Vehicles mechanical 
Services 1-Jul-18 30-Jun-21 

Service 
provider. 

As & 
when 
required. 

Lizel Venter 
Attorneys Legal Services 1-Jul-18 30-Jun-21 

Service 
provider 

As & 
when 
required 

 Kgomo Attorneys Legal Services  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 Leepile Attorneys Legal Services  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

As & 
when 
required  

 Eagilwe Property 
valuators Property Evaluation Services  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 

 Service 
provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 Korone Engineers Consulting Engineering  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 NEP Consulting 
Engineers Consulting Engineering  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 

 Service 
provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 Sogika Consulting Consulting Engineering  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 King & Associates Consulting Engineering  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 Watson Consulting Consulting Engineering  1-Jul-18  30-Jun-21 
 Service 

provider 

 As & 
when 
required 

 CMS Water 
Engineering Water Engineering Services.  1-Feb-19  31-Jan-22 

 Service 
provider 

 As & 
whend 
required. 

            

          T H.1 
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Public Private Partnerships Entered into during Year 2018/19 
          R' 000 

Name and Description 
of Project 

Name of Partner(s) Initiation 
Date  

Expiry 
date 

Project 
manager 

Value 
2015/2016                                                                                                                                                                    

 none none  none  none  none   none 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 No Public Private 
Partnership in this 
Financial Year.         T H.2 
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APPENDIX I ï MUNICIPAL ENTITY/ SERVICE PROVIDER PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 
 

Municipal Entity/Service Provider Performance Schedule 
Name of Entity & Purpose (a) Service 

Indicators 
Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  

(b) Service 
Targets 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 

  
 *Previous 

Year 
  *Previous 

Year 
*Current 
Year 

  *Current 
Year 

*Current 
Year 

*Following 
Year 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix) (x) 

          

          

          

          

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                    

                     

T I      
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APPENDIX J ï DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 
 

Disclosures of Financial Interests 

Period 1 July  to 30 June of Year 0 (Current Year) 

Position Name Description of Financial 
interests* 
(Nil / Or details) 

                      Mayor   G.V Kgabi Nil 

Member of  Exco 
  D. van Zyl  Nil 

  T. P Bolao  Nil 

  K . Selebalo Nil  

   Nil  

Councillor B.F Maphatsoe  Nil  

  S.O Masibi  Nil  

  K. Mogapi  Nil  

  M.N Ntuli  Nil  

   J.  Phiffer  Nil  

  T.S Malebatsane  Nil  

  M.M Moepi  Nil  

 N.L  Tshingilane Nil  

 M.D Notwane Nil  

 S.D Manele Nil  

 M. Madibo Nil  

 P.T Mokgabi Nil  

 Seakane Nil  

 A.O Phutiagae Nil  

 G.J   Muller Nil  

 L.S Mokgalagadi Nil  

 N.F Maxatshwa Nil 

 I.RDintwe Nil 
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Municipal Manager 
   Nil  

Chief Financial Officer 
 Mr J. Mogoemang  Nil  

 Directors 

 Mr S. J Lehloenya  Nil  

  
 Mr N. Mwase (Acting Director : E 

ngineering)  Nil  

Other S57 Officials  Mr J. Leseisane   

T J 
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Appendix K : Revenue Collection Performance by Vote and by Source 
 

Revenue Collection Performance by Vote 

            R' 000 

Vote Description 

2017/18 Current: Year 2018/19 Year 0 Variance 

Actual Original Budget 
Adjusted 
Budget 

Actual Original Budget Adjustments Budget 

Vote 01 - Municipal Manager          88 178         163 944                 -             82 429                 -                   -    

Vote 02 - Finance          42 195           48 862                 -             27 025                 -                   -    

Vote 03 - Corporate Services                83             2 010                 -                   16                 -                   -    

Vote 04 - Community Services          42 563           32 160                 -             12 173                 -                   -    

Vote 05 - Infrastructure        268 508         163 028                 -           100 239                 -                   -    

Example 6 - Vote 6                       ï     

Example 7 - Vote 7           

Example 8 - Vote 8           

Example 9 - Vote 9           

Example 10 - Vote 10           

Example 11 - Vote 11           

Example 12 - Vote 12           

Example 13 - Vote 13           

Example 14 - Vote 14           

Example 15 - Vote 15           

Total Revenue by Vote                    441 526                     410 004                  ð               221 881                     ð                   ð   

 T K.1 
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APPENDIX K (II): REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCE 
 

Revenue Collection Performance by Source 

 

R '000 

Description 

Year -1 Year 0 2018/2019 Year 0 Variance  

Actual Original 
Budget 

Adjustments 
Budget 

Actual Original Budget Adjustments 
Budget 

Property rates  45 334 45 334 41 444 3 890 3 890 

Property rates - penalties & collection 
charges     

  

Service Charges - electricity revenue  59 605 59 605 45 357 14 248 14 248 

Service Charges - water revenue  64 890 64 890 69 868 - 4 978 4 978 

Service Charges - sanitation revenue  37 630 37 118 30 685 6 945 6 433 

Service Charges - refuse revenue  17 761 17 502 12 278 5 483 5 224 

Service Charges - other       

Rentals of facilities and equipment  701 701 318 383 383 

Interest earned - external investments  500 500 88 412 412 

Interest earned - outstanding debtors  48 519 48 319 200 48 319 48 119 

Dividends received  2 2 2 0 0 

Fines  3 888 5 630 3 036 852 2 594 

Licences and permits  9693 9 693 3 963 5 730 5 730 

Agency services       

Transfers recognised - operational  146 506 146 506 153 788 - 7 282 - 7 282 

Other revenue  1 020 1 020 958 62 62 

Gains on disposal of PPE       

Environmental Protection       

Total Revenue (excluding capital 
transfers and contributions) 

 436 048 436 820 491 355 98 584 99 355 

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. This table is aligned to MBRR 
table A4. T K.2 
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APPENDIX L:  CONDITIONAL GRANTS RECEIVED: EXCLUDING MIG  

Conditional Grants: excluding MIG 
R' 000 

Details 

Budget Adjustment
s  

Budget 

Actual Variance Major 
conditions 

applied by donor 
(continue below 

if necessary) 

Budget Adjustment
s  

 Budget 

Neighbourhood Development 
Partnership Grant 0 0 0 0% 0%   

              

              

Public Transport Infrastructure 
and Systems Grant 0 0 0 0% 0%   

              

              

              

Other Specify:             

MSIG 37 971 37 971 40 994 3 023 3 023   

EPWP 1 017  1 017 1 017 0 0   

PIG 9 184  9 184  9 184 0 0   

WSIG 10 000  10 000  10 000 0 0   

FMG 2 215  2 215  2 216 0 0   

 LIBRARY GRANT 793  793  793 0 0   

Total 23 193  23 193  64 204 3 023 3 023    

                                                                                 
T L 
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APPENDIX M: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ï NEW AND UPGRADE / RENEWAL PROGRAMME 

Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 
R '000 

Description Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset Class               

Infrastructure - Total 73.603 0 0 14 455 0 0 0 

Infrastructure: Road transport - Total 3.151 0 0 12 098 0 0 0 

Roads, Pavements & Bridges        

Storm water  3.151 0 0 12 098 0 0 0 

Infrastructure: Electricity - Total 3.853 0 0  0 0 0 

Generation  0 0  0 0 0 

Transmission & Reticulation 3.853 0 0  0 0 0 

Street Lighting  0 0  0 0 0 

Infrastructure: Water - Total 48.850 0 0 1 085 0 0 0 

Dams & Reservoirs  0 0  0 0 0 

Water purification  0 0 1 085 0 0 0 

Reticulation 48.850 0 0  0 0 0 

Infrastructure: Sanitation - Total 14.781 0 0 1 272 0 0 0 

Reticulation  0 0  0 0 0 

Sewerage purification 14.781 0 0 1 272 0 0 0 

Infrastructure: Other - Total     0 0 0 

Waste Management              

Transportation              

Gas               

Other               

                

Community - Total 
2,967 

              -     
               
ð   

               
ð   

Parks & gardens            

Sports fields & stadia            
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Swimming pools            

Community halls 1.218          

Libraries           

Recreational facilities 0.220         

Fire, safety & emergency           

Security and policing           

Buses           

Clinics           

Museums & Art Galleries           

Cemeteries           

Social rental housing            

Other ï Movables  1.529          

Table continued next page               

        
Table continued from previous page               

Capital Expenditure - New Assets Programme* 
R '000 

Description Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset Class               

Heritage assets - Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Buildings               

Other               

                

Investment properties - Total 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Housing development               

Other               

                

Other assets 
                         

1.529   39,714  
               
ð   

               
ð   

General vehicles           

Specialised vehicles           
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Plant & equipment     10      

Computers - hardware/equipment           

Furniture and other office equipment  1.529   714      

Abattoirs          

Markets               

Civic Land and Buildings               

Other Buildings        29       

Other Land               

Surplus Assets - (Investment or Inventory)               

Other               

                

Agricultural assets 
                    
ï   

                 
ï   

                       
ï   

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

List sub-class               

                

                

Biological assets 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

List sub-class               

                

                

Intangibles 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Computers - software & programming             

Other (list sub-class)             

              

Total Capital Expenditure on new assets 144.683   13 830    

          

Specialised vehicles 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Refuse               

Fire               

Conservancy               

Ambulances               

* Note: Information for this table may be sourced from MBRR (2009: Table SA34a)     T M.1 

        



 

311 | P a g e 
 

 

        

        

Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 
R '000 

Description 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset Class               

Infrastructure - Total 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Infrastructure: Road transport -Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Roads, Pavements & Bridges               

Storm water               

Infrastructure: Electricity - Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Generation               

Transmission & Reticulation               

Street Lighting               

Infrastructure: Water - Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Dams & Reservoirs               

Water purification               

Reticulation               

Infrastructure: Sanitation - Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Reticulation               

Sewerage purification               

Infrastructure: Other - Total 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Waste Management               

Transportation               

Gas               

Other               
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Community 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Parks & gardens               

Sportsfields & stadia               

Swimming pools               

Community halls               

Libraries               

Recreational facilities               

Fire, safety & emergency               

Security and policing               

Buses               

Clinics               

Museums & Art Galleries               

Cemeteries               

Social rental housing               

Other               

                

Heritage assets 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Buildings               

Other               

Table continued next page               

Table continued from previous page               

Capital Expenditure -  Upgrade/Renewal Programme* 
R '000 

Description 

Year 
2017/18 

Year 2018/19 Planned Capital expenditure 

Actual 
Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

FY + 1 FY + 2 FY + 3 

Capital expenditure by Asset Class               

Investment properties 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Housing development               

Other               
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Other assets 
 

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

General vehicles              

Specialised vehicles              

Plant & equipment              

Computers - hardware/equipment              

Furniture and other office equipment              

Abattoirs               

Markets               

Civic Land and Buildings               

Other Buildings               

Other Land               

Surplus Assets - (Investment or Inventory)               

Other               

                

Agricultural assets 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

List sub-class               

                

                

Biological assets 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

List sub-class               

                

                

Intangibles 
                    
ï   

                 
ï     

                         
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

               
ï   

Computers - software & programming               

Other (list sub-class)               

                

Total Capital Expenditure on renewal of 
existing assets                      

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

                

Specialised vehicles 
                    
ð   

                 
ð     

                         
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

               
ð   

Refuse               
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Fire               

Conservancy               

Ambulances               

No upgrades nor renewal.   T M.2 

 

APPENDIX N ï CAPITAL PROGRAMME BY PROJECT YEAR 2018/19 
 

Capital Programme by Project: Year 2018/19 

R' 000 

Capital Project Original 
Budget 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Actual Variance 
(Act - Adj)                        

% 

Variance 
(Act - OB)                       

% 

 
          
      

    
  

  
 

 
  

      
      

project B"         
Electricity          
        

"Project B"         

Housing  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

Refuse removal   n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

Stormwater         
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"Project B"         

Economic development  yes       
Landscaping of Entrepreneurial 

Development in Tswelelang.  R1 000 000.00       

"Project B"         

Sports, Arts & Culture  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

Environment  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

Health  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

Safety and Security  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         

ICT and Other  n/a       

"Project A"         

"Project B"         
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APPENDIX O ï CAPITAL PROGRAMME BY PROJECT BY WARD YEAR 2018/19 
 

Capital Programme by Project by Ward: Year 2018/19 

R' 000 

Capital Project Ward(s) affected Works completed (Yes/No) 

Water:   

Connection water pipelines in Wolmaransstad Ext 17. 

Replacement of Asbestos water pipeline by Upvc in Wolmaransstad. 
1 and 10 yes 

Sanitation/Sewerage:   

 1 and 10 No 

Electricity:      

             10 Yes 

 11 Yes 

 8 Yes 

Housing : None     

Refuse removal : None     

 Roads & Stormwater:    

 1.  9 and  11  Yes 

 3 and 4 Yes 

 9 and 11 yes 

Economic development : none    

Youth  Entrepreneurial Centre in Tswelelang  3 and  4 No 

Sports, Arts & Culture None  n/a   

Environment : none  n/a   

Health : none  n/a   

Safety and Security : none  n/a   

ICT and Other  n/a   

T O 
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APPENDIX P ï SERVICE CONNECTION BACKLOGS AT SCHOOLS AND CLINIC 
Service Backlogs: Schools and Clinics 

Establishments lacking basic 
services 

Water Sanitation Electricity Solid Waste Collection 

Schools (NAMES, LOCATIONS)         

 n/a  none none  none  none  

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

Clinics (NAMES, LOCATIONS)         

 none none  none  none  none  

          

          

          

          

          

          

No service backlogs in and clinics 

T P 
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APPENDIX Q ï SERVICE BACKLOGS EXPERIENCED BY THE COMMUNITY WHERE ANOTHER SPHERE OF GOVERNMENT 
IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SERVICE PROVISION 
 

Service Backlogs Experienced by the Community where another Sphere of Government is the Service Provider (where the municipality whether or not act 
on agency basis) 

Services and Locations Scale of backlogs Impact of backlogs 

Clinics:    None None  None  

     

Housing : None  None  None 

      

      

Licencing and Testing Centre:  None  None 

      

      

      

Reservoirs  None  None 

      

      

Schools (Primary and High):   None  None 

     

 Sports Fields:  None  None 
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APPENDIX R: DECLARATION OF LOANS AND GRANTS MADE BY THE MUNUCIPALITY 

Declaration of Loans and Grants made by the municipality: Year 0 
All Organisation or 
Person in receipt of 

Loans */Grants* 
provided by the 

municipality 

Nature of project  Conditions 
attached to 

funding 

Value  
Year 0                                                                                                                                            
R' 000     

Total Amount committed over previous and 
future years 

 none  none  none  none  none 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

No loans or grants made by the Municpality in the year unde review. T R 
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APPENDIX S ï NATIONAL AND PROVINCIAL OUTCOMES FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 

 
National and Provincial Outcomes for Local Government 

Outcome/Output Progress to date Number or Percentage Achieved 

Output: Improving access to basic 
services 

 Most of the Municipal areas have access to 
basic services.  90 % 

      

      

      

Output: Implementation of the Community 
Work Programme  Ward committees are in place.  70%  

      

      

      

Output: Deepen democracy through a 
refined Ward Committee model  Ward Committee development plan in place  70% 

      

      

      

Output: Administrative and financial 
capability 

 Finance are improving except for revenue 
collection  Revenue collection is at 45 % 

      

      

       

T S 
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Volume (ii) Annual Financial Statements. 
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the Annual Financial Statements presented to 

the Auditor General:  

Page  

    Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval  326  

 Accounting Officer's Report  327  

 Statement of Financial Position  328 

 Statement of Financial Performance  329 

 Statement of Changes in Net Assets  330 

 Statement of  Cash Flows  331  

       Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts  332 - 333 

 Accounting Policies  334 - 351  

       Notes to the Annual Financial Statements  352 - 378  

 DBSA  Development Bank of South Africa  

 GRAP  Generally Recognised Accounting Practice  

 HDF  Housing Development Fund  

 IAS  International Accounting Standards  

 IPSAS  International Public Sector Accounting Standards  

 MFMA  Municipal Finance Management Act  

 MIG  Municipal Infrastructure Grant (Previously CMIP)  
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